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NOTICE is hereby given that the 73rd Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of PILANI INVESTMENT AND 
INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED will be held on Friday, the 11th September, 2020 at 3.00 P.M. IST through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility, to transact, with or without modification(s) the 
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (including Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements) for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020, together with the Reports 
of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Rajashree Birla (DIN: 00022995) who retires from office by rotation, but 
being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider, and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution, as a Special 
Resolution :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force) and any other applicable laws, rules and regulations, consent of the 
Members be and is hereby accorded to the continuation of Smt. Rajashree Birla (DIN: 00022995), who will be 
attaining the age of 75 years on 15th September, 2020, as a Non-Executive Director of the Company.”

5. To consider, and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution, as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 read with other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Shri D. 
K. Mantri (DIN: 00075664), who was appointed as an additional director in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 161(1) of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and who holds office up to the date 
of this meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of 
the Act from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a 
Director of the Company.”

Registered Office:                                    By Order of the Board 
Birla Building                                    R. S. Kashyap
9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road,                         Company  Secretary
Kolkata – 700001   FCS- 8588
30th July, 2020

Notice of the Annual General Meeting
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NOTES:
1. In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic and restrictions imposed on the movement of people, the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its Circular dated 5th May, 2020 read with Circulars dated 8th April, 
2020 and 13th April, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 have permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue.

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with the Circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, 73rd AGM of the Company 
shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) will be providing 
facility for remote e-voting, participation in the AGM through VC / OAVM and e-voting during the AGM.

2. A proxy is allowed to be appointed under Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 to attend and vote at 
the general meeting on behalf of a member who is not able to attend personally. Since the AGM will be 
conducted through VC / OAVM, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Hence, Proxy Form and 
Attendance Slip including Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.

3. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Item Nos. 4 
and 5 of the Notice set out above, is hereto annexed.

4. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its 
representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM and vote on its behalf. The said Resolution/Authorization 
shall be sent to the Company at pilaniinvestment1@gmail.com and to the Scrutiniser at dhanuka419@yahoo.
co.in by email through registered email address  with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

5. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated 12th May, 2020, Notice of the 73rd AGM 
along with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose 
email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and 
Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available on the Company’s website www.pilaniinvestment.com websites 
of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com 
and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

6. Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Equity Shares of the Company will remain closed from 
Saturday, the 5th September, 2020,  to Friday, the 11th September, 2020 (both days inclusive).

7. a.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the unpaid/ unclaimed dividend 
for the financial year 2011 – 2012 has been transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (“IEPF”) established by the Central Government. Further, pursuant to the provisions 
of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed 
amounts lying with Companies) Rules, 2012, the company has uploaded the details of unpaid and 
unclaimed dividend lying with the Company as on 25th September, 2019 (date of last Annual General 
Meeting) on the website of the Company (www.pilaniinvestment.com) and also on the website of the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

 b.    In terms of the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend which remains unpaid 
/ unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of declaration will be transferred to the IEPF. 

  Further, in terms of the provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), as amended from time to time, equity shares in 
respect of which dividends have not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more from the 
date of declaration are required to be transferred to IEPF Authority. 

Notice Contd.
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  Shareholders, who have so far not encashed their dividend relating to the financial year 2012-13 are 
requested to do so, by writing to the Secretarial Department at the Registered Office of the Company or 
to the RTA, failing which the dividend and the equity shares relating thereto will be transferred to the 
IEPF and the IEPF Authority respectively.

  In compliance with the aforesaid Rules, the Company has already transferred equity shares in respect 
of which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholder for seven consecutive years, to 
the Demat Account of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority, after providing necessary 
intimations to the relevant shareholders. 

 c.    We give below the details of dividends paid by the Company and their respective due dates of transfer 
to such fund of the Central Government, if they remain  unencashed:-

Dividend for the  
financial year ended

Date of declaration  
of Dividend

Last date for claiming  
unpaid Dividend

31st March, 2013 23rd August, 2013 22nd September, 2020
31st March, 2014 29th August, 2014 28th September, 2021
31st March, 2015 21st December, 2015 20th January, 2022
31st March, 2016 15th September, 2016 14th October, 2023
31st March, 2017 24th August, 2017 23rd September, 2024
31st March, 2018 14th September, 2018 13th October, 2025
31st March, 2019 25th September, 2019 24th October, 2026

8. a.  Members  who  are  holding Shares in identical order of names in more than one Folio is requested to 
apply to the Company or its RTA alongwith the relevant Share Certificate for consolidation of such folios 
in one folio.

 b.   Members are also requested to notify change in address, if any, immediately to the company at its 
Registered Office or its RTA by quoting their Registered Folio Number(s) in respect of their physical 
shares and to their Depository Participants in respect of their electronic share account.

  c.  As per Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect 
from 1st April, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. 
In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares, members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can 
contact the Company or Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents, Niche Technologies Private Limited 
for assistance in this regard. 

9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Numbers (PAN) by every participant in the securities market.  Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit their PAN details to their Depository Participants with whom they maintain 
their Demat Accounts. Members holding shares in physical form should submit their PAN details to the 
Company or its RTA.

10. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

11. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

Notice Contd.
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12. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

 1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars 
dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote 
e-voting to its Members in respect of the businesses to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for 
facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting agency. The facility of casting 
votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be 
provided by CDSL.

 2. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time 
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility 
of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on 
first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons 
of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first 
come first served basis.

 3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i) The voting period begins on Tuesday, the 8th September, 2020 at 9.00 A.M.  and ends on Thursday, the 10th 
September, 2020 at 5.00 P.M. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Friday, 4th September, 2020 
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 
venue.

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
(iv) Click on “Shareholders” module.
(v) Now enter your User ID 
 a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
 b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
 c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

  OR

 Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at https://www.cdslindia.
com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in to CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST 
e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote electronically.

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 

e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

Notice Contd.
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(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
•	 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 

requested to use the sequence number which is printed on Postal Ballot / Attendance Slip 
indicated in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank 
Details 
OR Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records in order to login.
•	 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member 

id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(x) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are 
required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password 
is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are 
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended 
not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(xi) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN for “Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited” on which you choose to vote.
(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 

voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and 
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification 

code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be 

downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while 
Remote Voting on your mobile. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES 
FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE: 
1.  For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company at pilaniinvestment1@gmail.com or to the Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agents- Niche Technologies Private Limited at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com.

2.  For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit 
DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to Company at pilaniinvestment1@

Notice Contd.
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gmail.com or to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents- Niche Technologies Private Limited at nichetechpl@
nichetechpl.com.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:
1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting 

system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members 
login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/
members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.

 2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.
3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting.
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 

via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves 
as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at pilaniinvestment1@gmail.com.  The 
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 
10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at pilaniinvestment1@gmail.com. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably.

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/
ask questions during the meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote 

e-voting.
2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 

vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 
to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting.

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

(xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians
 • Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to 

log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.
 • A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
 • After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
 • The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 
 • A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour 

of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same.

Notice Contd.
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 • Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized 
to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; dhanuka419@yahoo.co.in, if 
they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer 
to verify the same.

 • In case, if you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting 
System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.
evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact 
Mr. Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-
23058542).

 • All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 
Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon 
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43.

13.  The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of 
the Company as on the cut-off date of Friday, the  4th September, 2020. A person who is not a member as on 
cut off date should treat this notice for information purpose only. 

14.  The notice of the Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear in the register 
of members / beneficial owners position list provided by depositories as at closing hours of business on  
Friday, the 31st July, 2020.

15.  The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off date of Friday, the 4th 
September 2020. The facility of e-voting would be provided once for every folio / client id, irrespective of the 
number of joint holders.

16.  Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the Notice / Email and holds 
the shares as on the cut-off date i.e Friday, the 31st July, 2020 are requested to send the email communication 
to the Company at pilaniinvestment1@gmail.com by mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID to 
obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting.

17.  Shri Kailash Chandra Dhanuka, practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice Number 1247) has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and voting at the AGM in a fair and 
transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit, within 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company or 
a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting 
forthwith.

18.  The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.
pilaniinvestment.com and on the website of CDSL. The same will be communicated to the listed stock 
exchanges viz. National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.

19.  The place of meeting held by VC/OAVM will be deemed to be the Registered Office address of the Company.
20.  Brief resume of Director seeking re-appointment at the Meeting alongwith details of his other Directorships 

and shareholding in the Company pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards are provided as an annexure to 
this Notice.

21. During the AGM, Members may access the scanned copy of Register of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the Registers of Contracts and 
Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

Notice Contd.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.
ITEM NO. 4
Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing 
Regulations”) effective from 1st April, 2019, requires the listed entities to obtain approval of shareholders by way 
of a Special Resolution to appoint or continue the directorship of Non-Executive Directors who have attained the 
age of 75 years.
Accordingly, a Special Resolution is being proposed to be passed by the members for the continuation of holding 
the office of Non-Executive Director by Smt. Rajashree Birla (DIN: 00022995), who would attain the age of 75 years 
on 15th September, 2020 till she becomes liable to retire by rotation pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 
2013, in the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
Smt. Birla, aged about 75 years, Bachelor in Arts is a Non-Executive Director and also Chairperson of the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee of the Board. She is physically fit and in good health. 
Smt. Birla is the Chairperson of the Aditya Birla Centre for Community Initiatives and Rural Development. Smt. 
Birla spearheads the social and community welfare activities across 40 companies in the Aditya Birla Group. The 
Aditya Birla Centre for Community Initiatives and Rural Development’s work in education, healthcare, sustainable 
livelihood and social reform has created a positive difference in the lives of millions of people. 
The significant extent and reach of the Aditya Birla Centre for Community Initiatives and Rural Development in 
uplifting and empowering communities exemplify Smt. Birla’s inspirational leadership in corporate philanthropy. 
Her vision to elevate the underprivileged sections of society has inspired her to lead social causes including 
providing homes to the homeless & destitute and healthcare to the needy. Smt. Birla is a role model and an iconic 
leader for those who aspire to bring about positive changes in society.
A visionary and philanthropist par excellence, Smt. Birla has been recognised with various awards for her exemplary 
work in the field of social welfare including Padma Bhushan, one of the highest civilian awards instituted by the 
Government of India. 
Smt. Birla holds a lot of important positions in various organisations involved in initiatives for social welfare and 
promotion of art and culture. Besides she is associated with various charitable trusts and educational, cultural & 
philanthropic institutions. 
Smt. Birla is a Director on the Board of highly reputed listed companies prominent among them are Century Textiles 
and Industries Limited, Grasim Industries Limited, Hindalco Industries Limited, UltraTech Cement Limited and 
various Aditya Birla Group of Companies, national and international. She is the Chairperson of your Company and 
Century Enka Limited. 
Smt. Birla is not related to any other Director of the Company. She is not acting as the Chairman/Member of any 
Committee of Directors of other public limited companies. {For this purpose, pursuant to Regulation 26 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, only two Committees viz. Audit Committee 
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been considered}. She does not hold any equity shares in the 
Company.
Except Smt. Birla, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 
their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out in this item of the notice.  
This explanatory statement may also be regarded as disclosure under Regulation 26(4) and 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Keeping in view the above, the Board of Directors commends the approval by the Members for the continuation of 
directorship of Smt. Rajashree Birla as a Non- executive Director, notwithstanding she attaining the age of seventy 
five years.

Notice Contd.
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ITEM NO. 5
Shri D. K. Mantri was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company in the capacity of Non-Executive/Non-
Independent director by the Board under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and Article 104 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association with effect from 14th November, 2019. In terms of Section 161 (1) of the Act, 
Shri Mantri holds office upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting but is eligible for appointment 
as a Director. A notice under Section 160 (1) of the Act has been received from a member signifying its intention to 
propose Shri Mantri’s appointment as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation. 
Shri Mantri aged about 64 years is a renowned industrialist having rich business experience.  He heads the DM 
Group which is a Multi Divisional Group with interests in Tea, Engineering, Trading and Financial Services.  He is 
actively involved with Sangeet Kala Mandir, a most prestigious Cultural Institution in the Country, for more than last 
two decades.  He is a Director of Suprabha Industries Limited, Vijayshree Autocom Limited and various other private 
limited companies. He is not acting as the Chairman/Member of any Committee of Directors of other public limited 
companies. {For this purpose, pursuant to Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, only two Committees viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have 
been considered}. He holds 100 Equity Shares in the Company.
In the opinion of the Board, Shri Mantri fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
there under for his appointment as a Director of the Company. Shri Mantri is not related to any Director/KMP.
It is, therefore, in the company’s best interest that it should appoint Shri Mantri as a Director on the Board of 
Directors of the Company.  Accordingly, the Board commends the resolution in relation to appointment of Shri 
Mantri as a Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.
Except Shri Mantri, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 
their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out in this item of the notice.  
This explanatory statement may also be regarded as disclosure under Regulation 26(4) and 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Registered Office:                                    By Order of the Board 
Birla Building                                    R. S. Kashyap
9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road,                         Company  Secretary
Kolkata – 700001 FCS- 8588
30th July, 2020

Notice Contd.
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Dear Shareholders    

Your Directors are pleased to present the 73rd Annual Report of the Company alongwith the Audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020. The Financial Results for the year are shown below:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone
2019-20 2018-19

(Restated)
2019-20 2018-19

Total Income 12,579.59 2,517.99 15,273.29 4,852.34 
Less: Total expenses  5,417.59 2,266.19 5,406.39 2,253.66 
Less: Exceptional Items -  - -  -
Profit before tax 7,162.00  251.80 9,866.90 2,598.68 
Add/(Less): Tax expense 1,759.63  (740.82) 1,758.18  (740.79)
Profit after tax 5,402.37  992.62 8,108.72 3,339.47 
Add: Share in profit of associate company
Net profit after tax and share in profit of associate 
Company

12,092.16 2,00,730.22 -  -

Profit for the year 17,494.53 2,01,722.84 8,108.72 3,339.47 
Add / (Less):Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan 
(gratuity) Net of Income Tax

 (134.17) 36.31 (1.73) (0.77)

Realised gain on equity share 1,25,309.62  10,625.86 1,25,309.62  10,625.86 
Less: Current tax on realised gain 4,200.15 2,290.00 4,200.15 2,290.00 
Less: Adjustment related to Associates on account of 
their demerger

- 1,78,391.52 -  -

Add: Balance brought forward from previous year  57,875.98  31,385.12 29,061.04  22,105.16 
Balance Available 1,96,345.81  63,088.61 1,58,277.50  33,779.72 
Appropriations
Dividend paid 1,977.19 1,977.19 1,977.19 1,977.19 
Additional tax on dividend paid  976.51  900.37 406.42  406.42 
Transfer to Reserve u/s. 45- I C of Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934

25,915.00 2,335.07 25,915.00 2,335.07 

Closing Balance of retained earnings 1,67,477.11  57,875.98 1,29,978.89  29,061.04 

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

The audited financial statements of the Company drawn up both on standalone and consolidated basis, for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, are in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (“Ind AS Rules”).

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there has been no change in the Share Capital of the Company.

DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of ` 25/- (Rupees Twenty Five only) per equity share of  
` 10/- each equivalent to 250 % ( Two hundred fifty percent) on the paid up equity share capital of the Company 

Boards' Report
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for the year ended 31st March, 2020 as against ` 25/- (Rupees twenty five only) per equity share equivalent to 
250% (two hundred fifty percent) paid in the previous year on the equity shares of ` 10/- each. The dividend will 
be paid when approved by the shareholders in accordance with law. Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend 
income will be taxable in the hands of the Shareholders w.e.f. 1st April, 2020 and the Company is required to 
deduct tax at source (“TDS”) from dividend paid to the Members at prescribed rates as per the Income Tax Act, 
1961. The total outflow will be of ` 1977.19 Lakhs.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserves for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2020.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

COVID-19 Pandemic has caused unprecedented economic disruption globally and in India as well. The Company is 
sensitive about the impact of the Pandemic, not only on the human life but on businesses across the globe, which 
will be realized only over next few months. The Company has been monitoring the situation closely and has taken 
proactive measures to comply with various directions / regulations / guidelines issued by the Government and local 
bodies to ensure safety of its employees. The Company has made initial assessment of the likely adverse impact on 
economic environment in general and operational and financial risks on account of COVID-19 which is discussed 
in detail in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report attached elsewhere in this Annual Report. Vide 
notification dated 24th March, 2020 issued by Ministry of Home Affairs a nation-wide lockdown was announced 
to contain COVID-19 outbreak and the same has been progressively extended later. However, the employees of 
the Company have been asked to work from home and efforts have been made by your Company to keep the 
operations of the Company since lockdown as smoothly as possible with least of the disruption. Moreover, later 
with the ease of lockdown protocol in the state, the employees of the Company have resumed office, complying 
with proper safety norms and instructions as advised by the Authorities.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s results will depend on future developments, 
which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, the performance of its investee companies.

DIRECTORS

Smt. Rajashree Birla (DIN: 00022995) will be retiring at the ensuing 73rd Annual general Meeting of the Company 
and being eligible, offers herself for being re-elected.

Smt. Rajashree Birla was appointed a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Directors of the Company with 
effect from 27th August, 2018. Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has amended the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 vide circular dated 9th May 2018 which require for re-
appointment/ continuance of any Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of 75 years to be approved by 
the shareholders by way of a Special Resolution. Smt. Birla will be attaining the age of 75 years on 14th September, 
2020. Hence the Board commends the resolution for approval of the shareholders for the continuation of Smt. 
Birla as Non-Executive Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation. The continuation of Smt. Birla as 
the Non-Executive Director will be of immense benefit for the company taking into account her vast and rich 
experience and deep business acumen. Proposal for the continuation of Smt. Birla as Non-Executive Director of the 
Company liable to retire by rotation is included in the Notice convening the 73rd Annual General Meeting of the 
Company along with Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Shri D. K. Mantri (DIN: 00075664) ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 
25th September, 2019 due to his unwillingness expressed to the Board of Directors to be reappointed as an 
Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive years. However, the Board on the recommendations 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company have appointed him as an Additional Director 
in the capacity of Non-Executive/Non-independent Director of the Company with effect from 14th November, 
2019. Shri Mantri holds office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. Proposal 
for appointment of Shri Mantri as a Director of the Company is included in the Notice convening the 73rd Annual 
general Meeting of the Company along with the Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Board considers his appointment as appropriate and in the best interest of the Company 
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and accordingly recommended his appointment as Non-Executive/Non-Independent Director liable to retire by 
rotation.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company empowers the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee to formulate a process for evaluating the performance of Individual Directors, Committees of the 
Board and the Board as a whole.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company accordingly evaluated the performance of all the 
individual Directors on various parameters such as level of participation of the Directors, preparing themselves 
well in advance to take active participation at the meeting(s), level of knowledge and expertise etc.

The Independent Directors of the Company also had a separate meeting on 14th November, 2019 to review the 
performance and evaluation of Non- Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. 

The Board after taking into consideration the evaluation as done by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and by the Independent Directors, carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its 
Committees and individual Directors. The overall outcome of such evaluation is that the Board, its Committees 
and all individual Directors have performed effectively and satisfactorily.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of the Act, read with the Schedules and Rules issued 
thereunder, as well as clause (b) of sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force). In terms of Regulation 25(8) of 
the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or 
situation, which exists or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their 
duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence.

CODE OF CONDUCT

All the Board Members and Key Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the 
Code of Conduct applicable to the Board Members and Employees of the Company for the year 2019-20 and a 
declaration in this regard has been made by the Chief Executive Officer which forms a part of this Report as an 
Annexure.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The details of number and dates of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings including attendance of Directors 
for the year 2019-20, is given in the attached Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the 
meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In compliance with the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Directors to the best of their 
knowledge and belief confirm that –

(i) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year as on 31st March, 2020 and of the Profit of the Company for that 
period;

(iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting and other records in accordance with the provisions of the aforesaid Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

Boards’ Report Contd.



14 15

Statutory Reports Standalone FinancialsPilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019-20 Consolidated Financials

(v) the Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal 
Financial Controls are adequate and have been operating effectively; and

(vi) the Directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such system is adequate and operating effectively.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which have 
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the 
date of this report, except, that the Board on the recommendations of the Investment and Finance Committee of 
the Company, have vide its meeting held on 21st April, 2020 approved the proposal for raising of funds by way of 
issue of Commercial Papers up to an aggregate amount of ` 1,00,000 Lakhs.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/COURTS/ TRIBUNALS

There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals impacting the going concern 
status of the Company and its future operations.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company believes that a strong internal control framework is an important pillar of Corporate Governance. 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial control system which ensures orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, safeguarding of its assets and accuracy and completeness of accounting records, timely preparation 
of reliable financial information and various regulatory and statutory compliances. 

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

As required by Regulation 17 (8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the 
CEO and CFO certificate for the financial year 2019-20 has been submitted to the Board and a copy thereof is 
contained in the Annual Report.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES

The Equity shares of your Company are listed with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. 
The Commercial Papers of the Company issued during the current financial year are listed with BSE Limited.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

An extract of the Annual Return as on 31st March, 2020 is attached as Annexure- A in the prescribed form MGT-
9 in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, which forms part of this Report and is also available on the Company’s website www.
pilaniinvestment.com.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are Shri R. 
P. Pansari, Chief Executive Officer, Shri N. K. Baheti, Chief Financial Officer (upto 30.08.2019), Shri J. K. Singhania 
(w.e.f 02.09.2019) and Shri R. S. Kashyap, Company Secretary. 

Shri N. K. Baheti ceased to be the Chief Financial Officer of the Company from the close of business hours on 
30th August, 2019 and subsequently Shri J. K. Singhania has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company with effect from 2nd September, 2019.

Remuneration and other details of the Key Managerial Personnel for the year ended 31st March, 2020 are 
mentioned in the Extract of the Annual Return which is attached as Annexure - A and forms part of this Report. 

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

None of the transactions with Related Parties falls under the scope of Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
for the year ended 31st March 2020. However, the NIL disclosure in prescribed form AOC-2 as on 31st March, 2020 
is attached and the same forms part of this Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE   

The Company has in place a system of Corporate Governance. A separate Report on Corporate Governance is 
attached as a part of this Annual Report of the Company. A certificate from Statutory Auditors of the Company 
regarding compliance of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Report on Corporate Governance.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been furnished in the Corporate Governance 
Report forming part of this Annual Report. The Company Secretary is acting as the Secretary of the Committee. The 
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings to 
give clarifications on accounts and related issues. The Board has accepted all the recommendations as and when 
forwarded by the Audit Committee. The Company has in place a vigil mechanism viz. Whistle Blower Policy the 
details of which are available on the Company’s website www.pilaniinvestment.com. 

Other details relating to number of meetings, dates of such meetings and the attendance of each member etc. 
have been given separately in the attached Corporate Governance Report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee have been furnished 
in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report. The Company Secretary is acting as the 
Secretary of this Committee. The Committee had devised a policy named as “Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy” which has been duly approved by the Board and a copy of the same is available on the Company’s website 
www.pilaniinvestment.com and is also attached as Annexure - B hereto and forms part of this Report.

Other details relating to number of meetings, dates of such meetings and attendance of each member etc. have 
been given separately in the attached Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The composition and terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) have 
been given in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. The said Committee has 
devised a policy named as “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” which has been duly approved by the Board 
and a copy of the same is available on the Company’s website www.pilaniinvestment.com and is also attached as 
Annexure- C hereto and forms part of this Report.

Other details relating to number of meetings, dates of such meetings and attendance of each member etc. have 
been given separately in the attached Corporate Governance Report.

During the year your Company had contributed ` 10.00 Lakhs to a Trust working in the areas which are in 
consonance with the CSR policy of the Company. 

The details of CSR expenditure in prescribed form are annexed as Annexure- D and forms part of this Report.

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES   

The Company has two Subsidiaries and one Associate. Pursuant to the provisions of Section129 (3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s Subsidiaries/
Associate in Form AOC-1 is attached with this Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a proper and efficient Risk Assessment and Management Policy which identifies, 
evaluates and mitigates the potential business risks.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In compliance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Secretarial Audit was conducted 
for the Financial Year 2019-20 by the Secretarial Auditor M/s. K. C. Dhanuka & Company, Practicing Company 
Secretary. The Secretarial Auditor’s Report is attached as Annexure- E and forms part of this Report. 
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AUDITORS

M/s Vidyarthi & Sons, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No: 000112C) were appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 years at the 70th Annual General Meeting (AGM) from the conclusion of 
the said meeting until the conclusion of the 75th AGM.

During the year, the Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the independence criteria required under 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

AUDITORS’ REPORT/SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

The observations made in the Auditors’ Report/Secretarial Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and, therefore, 
do not call for any further explanation under Section 134 (3)(f)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013.

EMPLOYEES

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, are as per Annexure – F attached hereto and 
forms part of this Report.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted/accessed any public deposit during the year. Hence, no information is required to 
be appended to this report in terms of Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2016.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given loans, directly or indirectly, to any person or other body corporate or given any 
guarantee or provided any security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person during the 
year under review. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As stipulated by Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been 
prepared by the company in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards. The audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements, together with Auditors’ Report, form part of this Annual Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The Company has no manufacturing activity and therefore, the disclosure of particulars as required to be appended 
under Section 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in so far as it relates to the 
Conservation of the Energy and Technology Absorption, is not applicable. No particulars with regard to Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo are required as the Company has no such transactions.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE

During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaint under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the year under review, unpaid/unclaimed dividend for the Financial Year 2011-12 has been transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in compliance with the provisions of Section 124 and 125 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. In compliance with these provisions read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, your Company also transferred 658 equity shares 
to the Demat Account of the IEPF Authority, in respect of which dividend had remained unpaid/unclaimed for a 
consecutive period of 7 years. 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Business Responsibility Report (BRR) is available as a separate section attached as Annexure – G, which forms 
part of this Report and also hosted on the Company’s website www.pilaniinvestment.com.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion & Analysis Report (MDA) for the year under review, as stipulated under Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached as 
Annexure – H, which forms part of this Report.

APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received 
from Banks, Government Authorities and members during the year under review. The Board of Directors also wish 
to place on record their deep appreciation for the valuable services rendered and commitment displayed by the 
employees of the Company and look forward to their continued support in the future as well.

Your Directors wish to record their concerns about your wellbeing with respect to COVID-19 pandemic. Hope you 
and your families are doing well and all your loved ones are safe and sound. We pray to God that we all emerge 
out of the current situation strongly and with good health. Please take care and be safe.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Rajashree Birla D. K. Mantri
 Chairperson Director
July 30, 2020  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
                Place - Mumbai                  Place - Kolkata
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Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ 
associate companies/joint ventures.

Part “A” : Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in ` in lakhs)

Sl.
1. Name of the subsidiary Atlas Iron & 

Alloys Limited
(under process 
of striking off)

PIC Properties 
Limited

PIC Realcon 
Limited

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting period

31.03.2020 31.03.2020 31.03.2020

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant Financial Year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries

N. A. N. A. N. A.

4. Share capital 7.20 5.00 5.00
5. Reserves & surplus - (226.05) 1737.00
6. Total assets - 380.70 1995.36
7. Total Liabilities - 380.70 1995.36
8. Investments - 85.35 1942.14
9. Turnover - 10.05 72.90

10. Profit before taxation - (3.22) 71.64
11. Provision for taxation - 1.45 -
12. Profit after taxation - (4.67) 71.64
13. Proposed Dividend - - -
14. % of shareholding 96.83% 100% 100%

Notes : The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement :
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations   :   NIL
2. Names of the subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year   :   NIL

Form AOC-1 (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
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Part : “B” : Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint 
Ventures 

(All figures in ` Lakhs)

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Century Textiles and Industries Limited
1. Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2020
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 

company on year end
33.11 %

No of Shares 3,69,78,570
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 41,589.36
Extend of Holding % 33.11 %

3. Description of how there is significant influence. No significant influence except investment
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 

consolidated NIL
5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest 

audited Balance Sheet 3,61,158.00 
6. Profit/Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation 12,092.16
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation N.A.

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations -  NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NIL

Note : This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified. 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Rajashree Birla D. K. Mantri
 Chairperson Director
July 30, 2020  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
             Place - Mumbai                     Place - Kolkata

Form AOC-1 (Contd.)



20 21

Statutory Reports Standalone FinancialsPilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019-20 Consolidated Financials

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions 
under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis NIL
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship -
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions -
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions -
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any -
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions -
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board -
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: -
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under 

first proviso to section 188
-

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis NIL
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship -
(a) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions -
(b) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions -

 (c) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any -
(d) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any : -
(e) Amount paid as advances, if any : -

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Rajashree Birla D. K. Mantri
 Chairperson Director
July 30, 2020  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
             Place - Mumbai                     Place - Kolkata

Form AOC-2 (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
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ANNEXURE - A to the Boards’ Report

Form No. MGT-9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN L24131WB1948PLC095302
ii) Registration Date 9th August, 1948

iii) Name of the Company Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited

iv) Category /Sub-Category of the Company Company having Share Capital
v) Address of the Registered Office and Contact 

details
Birla Building, 11th Floor
9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata- 700001
Phone : (033)4082/3700, 2220 0600
E-mail : pilaniinvestment@gmail.com
Website : www.pilaniinvestment.com

vi) Whether listed Company Yes
a) National Stock Exchange of India Limited
b) BSE Limited

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

M/s Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor
Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata- 700017, West Bengal
Tel.: (033) 2280 6616 / 6617
Email id: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description  of main products / 
services

NIC Code of the 
Product/ service

%  to total turnover  
of the company

1 Activities of Holding Companies 642 32.57 
2 Interest Income 642 64.49

III.   PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  -

Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of 
The Company

CIN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of Shares 
Held

Applicable
Section

1 Century Textiles and 
Industries Limited
Dr. Annie Besant Road
Worli, Mumbai-400030

L17120MH1897PLC000163 Associate 33.11 2(6)

2 PIC Properties Limited
10, Camac Street, 
Kolkata- 700017

U70109WB1985PLC038472  Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
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Sl. 
No.

Name and Address of 
The Company

CIN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of Shares 
Held

Applicable
Section

3 PIC Realcon Limited
9/1, R N Mukherjee 
Road, Kolkata- 700001

U70102WB2013PLC190163 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

4 Atlas Iron and Alloys 
Limited
Lodi Katra, Patna City
Patna (under process 
of striking off)

U27100BR1965PLC000764 Subsidiary 96.83 2(87)(ii)

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
 i)  Category-wise Share Holding

Sl.
No.

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the  
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the  
end of the year

% 
Change 
during

the 
year 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Body Corporate 4179109 0 4179109 52.84 4179109 0 4179109 52.84 0
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other Trusts 372307 0 372307 4.71 372307 0 372307 4.71 0
Sub-total (A) (1):- 4551416 0 4551416 57.55 4551416 0 4551416 57.55 0

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs – Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other – 
Individuals

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A) (2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

4551416 0 4551416 57.55 4551416 0 4551416 57.55 0

B. Public Shareholding 
(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 90000 0 90000 1.14 0 0 0 0 -1.14
b) Banks / FI 19570 400 19970 0.25 179903 400 180303 2.28 2.02
c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ANNEXURE - A to the Boards’ Report Contd.
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Sl.
No.

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the  
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the  
end of the year

% 
Change 
during

the 
year 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares
e) Venture Capital 
    Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance 
Companies

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture 
     Capital Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (Specify)
    FPI - Cat - I 0 0 0 0 22950 0 22950 0.29 0.29
    FPI - Corporate 
    Cat - II

9250 0 9250 0.11 0 0 0 0 -0.11

Sub-total (B)(1) 118820 400 119220 1.51 202853 400 203253 2.57 1.06
(2) Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate

i) Indian 2392615 21749 2414364 30.53 2364124 21699 2385823 30.17 -0.36
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Individuals
i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share 
capital upto  
` 1 lakh

530739 46251 576990 7.29 528759 39227 567986 7.18 -0.11

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share 
capital in excess of ` 
1 lakh

122562 0 122562 1.55 119400 0 119400 1.51 -0.04

c) Others (Specify)
1. NRI/OCB 21737 0 21737 0.27 20964 0 20964 0.26 -0.01
2. Clearning Member 76029 0 76029 0.96 34318 0 34318 0.43 -0.52
3. Trust 11150 0 11150 0.14 9650 0 9650 0.11 -0.02
4. IEPF Authority 15282 0 15282 0.19 15940 0 15940 0.20 0.01
Sub-total (B)(2) 3170114 68000 3238114 40.94 3093155 60926 3154081 39.88 -1.06
Total Public 
Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+(B)(2) 

3288934 68400 3357334 42.45 3296008 61326 3357334 42.45 0

C Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total (A+B+C) 7840350 68400 7908750 100.00 7847424 61326 7908750 100.00 0

ANNEXURE - A to the Boards’ Report Contd.
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 (ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Share holding at the end of the year % change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
Company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

1 Aditya Marketing 
& Manufacturing 
Private Limited

2744194 34.70 Nil 2744194 34.70 Nil Nil

2 B. K. Birla 
Foundation

17521 0.22 Nil 17521 0.22 Nil Nil

3 Birla Educational 
Institution

16500 0.21 Nil 16500 0.21 Nil Nil

4 Central India General 
Agents Limited

300 0.00 Nil 300 0.00 Nil Nil

5 Padmavati 
Investment Limited

1406986 17.80 Nil 1406986 17.80 Nil Nil

6 Jayantika Investment 
& Finance Ltd.

6700 0.09 Nil 6700 0.09 Nil Nil

7 Prakash Educational 
Society

355807 4.49 Nil 355807 4.49 Nil Nil

8 Zenith Distributors & 
Agents Limited

3408 0.04 Nil 3408 0.04 Nil Nil

4551416 57.55 Nil 4551416 57.55 Nil Nil

ANNEXURE - A to the Boards’ Report Contd.

 (iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

At the beginning of the year 4551416 57.55
Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.

No changes during the year

At the End of the year 4551416 57.55
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 (iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten  Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders  
  of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares  
of the company

No. of Shares % of total shares  
of the company

1. The Punjab Produce & Trading 
Co. Pvt. Ltd.
a) At the beginning of the year 1385223 17.51
b) Changes during the year No Changes during  the year
c) At the end of the year 1385223 17.51

2. Gwalior Webbing Co. Pvt. Ltd.
a) At the beginning of the year 454168 5.74
b) Changes during the year No Changes during  the year
c) At the end of the year 454168 5.74

3. Comfort Intect Limited
a) At the beginning of the year 62500 0.79
b) Changes during the year
20.03.2020 - Transfer 9075 0.11 71575 0.90
c) At the end of the year 71575 0.90

4. Shri Venkateshwara 
Educational Institute
a) At the beginning of the year 102847 1.30
b) Changes during the year
12.04.2019 - Transfer (25000) 0.32 77847 0.98
c) At the end of the year

5. Baroda Agents & Trading Co. 
Pvt. Ltd.
a) At the beginning of the year 68707 0.87
b) Changes during the year No changes during the year
c) At the end of the year 68707 0.87

6. Punjab Produce Holdings Ltd.
a) At the beginning of the year 52750 0.66
b) Changes during the year No changes during the year
c) At the end of the year 52750 0.66

7. Hitesh Satish Chandra Doshi
a) At the beginning of the year 65571 0.83
b) Changes during the year
02.08.2019 -  Transfer (8400) 0.10 57171 0.73
23.08.2019 – Transfer (50500) 0.64 6671 0.09
27.09.2019 – Transfer (5400) 0.06 1271 0.01
25.10.2019 – Transfer 36730 0.46 38001 0.48



26 27

Statutory Reports Standalone FinancialsPilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019-20 Consolidated Financials

ANNEXURE - A to the Boards’ Report Contd.

Sl 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares  
of the company

No. of Shares % of total shares  
of the company

01.11.2019 – Transfer (23301) 0.29 14700 0.19
08.11.2019 – Transfer (6700) 0.08 8000 0.10
15.11.2019 – Transfer (8000) 0.10 0 0.00                                                 
c) At  the end of the year 0 0.00

8. ICICI Lombard General 
Insurance Company Ltd.
a) At the beginning of the year 78000 0.99
b) Changes during the year No changes during the year
c) At the end of the year 78000 0.99

9. Resham Resha Private Ltd.
a) At the beginning of the year 50740 0.64
b) Changes during the year
30/08/2019 Transfer (1006) 0.01 49734 0.63
06/09/2019 Transfer (500) 0.01 49234 0.62
20/09/2019 Transfer (979) 0.01 48255 0.61
27/09/2019 Transfer (2750) 0.04 45505 0.58
04/10/2019 Transfer (650) 0.01 44855 0.57
11/10/2019 Transfer (500) 0.01 44355 0.56
18/10/2019 Transfer (998) 0.01 43357 0.55
25/10/2019 Transfer (1131) 0.01 42226 0.53
15/11/2019 Transfer (310) 0.00 41916 0.53
22/11/2019 Transfer (731) 0.01 41185 0.52
29/11/2019 Transfer (1432) 0.02 39753 0.50
31/12/2019 Transfer (10753) 0.14 29000 0.37
03/01/2020 Transfer (3647) 0.05 25353 0.32
17/01/2020 Transfer (3353) 0.04 22000 0.28
28/02/2020 Transfer (400) 0.01 21600 0.27
06/03/2020 Transfer (1292) 0.02 20308 0.26
c) At the End of the Year   20308 0.26

10. SBI Small Cap Fund
a) At the Begining of the Year 90000 1.14
b) Changes during the year   
21/06/2019 Transfer (4244) 0.05 85756 1.08
28/06/2019 Transfer (4274) 0.05 81482 1.03
05/07/2019 Transfer (4347) 0.06 77135 0.98
12/07/2019 Transfer (2416) 0.03 74719 0.95
19/07/2019 Transfer (215) 0.00 74504 0.94
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Sl 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares  
of the company

No. of Shares % of total shares  
of the company

25/10/2019 Transfer (3160) 0.04 71344 0.90
01/11/2019 Transfer (1675) 0.02 69669 0.88
08/11/2019 Transfer (4037) 0.05 65632 0.83
15/11/2019 Transfer (492) 0.01 65140 0.82
22/11/2019 Transfer (129) 0.00 65011 0.82
29/11/2019 Transfer (710) 0.01 64301 0.81
06/12/2019 Transfer (372) 0.01 63929 0.81
03/01/2020 Transfer (123) 0.00 63806 0.81
17/01/2020 Transfer (19160) 0.24 44646 0.57
24/01/2020 Transfer (14061) 0.18 30585 0.39
31/01/2020 Transfer (10321) 0.13 20264 0.26
07/02/2020 Transfer (687) 0.01 19577 0.25
14/02/2020 Transfer (3921) 0.05 15656 0.20
21/02/2020 Transfer (3569) 0.05 12087 0.15
28/02/2020 Transfer (9584) 0.12 2503 0.03
06/03/2020 Transfer (2503) 0.03 0 0.00
c) At the End of the Year   0 0.00

11. Ambareesh Mandelia
a) At the beginning of the year 30000 0.38
b) Changes during the year No changes during the year
c) At the end of the year 30000 0.38

12. Golu Merchandise Pvt. Ltd.
a) At the beginning of the year 35753 0.45
b) Changes during the year No changes during the year
c) At the end of the year 35753 0.45

13. ICICI Bank Ltd.
a) At the Begining of the Year 0 0.00   
b) Changes during the year     
07/06/2019 Transfer 331 0.00 331 0.00
21/06/2019 Transfer 79 0.00 410 0.01
26/07/2019 Transfer 147 0.00 557 0.01
02/08/2019 Transfer (19) 0.00 538 0.01
16/08/2019 Transfer (267) 0.00 271 0.00
23/08/2019 Transfer 179 0.00 450 0.01
30/08/2019 Transfer (130) 0.00 320 0.00
20/09/2019 Transfer 65 0.00 385 0.01
27/09/2019 Transfer (297) 0.00 88 0.00
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Sl 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares  
of the company

No. of Shares % of total shares  
of the company

11/10/2019 Transfer 843 0.01 931 0.01
25/10/2019 Transfer 6 0.00 937 0.01
01/11/2019 Transfer (59) 0.00 878 0.01
15/11/2019 Transfer (5) 0.00 873 0.011
22/11/2019 Transfer 2518 0.03 3391 0.04
29/11/2019 Transfer 2149 0.03 5540 0.07
06/12/2019 Transfer 9824 0.12 15364 0.19
13/12/2019 Transfer (7) 0.00 15357 0.19
20/12/2019 Transfer 557 0.01 15914 0.20
27/12/2019 Transfer (8) 0.00 15906 0.20
31/12/2019 Transfer (17) 0.00 15889 0.20
03/01/2020 Transfer (68) 0.00 15821 0.20
10/01/2020 Transfer 747 0.01 16568 0.21
17/01/2020 Transfer (4) 0.00 16564 0.21
24/01/2020 Transfer 1175 0.02 17739 0.22
07/02/2020 Transfer 1 0.00 17740 0.22
14/02/2020 Transfer 10 0.00 17750 0.22
21/02/2020 Transfer (2) 0.00 17748 0.22
28/02/2020 Transfer 495 0.01 18243 0.23
06/03/2020 Transfer (21) 0.00 18222 0.23
20/03/2020 Transfer 71 0.00 18293 0.23
27/03/2020 Transfer 64310 0.81 82603 1.04
c) At the End of the Year   82603 1.04
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 (v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

Sl. 
No.

For each of the Directors 
and KMP

 Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

 Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares  % of total 
shares of the 

Company 

No. of shares  % of total 
shares of the 

Company
1. Smt. Rajashree Birla 0 0 0 0
2. Shri D. K. Mantri 100 0 100 0
3. Shri A. K. Kothari 70 0 70 0
4. Shri A. V. Jalan 0 0 0 0
5. Shri Giriraj Maheswari 0 0 0 0
6. Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala 0 0 0 0
7. Smt. Vanita Bhargava 0 0 0 0
8. Shri R. P. Pansari 0    0 0 0
9. Shri N. K. Baheti 0 0 0 0

(upto 30.08.2019)
10. Shri J. K. Singhania 0 0 0 0

(w.e.f 02.09.2019)
11. Shri R. S. Kashyap 0 0 0 0

V.  INDEBTEDNESS
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Secured 
Loans 

excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year i.e. 
01-04-2019
i) Principal Amount Nil 24500 Nil Nil
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 24500 Nil Nil
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition Nil 17500 Nil Nil
Reduction Nil Nil Nil Nil
(Net Change) Nil 42000 Nil Nil
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year i.e.  
31-03-2020
i) Principal Amount Nil 42000 Nil Nil
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 42000 Nil Nil

ANNEXURE - A to the Boards’ Report Contd.
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VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
 A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager  (` in Lakhs)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Managing Director/
Wholetime Director/Manager

Total Amount 

1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 
      17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

- - -

(b) Value of Perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax 
      Act, 1961

- - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of 
      the Income Tax Act, 1961

 -   -  -  

2 Stock Option  -   -  -  
3 Sweat Equity  -   -  -  
4 Commission     

- As % of Profit  -   -  -  
- Others, specify  -   -  -  

5 Others, please specify   -  -  
Total (A) - - -
Ceiling as per the Act - - -

 B. Remuneration to other Directors:

Particular of Remuneration Name of 
Directors

Total Amount 

Independent Directors : Please refer to Corporate Governance Report for 
details
(a) Fees for attending Board/Committee meetings 6.60
(b) Commission Nil
(c) Others, please specify Nil
Total (1) 6.60
Other Non Executive Directors : Please refer to Corporate Governance 
Report for details
(a) Fees for attending Board/Committee metings 3.80
(b) Commission Nil
(c) Others, please specify Nil
Total (2) 3.80
Total (1) + (2) 10.40
Total Managerial Remuneration 10.40
Overall ceiling as per the Act Remuneration is within limits of  

provisions of law

ANNEXURE - A to the Boards’ Report Contd.
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 C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager / WTD (` in Lakhs)

 Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
Shri R. P. 
Pansari

CEO

Shri N. K. 
Baheti 

CFO
upto 

30.08.2019

Shri J. K. 
Singhania

CFO
w.e.f. 

02.09.2019

Shri R. S. 
Kashyap

CS

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

79.00 48.07 16.08 11.12 154.27

(b) Value of Perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

- - 0.18 - 0.18

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

- - - - -

2 Stock Option NA - - - - -
3 Sweat Equity NA - - - - -
4 Commission

- % of profit - - - - -
- others, specify - - - - -

5 Others, please specify - PF 7.20 0.91 0.96 1.04 10.11
Total 86.20 48.98 17.22 12.16 164.56

* The salary details of Shri N. K. Baheti includes retiral benefits.
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Companies Act Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty/
Punishment/Compounding 

Fees imposed

Authority 
(RD/ NCLT/ 

COURT)

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

details)

A. COMPANY 
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

C.  OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

ANNEXURE - A to the Boards’ Report Contd.

NIL

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Rajashree Birla D. K. Mantri
 Chairperson Director
July 30, 2020  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
             Place - Mumbai                     Place - Kolkata
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

1. Preamble

 The Nomination & Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) of Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) is formulated under the requirements of applicable laws, 
including the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (“Listing Regulations”). 

 The Policy is intended to set out criteria to pay equitable remuneration to the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel (hereinafter referred to as “KMPs”), senior management (as defined below) (hereinafter referred 
to as “SMPs”) and other employees of the Company and to harmonise the aspirations of human resources 
with the goals of the Company.

2. Objectives

 In line with the requirements of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the objectives and purpose of the Policy 
are as follows:

  To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management.

  To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate the Board, KMPs and SMPs of the Company to run the Company efficiently and 
successfully;

  To ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 
benchmarks;

  To ensure that remuneration to Directors, KMPs and SMPs of the Company involves a balance between 
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the Company and its goals.

  To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board 
for further evaluation. 

  To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, KMPs and SMPs.

3. Applicability

 The Policy shall be applicable to: 
 a. All Directors of the Company.
 b. Key Managerial Personnel, which means. 
  i. Managing Director/Whole Time Director/Manager.
  ii. Chief Executive Officer.
  iii. Company Secretary. 
  iv. Chief Financial Officer. 
 c. Such other person as may be prescribed (Senior Management Personnel).

4.  Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 (i) Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director. 
 (ii) Recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel or other prescribed employees (Senior Management). 
 (iii) To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance. The Company has a separate Board 

Performance Evaluation Policy.
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 (iv) Devising a policy on Board diversity. The Company have separate Policy on Board Diversity.
 (v) Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and other 

Senior Management personnel.
 (vi) Any other matter as the Board may decide from time to time. 

5.  Duties of the Committee

 The duty of the Committee covers the matters relating to nomination and remuneration of the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other prescribed employees of the Company. 

 (A)  Nomination matters include: 

 (i) Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction & training programme in place for new Directors and 
Key Managerial Personnel and reviewing its effectiveness; 

 (ii) Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of 
appointment as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

 (iii) Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013; 

 (iv) Setting a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for appointment to the Board; 
 (v) Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Key Managerial Personnel in the context of the 

Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective; 
 (vi) Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee; 
 (vii) Recommend any necessary changes to the Board. 
 (viii) Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board. 

Criterias for appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel

 Directors

The Committee shall identify potential candidates with appropriate qualification, knowledge, expertise and 
experience.

A person, to be appointed as Director should possess impeccable reputation, deep expertise and insights in 
sectors/areas relevant to the Company, ability to contribute to the Company’s growth and complementary skills in 
relation to the other Board Members amongst other attributes.

The Committee shall ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for 
appointment as a Director and recommend to the Board his appointment. The Board after being satisfied with 
the recommendations of the Committee, may appoint such person as a Director in accordance with the procedure 
prescribed under the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations for the time being in force.

Factors like eligibility criteria, independence, term and tenure of a Director shall be in accordance with the 
provisions under the Act and the Listing Regulations for the time being in force.

The Committee may recommend with reasons, removal of a Director subject to and in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations.

 Key Management Personnel/Senior Management Personnel

The Committee shall identify suitable candidates for appointment as Managing Director/Executive Director/
Whole Time Director/ Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary of the Company and 
designate them as Key Management Personnel or Senior Management Personnel of the Company on the basis of 
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their academic, professional qualifications, relevant work experience, skill and other capabilities suitable to the 
position.

Further, the appointment or removal of the aforesaid persons/Key Management Personnel/Senior Management 
Personnel  shall be made by the Board based on the recommendations of the Committee in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations for the time being in force.

(B) Remuneration matters include: 

 (i) Consideration and determination of the Remuneration based on the principles of (i) pay for 
responsibilities; (ii) pay for performance and potential; and (iii) pay for growth to ensure that the 
remuneration fixed is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the members.

 (ii)  Taking into account financial position of the Company, trend in the Industry, appointee’s qualification, 
experience, past performance and past remuneration, etc. while determining/fixing the proposed 
remuneration package.

 (iii) Bringing about objectivity in determining the remuneration package  while striking a balance between 
the interests of the Company and the Stakeholders. 

 (iv) Other factors as the Committee may deem fit and appropriate for consideration of different elements 
of the remuneration and ensure compliance of provisions of the Act and other applicable laws. 

 (v) Consideration any other matters as may be requested by the Board. 

Criterias for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel

 Remuneration to Non - Executive Directors including Independent Directors

The Non - Executive Directors including Independent Directors of the Company may be paid sitting fees for 
attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors or its Committees thereof, as may be determined by the Board 
from time to time, within the limit prescribed under the Act.

Besides the sitting fees, the Non - Executive Directors including Independent Directors shall also be entitled to 
reimbursement of expenses as may be incurred by them while performing their role as a Director of the Company.

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

 Remuneration to Executive Directors

The remuneration to be paid to Executive Directors including the Managing Director and/or the Whole -Time 
Director shall be governed by the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. The remuneration 
including annual increments shall be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
approved by the Board and the Shareholders of the Company, as may be required under the provisions of the Act 
and the Listing Regulations.

The Executive Directors may also be paid commission in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Listing 
Regulations, if authorised by the Shareholders of the Company. The Commission payable shall be determined by 
the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time based on the recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee.

The Executive Directors shall not/ be paid any fees for attending the Meetings of the Board and the Committees 
thereof.

Any increase in the remuneration, if authorised by the Shareholders of the Company, shall be approved by the 
Board and/or any Committee thereof as may be authorised in this regard and shall be within the overall limits 
approved by the Shareholders and prescribed under the Act and the Listing Regulations.
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 Remuneration to Key Management Personnel and Senior Management Personnel

The remuneration to be paid to Key Management Personnel and Senior Management Personnel shall be 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board. Any increments to 
the remuneration shall also be recommended by the said Committee and approved by the Board. 

6. Minutes of the Committee Meetings

 Proceedings of all meetings of the Committee must be entered in the Minutes Book maintained for the 
purpose and signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting. 
Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the subsequent Board and the Committee meetings for 
approval/confirmation and/or record purposes.

7. Amendments 

 In case of any doubt with regard to any provision of the policy and also in respect of matters not covered 
herein, a reference shall be made to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. In all such matters, the 
interpretation & decision of the Committee shall be final.

 Any or all   provisions   of   the   Nomination and Remuneration   Policy   would be   subject   to revision/
amendment in accordance with the guidelines on the subject as may be issued by the Government and/or 
the Regulatory Authority, from time to time.

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall have a right to modify, add, or amend any of the 
provisions of this Policy with the approval of the Board.

 The Remuneration policy will be incorporated in the Annual Report of the Company.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

1. Preamble
 Corporate responsibility towards the stakeholders is fast emerging as one of the major considerations for 

businesses in the country. Organisations are gradually shifting their attention towards a wider view of social 
concerns while conducting their businesses. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) aims at connecting business 
to the society. CSR is traditionally driven by a moral obligation and philanthropic spirit. Over time it has 
become an integral part of business. The broader objective of CSR is to contribute with a responsibility, 
towards a better society and a cleaner environment.

2. Objectives
 The main objective of the Policy is to establish the basic principles and the general framework of action for the 

management to undertake and fulfil its corporate social responsibility.
3. Activities and Implementation 
 a. Areas for Activities
  The Company shall identify projects / activities which will fall in any one or more of the following areas /

sector for its CSR spending:
  1. Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition; 
  2. Promoting health care;
  3. Making available Safe drinking water & Sanitation; 
  4. Promoting Education;
  5. Enhancing Vocational Skills & Livelihood enhancement Projects; 
  6. Women Empowerment; 
  7. Promoting of Home and Hostels for Women and Orphans; 
  8. Reducing inequality faced by socially and economically backward groups; 
  9. Animal Welfare /Animal care; 
  10. Promoting Art & Culture; 
  11. Rural Development Projects; and 
  12. Any other areas as may be identified by the CSR Committee from time to time. 
  The CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken by the company as per Company’s CSR Policy in 

India only shall amount to CSR Expenditure in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (5) of section 
135 of the Act.

  All expenses and contributions for CSR activities will be made after approval from the Chairman of the 
CSR committee, which would then be placed before the forthcoming CSR committee for noting and 
record .The Chairman will ensure that the expenses/contribution and donation will be in full compliance 
of the CSR Policy.

 b. Implementing Agency
  The company may decide to undertake its CSR activities directly or through a Registered Trust or a 

registered society or a company established by the company under section 8 of the Act. Provided that –
  If such trust, society or company is not established by the company or its holding or subsidiary or associate 

company, it shall have an established track record of three years in undertaking similar programs or 
projects;
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  The Company shall specify the project or programs to be undertaken through these entities, modalities 
of utilization of funds on such projects and programmes.

4. Resources 
 The corpus for the purpose of carrying on the aforesaid activities would include the followings:
  2% of the average Net Profit made by the Company during immediately preceding three Financial Years.
  any income arising there from.
  surplus arising out of CSR activities carried out by the company and such surplus will not be part of 

business profit of the company.
5. Monitoring
 The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee  will provide regular progress report to the Board of Directors. 

This report would indicate:
  Achievement since last progress report / during the last quarter/ during the last six months in terms of 

coverage compared to the target and reasons for variance.
  Achievement of the year-to-date in terms of coverage compared to the target, plans to overcome 

shortfalls if any and support required from the CSR Committee/Board to overcome the shortfalls.
  Actual year-to-date spends compared to the budget and reasons for variance.
  In respect of activities undertaken through outside Trust/Society/NGO's etc. there will be mechanism of 

reporting of progress on each such activities and the amount incurred thereon.
  The Board shall seek a short progress report from the CSR Committee on an half yearly basis
6. General
 In case of any doubt with regard to any provision of the policy and also in respect of matters not covered 

herein, a reference to be made to CSR Committee. In all such matters, the interpretation & decision of the 
Committee shall be final.

 Any or all provisions of the CSR Policy would be subject to revision/amendment in accordance with the 
guidelines on the subject as may be issued from Government, from time to time.

 The CSR Committee reserves the right to modify, add, or amend any of provisions of this Policy subject to 
approval of the Board.
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FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED  
IN THE BOARD'S REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

(` in Lakhs)

1.  A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs;

 The details of the programs/projects to be undertaken has been given in Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy of the Company which is attached in the Annual Report and is also available on the Company's website 
www.pilaniinvestment.com; 

2.  The Composition of the CSR Committee;     
 The CSR Committee of the Company comprises of Smt. Rajashree Birla, Chairperson, Shri A. K. Kothari, Shri A. 

V. Jalan and Shri Giriraj Maheswari. 
3.  Average net profit of the company for the last three financial years   :    94.90
4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) :    1.90 
5.  Details of CSR spent during the financial year;
 (a)  Total amount to be spent for the financial year;
  (including last year's unspent amount of ` 7.07 lakhs) :  8.97 
 (b)  Amount unspent, if any  :  Nil
 (c)  Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below. 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. 

No.
CSR 
project or
activity
identified

Sector
in which
the project
is covered

Projects or
programs

Amount 
outlay
(budget)
project
or
programs
wise

Amount
spent on the
projects or
programs

Cumulative
expenditure
upto the
reporting 
period

Amount spent :
Direct or 
through
implementing 
agencySub-heads:

(1) Local area or
       other

(1) Direct 
expenditure 
on projects  or 
programs

(2) Specify 
the State and 
district where  
projects or 
programs was 
undertaken

(2) Overheads

1 Rural 
development 
projects
and Promoting 
Healthcare

Rural 
development 
projects
and Promoting 
Healthcare

- - - -                  10.00 

T O T A L                  10.00 
  * CSR expenditure made through a Trust.       
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6.  In case the company has failed to spend the two pecent of the average net profit of the last three financial 
years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board 
report : N.A.       

7.  The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with the CSR Objectives and Policy of the 
Company.

 For and behalf of the Board of Directors  
    
 R. P. Pansari Rajashree Birla 
 Chief Exective Officer Chairperson 
July 30, 2020 Place - Kolkata (DIN: 00022995)
           Place - Mumbai
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Pilani Investment And Industries Corporation Limited
Birla Building, 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road,
Kolkata – 700001
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited (hereinafter called “The 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st  March, 2020 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011;
 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009;
 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
 e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015
(v) RBI – Prudential norms/ forms for NBFC – NDSI and the rules made thereunder.
 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
 i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
 We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company 

and also on the review of the compliance reports of Company Secretary/ Chief Executive Officer taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion, adequate systems and processes exist in 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with provisions of applicable general laws like Employees’ 
Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The West Bengal State Tax on Professions, Trades, 
Callings and Employments Act, 1979 and other laws.
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We further report that
The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed 
in this Audit since the same have subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notices is given to all directors for the Board and Committee Meetings. Agenda and Notes on agenda 
were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of 
the minutes.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.
We further report that:
i. Shri Giriraj Maheswari and Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala were appointed as the Independent Directors of the 

Company for a term of five consecutive years with effect from 17th April’2019 upto 16th April’2024, which 
was approved at the 72nd Annual General Meeting held on 25th September’2019.

ii. Smt. Vanita Bhargava was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of five consecutive 
years with effect from 10th July’2019  upto  9th July’2024, which was approved at the 72nd Annual General 
Meeting held on 25th September’2019.

iii. Shri N.K. Baheti, Chief Financial Officer retired from the services of the Company with effect from 30th 
August’2019.

iv. Shri J.K. Singhania has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 2nd 
September’2019.

v. Shri D.K. Mantri ceased to be an Independent Director  of the Company with effect from 25th September’2019. 
Further, he has been appointed as a Non –Executive / Non Independent Director of the Company with effect 
from 14th November’2019.

vi. The Company had applied to the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) for its conversion from Non-Banking Financial 
Company to Core Investment Company and the approval from RBI is awaited. However the Company have 
been advised by RBI to resubmit a new application for it conversion from Non-Banking  Financial Company to 
Core Investment Company and the same is under process.

It is stated that the compliance of all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other laws is the 
responsibility of the management. We have relied on the representation made by the company and its Officers 
for systems and mechanism set-up by the company for compliance under applicable laws. Our examination, on a 
test-check basis, was limited to procedures followed by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the said 
provisions. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted its affairs. We further state that this is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial activities / statements of the Company. Moreover, 
we have not covered any matter related to any other law which may be applicable to the Company except the 
aforementioned corporate laws of the Union of India.

     K. C. DHANUKA & CO.
       Company Secretaries
           
        K. C. DHANUKA
        Proprietor
Place : Kolkata FCS-2204, CP-1247
Date : 30th July, 2020. UDIN : F002204B000517686
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Particulars of Employees

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF 
THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

Requirements of Rule 5(1)  Details
(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each  It is not possible to determine the ratio of the   
 Director to the median remuneration of  remuneration of each Director to the median        
 the employees of the company for the         remuneration of the employees of the company
 financial year;                                                for the financial year 2019-2020 as because the 
                                                                      Company does not have any Whole Time  
                                                                      Director and the Non- Executive Directors of the 
                                                                       Company were being paid for only the sitting   
                                                                      fees.      
(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration       
   of each director, Chief Executive Officer, Shri R. P. Pansari, Chief Executive Officer- N.A.
 Chief Financial Officer, Company       Shri N. K. Baheti*, Chief Financial Officer- N.A
 Secretary or Manager, if any, in the               Shri J. K. Singhania**, Chief Financial officer- N.A             
          financial year;                                                 Shri R. S. Kashyap, Company Secretary- 38.50%         

           *Shri N. K. Baheti ceased to be the Chief Financial officer w.e.f 30-08-2019
          **Shri J. K. Singhania appointed as the Chief Financial officer w.e.f 02-09-2019

(iii) The percentage increase in the median        The Company has only one employee other
 remuneration of employees in the                       than the aforesaid KMP’s and his percentage
 financial year :  increase in the remuneration is 10.60%    

(iv) The number of permanent employees on 
 the rolls of company  :     4 employees as on 31.03.2020

(v) Average percentile increase already made     
  in the salaries of employees other than the :  Please refer point Nos. (ii) and (iii)   
  managerial personnel in the last financial  (% Increase in the managerial remuneration     
  year and its comparison with the percentile      is more due to higher responsibilities) 
  increase in the managerial remuneration and       
 justification thereof and point out if there are         
 any exceptional circumstances for increase in
 the managerial remuneration;

  
           
(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is :   Remuneration paid during the 
 as per the remuneration policy   Year ended 31st March, 2020
 of the company.   is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
                                                                               
 Rajashree Birla D. K. Mantri
 Chairperson Director
July 30, 2020  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
             Place - Mumbai                     Place - Kolkata
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Information as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2020

Details of Top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and employees employed throughout the financial 
year and were in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was not less than ̀  1,02,00,000/-.

Sr. 
No

Name of the 
employee

Age in 
Years

Qualification Date of 
commencement 
of employment

Designation Remuneration Total 
experience 

(No. of 
years)

Previous 
Employment 
(Designation)

Percentage 
of Equity 

Shares 
held by 

employee 
in the 

Company
1 Shri R. P. Pansari 73 FCA 14-02-2017 Chief 

Executive 
Officer

86,20,000 53 Senior 
President-

Essel Mining 
& Industries 

Limited

NIL

2 Shri N. K. Baheti
(upto 30-08-2019)

70 B. Com, LLB 08-12-1993 Chief 
Financial 
Officer

48,97,648
(including 

retiral 
benefits)

46 Manager-
Tettla Tea 
Company 

Private 
Limited

NIL

3 Shri J. K. Singhania
(w.e.f. 02-09-
2019)

44 FCA 02-09-2019 Chief 
Financial 
Officer

17,22,270 20 Chief 
Financial 
Officer-

Hindusthan 
Engineering 
& Industries 

Limited

NIL

4 Shri R. S. Kashyap 37 B. Com(Hons),
FCS

01-09-2011 Company 
Secretary 
and Chief 

Risk Officer

12,15,701 11 Company 
Secretary- 

Digboi 
Carbon 
Private 
Limited

NIL

NOTES:

1. Nature of Employment: Permanent

2. Remuneration received includes salary, allowances, Company’s contribution to retirement funds etc. The 
monetary value of perquisites as and where applicable is computed on the basis of the Income Tax Act and 
Rules made thereunder.

3. None of the aforesaid employees is a relative of any Director or Manager of the Company.
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Business Responsibility Report

Section A : General information about the Company

1 Corporate Identification Number L24131WB1948PLC095302
2 Name of the Company Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
3 Registered Address Birla Building, 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road

Kolkata- 700001
4 Website www.pilaniinvestment.com
5 Email Address pilaniinvestment1@gmail.com
6 Financial Year reported 1st April 2019 – 31st March 2020
7 Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in Activities of Holding Companies (NIC Code – 642)
8 Three key products/services manufactured/ 

provided by the  Company Activities of Holding Companies (NIC Code – 642)
9 Total number of locations where 

business activity is undertaken by 
the Company

One – Kolkata

10 Markets served by the Company India

Section B : Financial Details of the Company

1 Paid up Capital Rs. 790.88 Lakhs
2 Total turnover Rs. 15273.29 Lakhs
3 Total Profit after tax Rs. 8108.72 Lakhs
4 Total spending on CSR as percentage of PAT (%) Refer Annual Report on CSR activities
5 List of the activities in which expenditure in (4) 

above has been incurred
Refer Annual Report on CSR activities

Section C  :   Other Details

1 Does the Company have any Subsidiary 
Company/Companies

Yes. The Company has two wholly owned Subsidiaries, 
i.e. PIC Properties Limited and PIC Realcon Limited. 
Another subsidiary i.e. Atlas Iron and Alloys Limited is 
under process of striking off.

2 Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies 
participate in the BR initiatives of the parent 
Company? If yes, then indicate the Number of 
such subsidiary company(s)

No

3 Do any other entity/entities (e.g Suppliers, 
distributors etc.) that the Company does business 
with, Participate in the BR initiatives of the 
Company? If yes, then indicate the Percentage of 
such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30%-60%, 
More Than 60%]

No
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Section D : BR information

1 Details of Director(s) responsible for BR
a) Details of the Director responsible for implementation of the BR Policy/

Policies:
 Director Identification Number (DIN)
 Name
 Designation

00075664
Shri D. K. Mantri
Director

b) Details of the BR Head:
 Director Identification Number (DIN) (if applicable)
 Name
 Designation
 Telephone Number
 Email address

Not applicable
Shri R. P. Pansari
Chief Executive Officer
033 4082 3700
pilaniinvestment1@gmail.com

2 Principle-wise BR Policy/policies Included in this report
3 Governance related to BR Included in this report

Section E : Principle-wise performance

1 Principle-wise performance Included in this report

Preface

As mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), India’s top 1000 listed entities based on market 
capitalisation on the NSE and BSE, are required to submit a Business Responsibility Report (BRR) alongwith their 
Annual Report for 2019-2020. This report is required to be in line with “National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, 
Environment and Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVGs), as released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
in July 2011.

Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited (“Pilani”, “the company”), to whom the said requirement 
became applicable for the first time in 2019-2020, present its first BRR in line with the NVGs and the BRR 
requirement of SEBI.  

Pilani is a holding and investment company. It holds strategic stakes in Century Textiles and Industries Limited, 
Kesoram Industries Limited, UltraTech Cement Limited, Grasim Industries Limited, Vodafone Idea Limited and 
other investments.

Principle 1: Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

The Company is committed to adopt high standards of Corporate Governance, adhering to all applicable guidelines 
with transparent disclosures about the Company’s performance. Commitment to ethical and lawful business 
conduct is a fundamental shared value of the Board of Directors, senior management and all employees of the 
Company. 

To enable the functioning of the Company in an ethical manner, the Company has a Code of Conduct for the 
Company’s Directors and Senior Management. A declaration of the Directors and Senior Management’s affirmation 
to this Code of Conduct is communicated to all stakeholders by the Chief Executive Officer in the Annual Report.

In order to ensure compliance with the Code of Conduct, the Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy 
which lays down the process to report any unethical behaviour or violation of the Code of Conduct. The Company 
also follows the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. 
Instances of unethical behaviour, suspected fraud or any violation can be reported to the management by 
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any employee. Sufficient measures have been put in place to safeguard employees, who report any unethical 
behaviour, against victimization. There is also a provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
in exceptional cases. However, no Whistle Blower Complaint was received by the Company during the year ended 
31st March, 2020.

So far investor complaints are concerned, during the Financial Year 2019-2020, 4 such complaints were received 
from the shareholders and all of them had been duly resolved promptly.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide products and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability 
throughout their life cycle

The Company is a holding and investment Company and is not involved in any manufacturing activity or services 
under the purview of BRR.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees

The capability of the Company’s talent pool is surmised on a work culture that nurtures quality talent and 
promotes a causative work environment combining the need to focus on performance and results with a caring 
and compassionate work ethics.

As on 31st March, 2020, the Company had a total of four permanent employees. There is no women employee on 
the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2020. All employees are hired on a permanent basis. The Company did 
not have any employees with disabilities and neither have any recognised employee association.

The Company considers its employees an integral pillar of its success and continually endeavours to attract 
qualified personnel and invest in their growth and development. The Company regularly engages its employees, 
conducts learning and development programs internally and also by way of participation at various Seminars/
Workshops and provide them opportunities to gain wider exposure. 

The Company does not use/involve child labour, forced labour or any form of involuntary labour, paid or 
unpaid. There have been no instances of sexual harassment and/or discriminatory employment. The Company 
has not received any complaint relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment or 
discriminatory employment and as such none were pending as on 31st March, 2020.

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially 
those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized

The Company is an equal opportunity provider and ensures that its practices are based on merit, irrespective 
of the person’s ethnic background or gender. These are updated on yearly basis and are in line with the market 
benchmarks. In addition, the Company practices affirmative actions and ensures that there is no discrimination of 
any type against socially disadvantaged sections or vulnerable and marginalised persons.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights

The Company ensures strict compliance with all applicable laws of the land that pertain to human rights and is 
dedicated to safeguarding the human rights of all its employees. The Company did not receive any complaint 
relating to violation of human rights during the Financial Year 2019-2020.

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment

The Company is dedicated to manage its business in a manner that preserves the environment. As a holding and 
investment Company with no direct business operations and a small number of employees, the Company does not 
have any significant direct environmental impact but it commits itself to ensure to reduce wastage of electricity, 
office stationaries, water etc.
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Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible 
manner

While pursuing policy advocacy, the Company ensures that its advocacy position is consistent with this Policy and 
to the extent possible, the trade and industry chambers and associations and other such collective platforms be 
utilized to undertake such policy advocacy.

As a corporate citizen, the Company operates within the democratic setup and constitutional framework. The 
Company is a member of Indian Chamber of Commerce and Industry (ICC) and The Federation of Indian Chambers 
of Commerce and Industry (FICCI). The Company, being a part of various chambers and associations strives to 
make recommendations/representations, as and when needed in the larger national interest, before regulators 
and associations for advancement and improvement of the businesses it operates in. 

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

The vision and philosophy of Late Shri B. K. Birla guide the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities of the 
Company which is now being taken further by Smt. Rajashree Birla, Chairperson of the Company.

The Company has always been known for its tradition of philanthropy and community service long before it was 
even mandated under the Companies Act, 2013. The Company continues with its philosophy to reach out to the 
community by supporting service-oriented philanthropic institutions. The Company is guided by its Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy already in force for inclusive growth and equitable development.

The Company further believes that the true and full measure of growth, success and progress lies beyond balance 
sheets or conventional economic indices. It is best reflected in the difference that business and industry make to 
the lives of people.

During the Financial Year 2019-2020, under Section 135 (Schedule VII) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company 
has spent Rs. 10 Lakhs through a Trust engaged in the field of providing education and medical facilities to the 
villagers in rural areas which in turn helps them in their social and economic upliftment.

For more information, refer to the Annual Report on CSR activities as contained in the Annual Report 2019-2020.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible 
manner

The Company being merely an investment and holding Company does not have any direct customers or consumers 
under the scope of this BRR. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MDA) REPORT

This Management Discussion and Analysis Report is framed in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

1. Industry Structure and Developments

 Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) bring in diversity and efficiency to the financial sector.  In the 
recent past, NBFCs have played increasingly important role in resource mobilisation and credit intermediation, 
thereby helping commercial sector to make up for low bank credit growth. The Reserve Bank and the 
Government have taken several measures to address various challenges by enhancing systemic liquidity and 
strengthening the governance and risk management framework of NBFCs. 

 The unprecedented outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic impacted the global economy and human life, making 
it a very challenging environment for all the businesses. The changes forced on people and businesses by 
the pandemic are likely to last for some time and established ways of doing business may undergo changes 
leading to new ways of working. The Company has been able to successfully manage immediate challenges of 
re-establishing normalcy in business operations and is in the process of assessing the long-term implications 
and opportunities that may emerge from this situation.

2. Opportunities and threats

 Your Company holds significant investments in Equity Shares of various diversified companies like Century 
Textiles and Industries Limited, Grasim Industries Limited, Hindalco Industries Limited, UltraTech Cement 
Limited, Vodafone Idea Limited, Kesoram Industries Limited etc. Therefore the business prospects of the 
Company largely depend on the business prospects and performance of its investee companies. As a long-
term strategy, the Company is looking forward for a sustainable growth in its investee companies in the 
coming years which would enhance the shareholder’s value.

3. Segment–wise or product-wise performance

 The main business of the Company is investment and financing activity and all these activities are carried 
out within India. As such there are no separate reportable segments or product wise performance reports 
applicable to the Company.

4. Outlook

 The Company though is a Non-Banking Finance Company but it has submitted an application for registration 
as a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) in terms of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016. As required by RBI, the Company is in the process of submitting a fresh application in this regard.

 The Company continues to hold significant strategic investments in various diversified and renowned 
companies as stated above. The Company will continue to focus on making long-term strategic investments 
besides consolidating existing investments through further investments in the Group Companies. Besides, 
the Company is also expanding its horizon by entering into the field of financing activities.

5. Risks and concerns

 Being an Investment and Finance Company, the risk of the Company is basically attached to the performance 
of investee companies which are engaged in diversified fields. The Company has robust risk management and 
monitoring systems in place to minimise the impact of such risks. 
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6. Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

 The Company believes that a strong internal control framework is an important pillar of Corporate 
Governance. The Company has in place adequate internal control system which ensure orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, safeguarding of its assets and accuracy and completeness of accounting records, 
timely preparation of reliable financial information and various regulatory and statutory compliances.

7. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance

 The following review are intended to convey Management’s perspective on the financial and operating 
performance of the Company during the Financial Year 2019-20. This Report should be read in conjunction 
with the Company’s financial statements and other information included in this Annual Report.

 The Company has recorded very satisfactory performance during the Financial Year 2019-20 on Standalone 
as well as Consolidated basis. Below is a brief quantitative overview of the financial and operational 
performance of your Company during the reporting period.

A. Standalone Results:

 The Company has recorded a very satisfactory performance during the year under review. The Company has 
received during the year, Income by way of Dividend to the tune of ` 4,974.10 Lakhs, Interest of ` 9,849.68 
Lakhs, Profit from sale of Investments of ` 101.41 Lakhs, and Rental Income of ` 348.09 Lakhs. The total 
income is ` 15,273.29 Lakhs as against total income of ` 4,852.34 Lakhs in the previous year. The Profit 
before depreciation and tax is ` 9,926.07 Lakhs. After providing for depreciation of ` 39.17 Lakhs and tax of  
` 1,758.18 Lakhs, the Net Profit is ` 8,108.72 Lakhs as against ` 3,339.47 Lakhs in the previous year, an 
increase of around 142.81%.

B. Consolidated Results:

 The Company has recorded an impressive performance during the year under review on consolidated as 
well. The Company has received during the year, Income by way of Dividend to the tune of ` 2,274.49 Lakhs, 
Interest of ̀  9,850.34 Lakhs, Profit from sale of Investments of ̀  100.28 Lakhs, and Rental Income of ̀  354.47 
Lakhs. The total income is ` 12,579.59 Lakhs as against total income of ` 2,517.99 Lakhs in the previous year. 
The Consolidated Profit before depreciation and tax is ` 7,201.70 Lakhs. After providing for depreciation of  
` 39.70 Lakhs and tax of ` 1,759.63 Lakhs, the Consolidated Net Profit but before Share of profit from 
Associate is ` 5,402.37 Lakhs. Share of Profit from an Associate is ` 12,092.16 Lakhs and Consolidated Profit 
after tax is ` 17,494.53 Lakhs as against ` 2,01,722.84 Lakhs in the previous year, a decrease of around 
91.32%. This was basically on account of strategic demerger of a part of business by one of our Associate 
Company.

8. Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people 
employed

 Employees’ relations continued to be harmonious throughout the year with the management. Number of 
employees on roll was 4 as on 31st March, 2020 against 5 as at the end of previous year.

 Your Company believes that, its employees are its greatest strength and the most valuable asset. The 
management and staff have a mutual faith and trust. The Company provides equal opportunity to all 
employees and strives to inculcate high performance culture in the organisation.
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9. Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous 
financial year) in key financial ratios, alongwith detailed explanations thereof.

Particulars   2019-20        2018-19 
(i) Interest Coverage Ratio 3.29 2.38
(ii) Debt Equity Ratio                                                                  0.10 0.06
(iii) Operating Profit Margin (%)                                                  64.60 53.56
(iv) Net Profit Margin (%)                                                           53.09 68.82
(v) Return on Networth 5.39 6.74

Interest Coverage ratio has increased by 38.23% on account of better profitability and Debt Equity Ratio has 
increased by 66.66% on account of increase in financing activities by the Company.
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The Company has been practicing the principles of good Corporate Governance, which comprise all activities that 
result in the control of the company in a regulated manner, aiming to achieve transparent, accountable and fair 
management.

The details of Corporate Governance compliance by the company pursuant to the provisions contained in the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as under:

A.  Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance pertains to systems, by which companies are directed and controlled, keeping in mind 
long-term interest of Stakeholders. In sum, Corporate Governance is to achieve business excellence and dedicate 
itself to transparency in all its dealings and places and business efforts. The Company firmly believes in the spirit of 
Corporate Governance and the same has influenced its decisions and policies long before the guidelines became 
mandatory.  

B. Board of Directors

(i) Composition of the Board:

The Board of Directors comprises of seven members consisting of all Non-Executive Directors who account 
for hundred percent of the Board strength as against minimum requirement of fifty percent as per the listing 
agreement.  The Non-Executive Directors are eminent professionals/experts drawn from amongst persons with 
experience in business and industry, finance and law. The composition of the Board and other particulars are as 
under:-

Directors Executive/
Non-Executive/ 

Independent

No. of outside Directorships 
held 

No. of Outside Committees 
# (excluding**)

Domestic Companies  
Public Private Member Chairman

Smt. Rajashree Birla
(DIN:00022995)

Non-Executive 6 7 - -

Shri. D. K.Mantri
(DIN: 00075664)

Non- Executive 3 16 - -

Shri A. K. Kothari
(DIN: 00051900)

Non-Executive* 4 1 4 -

Shri A. V. Jalan  
(DIN: 01455782)

Non-Executive 2 12 - -

Shri Giriraj Maheswari 
(DIN: 00796252)

Non-Executive* 4 4 1 -

Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala
(DIN: 01055000)

Non-Executive* 3 2 4 1

Smt. Vanita Bhargava
(DIN: 07156852)

Non-Executive* 3 - 2 -

#  Only the two committees viz., the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are 
considered for this purpose.

*  Also independent
**  Private companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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–   None of the Directors of the Company hold any Equity Shares in the Company except Shri D. K. Mantri – 100 
Equity Shares and Shri A. K. Kothari – 70 Equity Shares.

–    The Non-Executive Directors have no material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company in 
their personal capacity.

(ii) Details of sitting fees paid to Directors:  (All figures in ` )

Name of the Directors Sitting fees paid for attending Meetings of the  
Board and/or Committee thereof

Smt. Rajashree Birla      60,000
Shri D.K. Mantri  1,60,000
Shri A. K. Kothari         2,00,000
Shri A.V. Jalan             2,20,000
Shri Giriraj Maheswari   2,00,000
Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala   1,80,000
Smt. Vanita Bhargava      20,000

Note :  1.  No commission is paid to any of the Directors.

(iii) Number of Board Meetings held and attended by the Directors :

 a) 6 meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year ended 31st March, 2020.  These were 
held on:

  (1) 30-05-2019 (2) 10-07-2019 (3) 14-08-2019
  (4)  14-11-2019   (5) 09-01-2020   (6) 13-02-2020 

 b)  The attendance record of each of the Directors at the Board Meetings during the year ended on 31st 
March, 2020 and of the last Annual General Meeting is as under:-   

Directors No. of Board Meetings Attended    Attendance at the last AGM
Smt. Rajashree Birla 3 No
Shri D. K. Mantri 4 No
Shri A. K. Kothari 4 No
Shri A. V. Jalan 5 Yes
Shri Giriraj Maheswari 4 No
Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala 5 Yes
Smt. Vanita Bhargava 1 No

 (c)    Agenda and Notes on Agenda are circulated to the Directors, in advance. All material information is 
incorporated in the Agenda and/or the said Notes for facilitating  meaningful  and  focused discussions 
at the meeting.  Where it is not practicable to attach any  document to the Notes on Agenda, the same 
is tabled before the meeting.

 (d)   Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors

  The following is the list of core skills identified by the Board as required in the context of the Company’s 
business and that the said skills are available with the Board Members:

  i. Knowledge – understand the Company’s business, policies and culture, major risks/threats and 
potential opportunities and knowledge of the business in which the Company operates,
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  ii. Behavioral Skills-attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to contribute 
effectively to the growth of the Company,

  iii. Strategic thinking and decisions making,
  iv. Financial and Management skills,
  v. Technical skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s business.

In the table below, the specific areas of focus & expertise of individual Board members have been highlighted.

Name of Director Skills/ Expertise/ Competencies of the Board of Directors
Understanding 

Company’s overall 
business model, 

policies and culture

Attributes and 
Competencies 

to use 
knowledge 
for effective 

growth

Strategic 
thinking 

and 
decisions 
making

Financial and 
Management 

skills

 Technical Skills 
and expertise 

knowledge 
of Company’s 

business

Smt. Rajashree Birla     
Shri D. K. Mantri     
Shri A. K. Kothari     
Shri A. V. Jalan     
Shri Giriraj Maheswari     

Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala     
Smt. Vanita Bhargava     

 (e)  A separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 14th November, 2019. 
Shri A. K. Kothari and Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala were present at the said meeting. The Board confirms 
that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and that they are independent of the management.

 (f)  Name of other listed entities where Directors of the Company are Directors and the category of 
Directorship :

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director Name of listed entities in which the 
concerned Director is a Director

Category of Directorship

1. Smt. Rajashree Birla Grasim Industries Limited Non- Executive Non- Independent
Hindalco Industries Limited Non- Executive Non- Independent
Ultratech Cement Limited Non- Executive Non- Independent
Century Enka Limited Non- Executive Non- Independent
Century Textiles and Industries Limited Non- Executive Non- Independent

2. Shri D. K. Mantri - -
3. Shri A. K. Kothari Albert David Limited Executive Chairman

Gillanders Arbuthnot & Co. Limited Non-Executive Chairman
4. Shri A. V. Jalan Mangalam Cement Limited Executive Director
5. Shri Giriraj Maheswari Kajal Synthetics and Silk Mills Limited Independent Director
6. Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala Century Textiles and Industries Limited Independent Director

Hindalco Industries Limited Independent Director
7. Smt. Vanita Bhargava GFL Limited Independent Director

Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited Independent Director
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C.   Code of Conduct

The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the members of the Board of Directors including 
Independent Directors and Senior Management Personnel for avoidance of conflict of interest.  It has 
received from all of them the necessary declarations affirming compliance with Code of Conduct for the 
year 2019-20.  There were no material financial and commercial transactions during the year in which the 
Senior Management personnel had personal interest, which would lead to potential conflict of interest of the 
Company.  The Code of Conduct is available on Company’s website.

D. Audit Committee

 (i) The Audit Committee is comprised of five Non-Executive directors viz.
  (1)  Shri A. K. Kothari - Chairman 
  (2)  Shri A.V. Jalan 
  (3)  Shri Giriraj Maheswari (with effect from 30-05-2019) 
  (4)  Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala (with effect from 01-11-2019) 
  (5)  Smt. Vanita Bhargava (with effect from 01-11-2019)

  Shri D. K. Mantri ceased to be the Chairman and a member of the Audit Committee due to his cessation 
as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 25-09-2019.

  Shri A. K. Kothari, Shri Giriraj Maheswari, Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala and Smt. Vanita Bhargava are all 
Independent Non- Executive Directors.

 (ii) Audit Committee meetings were held on 29-05-2019, 13-08-2019, 14-11-2019 and 13-02-2020. The 
attendance record of the Audit Committee Members is as under:-

Name of the Audit Committee Members                         No. of meeting attended
Shri D.K. Mantri (upto 25-09-2019) 2
Shri A. K. Kothari                             3
Shri A.V. Jalan 2
Shri Giriraj Maheswari                     2
Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala                   2
Smt. Vanita Bhargava                       0

 (iii)  At the invitation of the Company, Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer and Company Secretary who is acting as Secretary of the Audit Committee also 
attended the Audit Committee meetings to answer and clarify queries raised at the said meetings.

 (iv) The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers the matters specified for Audit 
Committees under Regulation 18(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as well as Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

E.    Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 In continuation of the practices of good Corporate Governance, the Board has constituted Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of Directors of the Company.
 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is comprised of five Non-Executive Directors viz.
 (1)  Shri A. K. Kothari - Chairman 
 (2)  Shri A.V. Jalan 
 (3)  Shri Giriraj Maheswari (with effect from 30-05-2019) 
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 (4)  Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala (with effect from 14-11-2019) 
 (5)  Smt. Vanita Bhargava (with effect from 14-11-2019)

 Shri D. K. Mantri ceased to be the Chairman and member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
due to his cessation as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 25-09-2019.

 Shri A. K. Kothari, Shri Giriraj Maheswari, Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala and Smt. Vanita  Bhargava are all Independent 
Non- Executive Directors.

 (ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held on 11-04-2019, 10-07-2019, 13-08-
2019, 14-11-2019  and 09-01-2020. The attendance record of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee Members is as under:-

Name of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Members                         No. of meeting attended
Shri D.K. Mantri (upto 25-09-2019) 3
Shri A. K. Kothari                              5
Shri A.V. Jalan 4
Shri Giriraj Maheswari                      2
Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala                    0
Smt. Vanita Bhargava                        0

 The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee cover all the areas mentioned 
under Regulation 19(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been approved by the Board of Directors. The Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy is attached as Annexure B to the Boards’ Report and is available on the Company website 
http://pilaniinvestment.com/images/Pilani-Nomination%20and%20Remuneration%20Policy%2New.pdf.

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Annual Performance evaluation was 
carried out for the financial year 2019-20 by the Board in respect of its own performance, the Directors 
individually including Independent Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of all the Committees of 
the Company. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

F.    Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee)

 The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) comprising of 
Smt. Rajashree Birla (Chairperson), Shri D. K. Mantri (upto 25-09-2019), Shri A. K. Kothari, Shri A. V. Jalan and 
Shri Giriraj Maheswari.  The said committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating and 
recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities 
to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring and implementation of the framework of the CSR policy 
and recommending the amount to be spent on CSR activities. The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy as 
recommended by the CSR Committee has been approved by the Board of Directors. The Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy is attached as Annexure -  C to the Boards’ Report and is available on the Company 
website www.pilaniinvestment.com/images/Pilani CSR Policy.pdf. The details of CSR Expenditure is attached 
as Annexure - D to the Board’s Report.

 The terms of reference of this Committee is to comply with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 and all other relevant compliances.
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 During the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020, only one meeting was held on 13-02-2020 and two 
Committee members viz. Shri Giriraj Maheswari and Shri A. V. Jalan were present at the aforesaid meeting.

 Shri A. K. Kothari and Shri Giriraj Maheswari are all Independent Non- Executive Directors.

G.   Stakeholders Relationship Committee

 (i)  The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is comprised of six Non-Executive Directors viz.
  (1)  Shri D. K. Mantri - Chairman (with effect from 14-11-2019)
  (2)  Shri A. K. Kothari
  (3)  Shri A.V. Jalan 
  (4)  Shri Giriraj Maheswari 
  (5)  Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala (with effect from 14-11-2019) 
  (6)  Smt. Vanita Bhargava (with effect from 14-11-2019)

  Shri D. K. Mantri ceased to be the Chairman and member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
due to his cessation as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 25-09-2019. However, 
again subsequent to his appointment as an Additional Director in the capacity of Non-Executive/
Non-Independent Director he has again been appointed as a member and Chairman of the aforesaid 
Committee. 

  Shri A. K. Kothari, Shri Giriraj Maheswari, Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala and Smt. Vanita  Bhargava are all 
Independent Non- Executive Directors. 

  Shri R. S. Kashyap, Company Secretary has been designated as the Compliance Officer.  
 (ii)  The Committee deals with the following issues:

  a) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to 
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 
issue of new/duplicate certificates, general  meetings etc.

  b) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

  c) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various 
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

  d) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum 
of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory 
notices by the shareholders of the company.

   During the year ended 31st March, 2020, 4 investor complaint/query were received and as on 
31st March, 2020 there was no complaint/query pending for reply.  

   During the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020, only one meeting was held on 13-02-2020 
and four Committee members viz. Shri D. K. Mantri, Shri A. V. Jalan, Shri Giriraj Maheswari and 
Shri Yazdi P. Dandiwala were present at the aforesaid meeting.

H. Other Committees

 As per the regulations of Reserve Bank of India for NBFC Companies, the Company  has constituted three 
other committees namely Risk Management Committee, ALM Committee and Investment and Finance 
Committee.
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I.    General Body Meetings 

 Details  of  Annual   General  Meetings / Extra  Ordinary  General  Meetings  during the  preceding three years 
are as under :

Year Date Type Location Time
2016-2017        24.08.2017   AGM 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700001                 3.00 P.M.
2017-2018        14.09.2018  AGM 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700001                 3.00 P.M.
2018-2019        25.09.2019  AGM 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700001                 3.00 P.M.

Whether any special resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs No
Whether special resolutions were put through postal ballot last year ? No
Are votes proposed to be conducted through postal ballot this year? No

J.    Disclosures

 (i) There are no materially significant transactions with related parties viz. Promoters, Directors or the 
Management, their subsidiaries or relatives conflicting with Company’s interest except as stated in 
Note No 39 of Notes to Financial Statement.

 (ii)    No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory 
authority on any matter related to Capital Markets during the last three years except imposing a fine by 
NSE and BSE for non -compliance of a provision pertaining to the Composition of Board.

 (iii) The Company has adopted and complied with mandatory requirements relating to Corporate Governance 
norms as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 (iv) The Company has in place Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) which is also available on the 
Company’s website http://pilaniinvestment.com/images/Pilani-Whistle Blower Policy.pdf. No 
personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee to lodge their grievances, if any.

 (v) Policy on Material Subsidiaries and Policy on Related Party Transactions had been formulated and 
uploaded on the Company’s website  www.pilaniinvestment.com/images/Pilani- Policy on Material 
Subsidiary.pdf. and www.pilaniinvestment.com/images/Pilani- RPT Policy.pdf respectively.

 (vi) A Board Performance Evaluation Policy has also been formulated and uploaded on the Company’s 
website www.pilaniinvestment.com/images/Pilani- Board Performance Evaluation Policy.pdf .

 (vii) The Company has nothing to report as required under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

 (viii) Details of Familiarization/ Training program of Independent Director are available on the Company’s 
website www.pilaniinvestment.com/images/Familarisation Programme to Independent Directors.pdf .

 (ix) The Company has nothing to report with respect to commodity price risks and commodity hedging 
activities.

 (x) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement 
as specified under Regulation 32(7A) : Not applicable.

 (xi) A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice have been obtained and annexed with this Report 
confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Director of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such Statutory Authority.

 (xii) During the financial year 2019-20, the Board has accepted all the recommendations of its Committees.
 (xiii) Details with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: Not applicable
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 (xiv) The Company has disclosed about the compliance of regulations in respect of Corporate Governance 
under the Listing Regulations on its website www.pilaniinvestment.com.

 (xv) Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the 
Statutory Auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is 
a part is given below:

` In Lakhs
  Payment to Statutory Auditors  FY 2019-2020
  Audit Fees 4.09
  For Quarterly Review 1.95
  Other Services     1.95
  Reimbursement of expenses  1.41
          Total                                                                     9.40

 (xvi) The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company have certified to the 
Board with regard to the compliances made by them in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and their Certificate forms a part of this 
Annual Report.

K. Means of Communication

 (i)  Quarterly results :

  Which newspaper normally published in : The Financial Express, Kolkata 
     and Dainik Statesman, Kolkata

 (ii)  Half-yearly report sent to each
  household of Shareholders : No

 (iii)  Any website, where displayed : Yes – www.pilaniinvestment.com.

 (v) Whether Management Discussion & 
  Analysis is a part of Annual Report : Yes

L.    Management Discussion & Analysis Report

 Your Company is an Investment and Finance Company and risk of the company consists  principally of 
investment in shares and securities, loans and trade accounts receivable and investment in Mutual Funds.  
Internal control and monitoring systems are periodically evaluated to manage and minimize the risk.

 The Company is fully committed to ensuring an effective internal control environment and periodically 
checks the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system. However, a detailed Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report is attached as an Annexure – H  to the Board’s Report.

M. General Shareholder Information
 (i) Annual General Meeting to be held:
  Day & Date :   Friday, 11th September, 2020
  Venue :  Through Video Conferencing(“VC”) or 
                                                                 Other Audio -Visual Means (“OAVM”)
  Time  :   3.00 P.M.
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 (ii)  Financial Calendar (tentative) for the year 2020-21:
  First Quarterly Results :   On or before 14th August, 2020
  Second Quarterly Results :   On or before 14th November, 2020
  Third Quarterly Results :   On or before 14th February, 2021
  Fourth Quarterly Results /Audited Yearly 
  Results for the Year ended 31st March, 2021 :   Before end of May, 2021

 (iii)   Date of Book Closure :  Saturday, 5th September, 2020 to 
         Friday, 11th September, 2020 
     (Both days inclusive)

 (iv)  Date of Dividend payment :    On or after 17th September, 2020

 (v)  Information pertaining to the Stock Exchanges  :

  (a)   The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at the following Stock Exchanges :

   (i)   National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 
                                 Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
    Mumbai - 400051
    (Scrip Code: PILANIINVS)

   (ii)  BSE Limited,  
                               Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
                               Mumbai – 400001
    (Scrip Code: 539883)

    Note: Listing fees for the year 2020-21 have been paid to both the Stock Exchanges.

  (b)  ISIN No. for the Company’s ordinary shares in Demat Form: INE 417C01014

  (c) Depository Connectivity : NSDL and CDSL

  (d) Registrar and Transfer Agent :
      Niche Technologies Private Limited., 
      3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata - 700017
      Phone Nos. (033) 2280 6616/6617
      E-mail: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

  (e) Market Price Data

                     The details of monthly  highest and lowest closing quotations of the equity shares of the Company 
at the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Ltd. during the financial year 2019-2020 
are as under:
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   Quotation at National Stock Exchange of India Limited:

Month        High  ` Low   ` Volume (In Nos.)
Apr-2019 2643 2154 124420
May-2019 2571 2194 118989
June-2019 2570 1964 75595
July-2019 2270 1903 59351
Aug-2019 2100 1800 107653
Sept-2019 2050 1817 66872
Oct-2019 2039 1804 94627
Nov-2019 1880 1725 85325
Dec-2019 1809 1657 79622
Jan-2020 1850 1707 104688
Feb-2020 1812 1580 79411
Mar-2020 1700 912 97469

   Quotation at BSE Limited:

Month        High  ` Low   ` Volume (In Nos.)
Apr-2019 2627 2160 58252
May-2019 2570 2209 49154
Jun-2019 2570 2150 39580
Jul-2019 2304 1910 45403
Aug-2019 2010 1800 35386
Sept-2019 2050 1815 34998
Oct-2019 2035 1810 62939
Nov-2019 1900 1747 40781
Dec-2019 1844 1690 51093
Jan-2020 1850 1720 61642
Feb-2020 1810 1496 39194
Mar-2020 1700 910 26366

   Performance in comparision to broad based indices :

Pilani Investment vs BSE Sensex
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(f) Share Transfer System for physical Shares :

 Share transfers are generally registered within a period of 30 days from the date of receipt provided the 
documents  are  complete  in  all  respects.  All share transfers are ratified by the Board.  As per directives 
issued by SEBI, it is compulsory to trade in the Company’s equity shares in dematerialized form. Effective 
1st April, 2019, transfer of shares in physical form has ceased. Request for transmission of shares and 
dematerialization of shares will continue to be accepted.

 (vi)  Distribution of Shareholding:

  Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2020

  (a) According to Number of Equity Shares

Sl. No No. of Equity Shares Held     No. of  Folios No. of Shares % of Share holding
1 Upto 500                    5936  3,58,815  4.54
2 501 to 1,000              106 79,465 1.00
3 1,001 to 2,000 60 86,687 1.09
4 2,001 to 3,000           20 51,892 0.66
5 3,001 to 4,000           9 32,465 0.41
6 4,001 to 5,000 6 27,367 0.35
7 5,001 to 10,000 11 73,101 0.92
8 10,001 to 20,000         14    2,20,054 2.79
9 20,001 to 50,000         8   2,06,044 2.60
10 50,001 to 1,00,000      6   4,26,482 5.40
11 1,00,001 and above 5 63,46,378  80.24

Total 6181  79,08,750 100.00

  (b)   Categories of Shareholding :

Sl. No. Category No. of Folios % of Folios No. of 
Shares held

% of share  
holding

1 Promoters                          8 0.13   45,51,416  57.55
2 Resident Individuals 5,881 95.15     6,87,386  8.69
3 Private Corporate Bodies  167 2.70  23,85,823  30.17
4

     
Financial Institutions /        
Nationalised Banks            

5 0.08   1,80,303   2.28

5 Mutual Funds & Insurance 0 0 0 0
6 FIIS   /FPI                          1 0.01 22,950 0.29
7 NRI and OCBs                    68 1.10 20,964 0.27
8 Others                                 49 0.80 43,968 0.55
9 IEPF Authority                    2 0.03 15,940 0.20

Total 6,181 100.00      79,08,750           100.00
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 (vii)   Dematerialization of shareholding and liquidity:

  As per SEBI’s guidelines, your company’s shares are compulsorily traded in Dematerialized Form for all 
the investors with effect from 27th November, 2001. As on  31st  March, 2020,  78,47,424  Company’s   
Equity   shares  representing 99.22% of the Company’s total Equity Shares were held in dematerialized 
form and balance 61,326 Equity Shares representing 0.78% were held in physical form. 

 (vii)  Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact 
on equity: NIL

 (viii)  Contact address for Shares and Share related matters:

  For any assistance regarding Share transfers and transmission, change of address, duplicate/missing 
Share Certificates, Demat, redressal of Complaints and Grievances, non-receipt of dividends and other 
matters, please write to or contact the Share Department of the Company at the address given below :

  Shri R. S. Kashyap, Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited, Birla Building, 11th Floor, 9/1 
R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001. Phone: - 033- 40823700 /2220 0600.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Rajashree Birla D. K. Mantri
 Chairperson Director
July 30, 2020  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
      Place : Mumbai           Place : Kolkata
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To the Members of 
Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
Birla Building , 9/1 R.N. Mukherjee Road
Kolkata - 700001.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 
representations made by the Directors and management, we certify that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
Companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

 K. C. Dhanuka & Co.
Company Secretaries

 K. C. Dhanuka
Proprietor

Kolkata FCS-2204, CP-1247
July 28, 2020 UDIN:F002204B000487251

DECLARATION

The Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed their compliance of the ‘Code of 
Conduct for Members of the Board and Senior Management’ for the year 2019 - 20 in terms of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

          

Kolkata          R. P. Pansari
July 30, 2020                                         Chief Executive Officer
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CEO/CFO Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We hereby certify to the Board that :-

a.   We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year 2019-20 
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief :-

 i.  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading.

 ii.  these statements, together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b.     There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the financial year 2019-20 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of 
conduct.

c. We accept the responsibility of establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and 
we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation 
of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to 
rectify these deficiencies.

d.  We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee

 i. there have not been significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the 
said financial year;

 ii. there have not been significant changes in accounting policies during the said financial year and 
that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements ; and

 iii. there has not been instances of significant fraud of which we  have become aware and the 
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Kolkata J. K. Singhania R. P. Pansari
July 30, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
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Certificate of Compliance with the Corporate Governance

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on Compliance with the Corporate Governance Requirements under SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To 
The Members of Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited,
9/1, R N Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata - 700001  

1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited 
(hereinafter the "Company”), contains details as required by the provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 
(“the Listing Regulations”) (‘Applicable criteria’) with respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended 
March 31, 2020. This report is required by the Company for annual submission to the Stock Exchange and to 
be sent to the Shareholders of the Company.

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of Listing Regulations

2. The compliance with the terms and conditions contained in the corporate governance is the responsibility 
of the Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting 
records and documents.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression 
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable 
assurance whether the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
the Listing Regulations for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

5. We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special 
Purposes (Revised 2016) (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(‘ICAI’). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics 
issued by ICAI.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, 
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other 
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

7. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, we certify 
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-
mentioned Listing Regulations.

8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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Restriction on use

9. The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable 
the Company to comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any 
other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of 
care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it 
may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Vidyarthi & Sons 
Chartered Accountants
 Firm Reg. No.000112C

Amit S. Vidyarthi
Partner

Membership No.F-078296
Gwalior, July 30, 2020 UDIN : 20078296AAAACG5023
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To the Members of 
Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited  

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Pilani Investment and Industries 
Corporation Limited  (“the Company”), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, the 
standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the standalone Statement of 
Cash Flows and the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards  prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, 
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
31st March 2020,and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 
ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilty for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on  these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key 
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 
Valuation of Investments 
As per provisions of Indian Accounting Standards 
the Company’s Investments excluding investments 
in Subsidiaries and Associates are measured at 
fair value at each reporting date and this policy of 
measuring investments at fair value have significant 
impact on the Company’s financial results.  
The valuation is performed by the Company using a 
fair value hierarchy as applicable below:
•	 Level 1: valuations based on quoted prices 

(unadjusted) in active markets.

We understood and tested the key controls around the 
valuation processes including the independent price 
verification and valuation governance controls. We 
found these key controls were designed, implemented 
and operated effectively, and therefore determined that 
we could place reliance on these key controls for the 
purposes of our audit.
Further, we assessed the valuation of all individual 
investments to determine whether the valuations 
performed by the Company were within a predefined 
tolerable differences threshold.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 

•	 Level 2: valuations based on other than quoted 
prices included within level 1 that are observable 
either directly or indirectly.

•	 Level 3 : valuations based on unobservable inputs 
for the asset. 

The valuation of investments is inherently subjective 
– most predominantly for the level 2 and level 3 
investments since these are valued using inputs 
other than quoted prices in an active market.
Key inputs used in the valuation of individual 
level 2 investments are market price of quoted 
investments, illiquidity discount etc. In addition, the 
Company determines whether objective evidence 
of impairment exists for individual investments.

As part of these audit procedures, we assessed the 
accuracy of key inputs used in the valuation including 
observable and non-observable inputs.
We also evaluated the Company’s assessment whether 
objective evidence of impairment exists for individual 
investments.
Based on these procedures, we have not noted any 
material differences outside the predefined tolerable 
differences threshold.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report, for example, Corporate Overview, Key Highlights, Directors Report, 
Report on Corporate Governance, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
etc., but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements  

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the  Act with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity  of the Company 
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding  the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the  standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account;

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2020 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March 2020 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our 
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness on the Company’s 
internal financial control over financial reporting.

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to 
its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

 (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses;

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B”,  a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

For Vidyarthi & Sons 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.000112C

Amit S. Vidyarthi
Partner

Membership No.F-078296
Gwalior, July 30, 2020  UDIN : 20078296AAAACE3324



72 73

Statutory Reports Standalone FinancialsPilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019-20 Consolidated Financials

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report 
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting of Pilani Investment and Industries 
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st  March  2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind 
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI  and the Standards 
on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

Annexure – ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report
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company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,  the Company has, 
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on the criteria 
for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vidyarthi & Sons 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.000112C

Amit S. Vidyarthi
Partner

Membership No.F-078296
Gwalior, July 30, 2020  UDIN : 20078296AAAACE3324
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date to the members of PILANI INVESTMENT AND INDUSTRIES CORPORATION LIMITED as at and for the 
year ended March 31, 2020.)

1) In respect of the Company’s fixed assets, we report that: 

 a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

 b. Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 c. According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the title deeds of 
immovable properties included in the fixed assets are held in the name of the Company.

2) The Company’s business does not involve inventories and accordingly, the requirements under clause (ii) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the company.

3) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books 
of account, the company has, during the year, not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, 
Limited liability partnerships, Firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and 
providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

5) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Section 73 to 76 of the Act and 
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Hence, the provisions of clause (v) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

6) To the best of our knowledge and as per information and explanation given to us by the management, the 
Company is not in the business of sale of any goods. Therefore, in our opinion, maintenance of cost records 
as prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act is not applicable to 
the company. Hence clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the company.

7) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

 a. The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with appropriate authorities 
including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues 
applicable to it. The provisions relating to Employees’ State Insurance, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Duty 
of Customs and Duty of Excise are not applicable to the Company.

 b. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Service Tax, 
Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding as at the year end 
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to 
Employees’ State Insurance, Value Added Tax, Sales Tax, Duty of Customs and Duty of Excise are not 
applicable to the Company.

 c. There are no dues in respect of Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess which have not been deposited 
on account of any dispute. The provisions relating to Employees’ State Insurance, Value Added Tax, 
Sales Tax, Duty of Customs and Duty of Excise are not applicable to the Company. The particulars of 
dues of Income Tax as at March 31, 2020 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are 
as follows:

Name of the 
Statute

Nature of Dues Amount
(` in Lacs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where  
Dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income tax on certain 
disallowances, etc.

363.68 lacs 2011-12, 2013-14, 2014-
15, 2017-18 and 2019-20

Deputy Commissioner Income 
Tax Apellate Tribunal, Kolkata
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8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 
in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and government. The Company has 
not issued any debentures.

9) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the company has not raised 
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term loans. 
Hence clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company and is not commented upon.

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come 
across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or 
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

11) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has 
been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Hence 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable and is not commented upon. 

13) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act 2013, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the notes to 
Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under 
review and hence clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the company and is not 
commented upon.

15) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with him as referred to in Section 192 
of the Companies Act, 2013.  Accordingly, clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

16) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company is registered as 
required, under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vidyarthi & Sons 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.000112C

Amit S. Vidyarthi
Partner

Membership No.F-078296
Gwalior, July 30, 2020  UDIN : 20078296AAAACE3324
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(` In Lakhs)
Sl No Particulars Note No.  As at 

31.03.2020
 As at 

31.03.2019
ASSETS :

(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash & cash equivalents 2         358.99           34.02 
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3           42.04           45.60 
(c) Trade receivables 4           83.97           51.56 
(d) Loans 5  141,136.00         108.14 
(e ) Investments 6  342,979.93  466,541.36 
(f) Other financial assets 7      3,370.15                 -   

 487,971.08  466,780.68 
(2) Non-Financial assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 8         438.86                 -   
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 9                 -           640.16 
(c ) Investment property 10         160.59         193.87 
(d) Property, plant and equipment 11           62.78             0.90 
(e ) Other non-financial assets 12           42.12           57.18 

        704.35         892.11 
TOTAL ASSETS  488,675.43  467,672.79 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:
Liabilities

(1) Financial liabilities
(a) Trade payables 13

(i)  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises  and small
      enterprises

                -                   -   

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
      enterprises and small enterprises

        132.57           15.66 

(b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 14    42,000.00    24,500.00 
(c ) Other financial liabilities 15      1,115.38           54.04 

    43,247.95    24,569.70 
(2) Non-financial liabilities :
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 16                 -        1,255.51 
(b) Provisions 17         692.73         185.52 
(c ) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18      8,585.16                 -   
(d ) Other non financial liabilities 19         170.47           45.47 

      9,448.36      1,486.50 
(3) Equity  
(a) Equity share capital 20         790.88         790.88 
(b) Other equity 21  435,188.24  440,825.71 

 435,979.12  441,616.59 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  AND EQUITY  488,675.43  467,672.79 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies 1
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 2 to 56
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
For Vidyarthi & Sons  Rajashree Birla D K Mantri
Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020 
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Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year  ended 31st March, 2020

(` In Lakhs)

Sl 
No

Particulars Note
 No.

 For the year ended 
on 31.03.2020 

 For the year ended 
on 31.03.2019 

 Revenue from operations
(i) Interest income 22   9,849.68   16.35 
(ii) Dividend income 23   4,974.10 4,429.36 
(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 24   101.41 233.76 
(iv) Others 25   348.09 172.09 
(I) Total revenue from operations 15,273.28 4,851.56 
(II) Other income 26  0.01  0.78 
(III) Total income 15,273.29 4,852.34 

 Expenses
(i) Finance costs 27   4,307.26 1,886.25 
(ii) Employee benefit expense 28   138.53 135.18 
(iii) Depreciation and amortization expense 29  39.17   46.20 
(iv) Other expenses 30   921.43 186.03 
(IV) Total expenses   5,406.39 2,253.66 
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax   9,866.90 2,598.68 
VI Exceptional items
VII Profit/(loss) before tax   9,866.90 2,598.68 
VIII Tax expenses 31

1)Current tax   1,438.29   (322.00)
2)MAT credit entitlement  69.08 -
3)Deferred tax (7.16)   (418.79)
4)Income tax for earlier year   257.97 -

  1,758.18   (740.79)
IX Profit/(loss) for the year   8,108.72 3,339.47 
X Other comprehensive income 32

A(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   2,070.05   (76,354.07)
A(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss
  9,232.48   (647.59)

Other comprehensive income  (7,162.43)   (75,706.48)
XI Total comprehensive income for the year 

(comprising profit/(loss) and other comprehensive 
income for the year)

  946.29   (72,367.01)

XII Earnings per equity share (FV ` 10/-) 33
1) Basic (`)   102.53   42.22 
2) Diluted (`)   102.53   42.22 

Summary of significant accounting policies 1
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 2 to 56
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
For Vidyarthi & Sons  Rajashree Birla D K Mantri
Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  For the year ended 
on 31.03.2020 

 For the year ended 
on 31.03.2019 

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before Tax   9,866.90 2,598.68 
Adjustements for:
Depreciation   39.17  46.20 
Net gain on fair value changes   (0.78)      (16.86)
Finance cost   4,307.26   1,886.25 
Operating profit before working capital changes 14,212.55   4,514.27 
Changes in working capital:
Trade receivables (32.41) (27.01)
Loans and other advances  (144,382.94)    113.88 
Trade and other payables   1,812.50    (19.25)

 (128,390.30)      4,581.89 
Direct tax paid (7,660.10)  (956.11)
Net Cash Flow From/(Used In) operating activities  (136,050.40) 3,625.78 
B. Cash flow from investment activities
Bank deposits other than cash and cash equivalents      3.56  (2.89)
Sale/(Purchase) of investments (Net)     125,634.00  (23,829.51)
Purchase of property, plant and equipments (67.76)   (0.69)
Net cash flow from/(used in) investment activities     125,569.80 (23,833.09)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Borrowings (net) 17,500.00   24,500.00 
Payment of dividend (1,980.75)   (1,974.30)
Payment of dividend tax     (406.42) (406.42)
Finance cost (4,307.26)   (1,886.25)
Net cash flow from/(used In) financing activities 10,805.57   20,233.03 
Net increased/(decreased) in cash and cash equivalents 
(A+B+C)

324.97     25.72 

Opening cash and cash equivalents   34.02  8.30 
Closing cash and cash equivalents 358.99     34.02 
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)

Notes:    
1.  Components of cash and cash equivalents:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Cash on hand  0.25  0.06 
Balances with banks
 - In current accounts  358.74  33.96 
Total  358.99  34.02 

   
2.  The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “indirect method” as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on 

statement of cash flows specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
3.  Since the Company is an investment company, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as 

part of “Cash flow from investing activities” and interest earned of ` 9849.68 lakhs (Previous year ` 16.35 
Lakhs) and dividend earned of ` 4974.10 lakhs (Previous year ` 4429.36 lakhs) have been considered as part 
of “Cash flow from operating activities”.    

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
For Vidyarthi & Sons  Rajashree Birla D K Mantri
Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

A Equity share capital  (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars No. of Equity 

Shares of Rs. 10 
each

Balance at the 
beginning of the 
reporting year

Changes in 
equity share 

capital during 
the year

Balance at 
the end of the 
reporting year

(Amount) (Amount)
Issued, paid-up and subscribed
As on 31.03.2019 7,908,750      790.88  -        790.88 
As on 31.03.2020 7,908,750      790.88  -        790.88 

B   Other equity  (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars Reserve and surplus Equity instruments 

through other 
comprehensive income

Total
Statutory 
reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 
01.04.2018

17,208.35 19,713.33 22,105.16     458,839.49 517,866.33 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -     3,339.47     (75,705.71) (72,366.24)
Add/(Less): Remeasurement of net defined benefit 
through OCI net of tax  

 -    -    (0.77)  -      (0.77)

Add: Realised gain/(loss) on Equity Shares (FVTOCI) 
transferred from Equity Instruments through Other 
Comprehensive Income 

 -    -   10,625.86     (10,625.86)   -   

Less: Current Tax on Realised gain/(loss) on Equity 
Shares (FVTOCI) transferred from Equity Instruments 
through Other Comprehensive Income 

 -    -   (2,290.00)  -     (2,290.00)

Dividend paid during the Year  -    -   (1,977.19)  -     (1,977.19)
Tax on dividend   -    -      (406.42)  -        (406.42)
Transfer to retained earnings  -    -    -    -     -   
Transfer to statutory reserve 2,335.07  - (2,335.07)  - - 
Balance at the end of the reporting year 31.03.2019 19,543.42 19,713.33 29,061.04 372,507.92 440,825.71 
Total comprehensive Income for the year  -  - 8,108.72 (7,160.70)  948.02 
Add/(Less): Remeasurement of net defined benefit 
through OCI net of tax  

 -  -  (1.73)  -  (1.73)

Add: Realised gain/(loss) on Equity Shares (FVTOCI) 
transferred from Equity Instruments through Other 
Comprehensive Income 

 -  - 125,309.62 (125,309.62) - 

Less: Current Tax on Realised gain/(loss) on Equity 
Shares (FVTOCI) transferred from Equity Instruments 
through Other Comprehensive Income 

 -  - (4,200.15)  - (4,200.15)

Dividend paid during the Year  -  - (1,977.19)  - (1,977.19)
Tax on dividend   -  -  (406.42)  -  (406.42)
Transfer to statutory reserve 25,915.00  - (25,915.00)  - - 
Balance at the end of the reporting year 31.03.2020 45,458.42 19,713.33 129,978.89 240,037.60 435,188.24 

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
For Vidyarthi & Sons  Rajashree Birla D K Mantri
Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The 
registered office of the company is at “Birla Building”, 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 11th Floor, Kolkata – 700001, 
West Bengal, India.

The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting 
Company (“NBFC”). As an NBFC, the Company is holding investments in its subsidiaries, other group companies, 
mutual funds and carries out only such activities as are permitted under the guidelines issued by RBI for NBFC.

Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), India, and the National Stock Exchange (NSE), India.

1. Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 read with 
sub-section (1) of section 210 A the Companies Act, 2013, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act’’) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable. In addition, 
the applicable regulation of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and Guidance Notes / announcement issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied.

1.1. Basis of Preparation

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in 
its entirety, which are described as follows:

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
Company can access at reporting date.

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

1.2. Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the 
Division III to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) applicable for Non-Banking Finance Companies 
(“NBFC”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 
“Statement of Cash Flows”.

The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as 
prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements 
along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakhs rounded off to two decimal places as 
permitted by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two decimal 
places.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
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1.3. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. Revenue is measured 
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable as reduced for estimated customer credits and other 
similar allowances.

i) Interest and Dividend Income

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and for all financial instruments except for those 
classified as held for trading or those measured or designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is 
measured using the effective interest method (EIR).

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are 
incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums 
or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at initial recognition.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial 
assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For 
credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the 
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs).

For financial assets originated or purchased credit-impaired (POCI) the EIR reflects the ECLs in determining the 
future cash flows expected to be received from the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date 
and no significant uncertainty as to collectability exists.

ii) Net Gain or Fair Value Changes

Any differences between the fair values of the financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss, 
held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain/loss in the statement of profit 
and loss. In cases there is a net gain in aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains or fair value changes” under 
revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed “Expenses”, in the statement of profit and 
loss.

iii) Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is 
included in rental income in the statement of profit and loss, unless the increase is in line with expected general 
inflation, in which case lease income is recognised based on contractual terms.

iv) Other Operational Revenue

Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised 
when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

1.4. Properties, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits 
availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Cost includes all direct cost 
related to the acquisition of PPE and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the 
Company’s accounting policy.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Land and buildings held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital work in progress”.

Depreciation is recognised using reducing balance method so as to write off the cost of the assets(other than 
freehold land)) less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, 
or in case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. 
Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of consumption of the 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed 
at each financial year end with the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value is accounted 
on prospective basis.

Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use. Depreciation 
charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the 
asset is allocated over its remaining useful life.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful life on the same 
basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that the Company shall obtain ownership 
of the assets at the end of the lease term, such assets are depreciated based on the useful life prescribed under 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on the useful life adopted by the Company for similar assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

1.5. Investment Property

Investment properties are properties (including those under construction) held to earn rentals and / or capital 
appreciation are classified as investment property and are measured and reported at cost including transaction 
costs.

Depreciation is recognised using reducing balance method so as to write off the cost of the investment property 
less their residual values over their useful lives specified in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of 
assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined.

Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of 
the future benefits embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also 
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life / residual value is 
accounted on prospective basis. Freehold land and properties under construction are not depreciated.

As investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn 
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same 
period.

1.6. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated 
at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. 
Direct expenses and administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to 
acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets 
under development”.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life. The method of amortisation 
and useful life are reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognised in profit or loss when the 
asset is derecognised.

1.7. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets other than Goodwill

As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and intangible assets 
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication 
exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the 
impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for impairment each year.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:

i)  in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use;

and

ii)  in the case of a cash generating unit (the smallest identifiable Company of assets that generates independent 
cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future 
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such 
deficit is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount 
of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For this purpose, the impairment loss 
recognised in respect of a cash generating unit is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to such cash generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets of the cash 
generating unit on a pro-rata basis.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit), except 
for allocated goodwill, is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss 
is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss (other than 
impairment loss allocated to goodwill) is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.8. Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term 
employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service. Liabilities 
recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits 
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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ii) Post-employment benefits:

a) Defined contribution plans: The Company’s superannuation scheme, state governed provident fund scheme, 
employee state insurance scheme and employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution 
paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Defined benefit plans: The obligation in respect of defined benefit plans, which cover Gratuity are provided 
for on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of each financial year using project unit credit method. The 
Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of the year. 
Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge 
or credit recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement 
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings, and will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

i) Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gain and losses on curtailments and 
settlements);

ii) Net interest expense or income; and

iii) Re-measurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in Statement of Profit and Loss in the line 
item ‘Employee Benefits Expense’.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate, which is determined by 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

The retirement benefit obligation, recognized in the Balance Sheet, represents the Company’s liability based on 
actuarial valuation.

iii) Long term employee benefits:

The obligation recognised in respect of long term benefits such as long term compensated absences is measured 
at present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be made by the Company and is recognised in a similar 
manner as in the case of defined benefit plans vide (ii) (b) above.

iv) Termination benefits:

Termination benefits such as compensation under employee separation schemes are recognised as expense 
when the Company’s offer of the termination benefit is accepted or when the Company recognises the related 
restructuring costs whichever is earlier.

1.9. Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the 
lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. 

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods 
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods 
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In 
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for 
the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The 
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for 
a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Company as a lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease 
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component based on 
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease 
components. 

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term 
at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the 
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of 
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying 
asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The 
right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of 
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on 
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever 
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss.  

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, 
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental 
borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease-by-lease basis, may 
adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio 
as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, 
exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments 
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the 
lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the 
lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying 
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 
The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment 
to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement 
of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit 
and loss. 

Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance 
lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line basis 
over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern 
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Company is an 
intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference 
to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described 
above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

Transition

Ind AS 116 replaces the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. This lease standard eliminates the classification 
of leases as either finance leases or operating leases. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-
balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises right-of-use asset representing its right 
to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The standard 
also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor 
accounting requirements in Ind AS 17. 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019.  

On transition, the Company will be using the practical expedient provided in the standard and therefore, will not 
reassess whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of initial application. 

With effect from April 1, 2019, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to 
short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset 
is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

1.10. Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there is a 
current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis 
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1) Financial Assets

a) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) if these financial 
assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on 
specified dates to sole payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling 
financial assets.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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c) Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCI

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the asset and the Company’s business model for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, its contractual terms should give rise to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI).

For an asset to be classified and measured at FVTOCI, the asset is held within a business model whose objective 
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and the contractual terms of 
instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. The Company has more than one business model for managing its financial 
instruments which reflect how the Company manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The 
Company’s business models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, 
selling financial assets or both.

The Company considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. However, 
this assessment is not performed on the basis of scenarios that the Company does not reasonably expect to occur, 
such as so-called ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios. The Company takes into account all relevant evidence 
available such as:

• how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are 
evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel;

• the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business 
model) and, in particular ,the way in which those risks are managed; and

• how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of 
the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have 
changed since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period the Company has not identified a 
change in its business models.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in 
OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

In contrast, for an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain/loss previously 
recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment.

d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair 
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

e) De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is 
primarily de-recognised when:

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to 
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; 
and

• either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations 
that the Company has retained.

2) Financial liabilities

a) Financial liabilities, including derivatives, which are designated for measurement at FVTPL are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Financial guarantee contracts are subsequently measured at the amount of impairment 
loss allowance or the amount recognised at inception net of cumulative amortisation, whichever is higher.

All other financial liabilities including loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest 
Rate (EIR) method.

b) A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation expires or is discharged or cancelled.

1.11. Write Off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the 
financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that the 
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts 
subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement 
activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement activities will result 
in impairment gains.

1.12. Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on the following financial instruments that are not measured at 
FVTPL:

• Loans and advances to customers;
• Debt investment securities;
• Trade and other receivable;
• Lease receivables;
• Irrevocable loan commitments issued; and
• Financial guarantee contracts issued.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 
assets. Evidence of credit impairment includes observable data about the following events:

• significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
• a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
• the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, 

having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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• the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or
• the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event—instead, the combined effect of several events may 
have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Company assesses whether debt instruments that 
are financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if 
corporate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Company considers factors such as bond yields, credit ratings 
and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in the 
borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession the risk of not 
receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. 

For financial assets where concessions are contemplated but not granted the asset is deemed credit impaired 
when there is observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of default. The definition 
of default (see below) includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stop if amounts are overdue for 90 days 
or more.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Company monitors all financial assets and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to the impairment 
requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk the Company will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather 
than 12-month ECL.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, 
the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based 
on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the 
remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognised. In making 
this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and 
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost 
or effort, based on the Company’s historical experience and expert credit assessment.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change, in 
absolute terms, in the Probability of Default will be more significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial 
PD than compared to a financial instrument with a higher PD.

As a back-stop when loan asset not being a corporate loans becomes 30 days past due, the Company considers 
that a significant increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment model, i.e. the 
loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL in respect of all retail assets. In respect of the corporate loan assets, 
shifting to Stage 2 has been rebutted using historical evidence from own portfolio to a threshold of 60 days past 
due, which is reviewed annually.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets

POCI financial assets are treated differently because the asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition. For these 
assets, the Company recognises all changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition as a loss allowance with any 
changes recognised in profit or loss. A favourable change for such assets creates an impairment gain.

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in measuring the 
amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as 
default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the 
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identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default:

• the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Company; or
• the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types of assets.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes into account both 
qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in 
corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is the admittance of bankruptcy petition by National Company Law 
Tribunal, which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment 
on another obligation of the same counter party are key inputs in this analysis. The Company uses a variety of 
sources of information to assess default which are either developed internally or obtained from external sources. 
The definition of default is applied consistently to all financial instruments unless information becomes available 
that demonstrates that another default definition is more appropriate for a particular financial instrument. With 
the exception of POCI financial assets (which are considered separately below), ECLs are required to be measured 
through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

• 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are 
possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (referred to as Stage 1); or

• full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial 
instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument 
has increased significantly since initial recognition (and consequently to credit impaired financial assets). For all 
other financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are measured as the present 
value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Company under the contract and the cash flows that 
the Company expects to receive arising from the weighting of multiple future economic scenarios, discounted at 
the asset’s EIR.

• for financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected payments to reimburse the 
holder of the guaranteed debt instrument less any amounts that the Company expects to receive from the 
holder, the debtor or any other party.

The Company measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar 
economic risk characteristics.

1.13. Modification and derecognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial 
asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A 
modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. 
In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan may constitute a modification 
even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows 
depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises 
when covenants are breached).

The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk 
of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)



92 93

Statutory Reports Standalone FinancialsPilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019-20 Consolidated Financials

pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and the 
borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an 
extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest 
repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to 
covenants.

When a financial asset is modified the Company assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In 
accordance with the Company’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially 
different terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms 
the Company considers the following:

• Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI,
• Change in currency or change of counter party,
• The extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants.

If these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then;

a) In the case where the financial asset is derecognised the loss allowance for ECL is re-measured at the date of 
derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date.

The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial asset with the new 
terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance measured based 
on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated-credit impaired. 
This applies only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognised at a significant discount to its revised 
paramount because there remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The 
Company monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, 
such as if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.

b) When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in 
derecognition, the Company determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition by comparing:

• the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual terms; 
with

• the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.

For financial assets modified, where modification did not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the 
Company’s ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Company’s previous experience of 
similar forbearance action, as well as various behavioural indicators, including the borrower’s payment performance 
against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected at 
initial recognition the loss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The loss 
allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the 
borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant 
increase in credit risk.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Company calculates the modification gain/loss comparing 
the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Company 
measures ECL for the modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are 
included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows expire 
(including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the financial asset and 
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substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Company 
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the 
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts 
it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the 
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds 
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/ loss that had been recognised in OCI 
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss, with the exception of equity investment designated as 
measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not subsequently re-classified 
to profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to 
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset 
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on 
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying 
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part 
no longer recognised and any cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in 
profit or loss. A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI is allocated between the part that continues 
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This 
does not apply for equity investments designated as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative gain/loss previously 
recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

1.14. Presentation of allowance for ECL in the Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

• for financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

• for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in Balance Sheet as the carrying 
amount is at fair value.

1.15. Cash and bank balances:

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and 
other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to 
more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

1.16. Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect 
of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the 
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings, that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of cost of 
such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily 
requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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1.17. Accounting and reporting of information for Operating Segments:

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the 
chief operating decision making body in the Company to make decisions for performance assessment and resource 
allocation. The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of 
the performance assessment and resource allocation to the segments. Segment accounting policies are in line with 
the accounting policies of the Company.

1.18. Foreign currencies:

i) The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. Functional currency of the 
Company and foreign operations has been determined based on the primary economic environment in which the 
Company and its foreign operations operate considering the currency in which funds are generated, spent and 
retained.

ii) Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded on initial recognition 
using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are 
reported at the prevailing closing spot rate. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in 
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at each 
Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in 
which they arise.

iii) Financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currency is different than Indian Rupees are 
translated into Indian Rupees as follows:

A. assets and liabilities for each Balance Sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that 
Balance Sheet;

B. income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates; and

C. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity 
as foreign currency translation reserve for subsequent reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of such foreign 
operations.

1.19. Taxation:

Current Tax:

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except 
to the extent it relates to an item which is recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using applicable tax 
rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. 

Pursuant to the enactment of the Taxation Law (Amendment) Act, 2019, which is effective from 1st April, 2019, 
domestic companies have an irreversal option to pay income tax at a concessional rate of 22% (with certain 
conditions) plus applicable surcharge and cess (‘New Tax Regime’).

The Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as 
introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised Provision 
for Income Tax for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 and remeasured its Deferred Tax Liabilities based on 
the rates prescribed in the aforesaid section. The impact of this change has been recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020.
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Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit and 
quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying 
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head “capital gains” 
are recognised and carried forward to the extent of available taxable temporary differences or where there is 
convincing other evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax 
assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets in respect of unutilised tax credits which mainly relate to minimum 
alternate tax are recognised to the extent it is probable of such unutilised tax credits will get realised.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of 
its assets and liabilities.

Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or in equity, 
is recorded along with the tax as applicable.

1.20. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

Provisions are recognised only when:

i) a Company entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; 
and

iii) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of 
time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. 
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only when it is 
virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation; and

ii) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Provisions, contingent liabilities 
and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected 
to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a 
provision.
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1.21. Commitment:

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:

a) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;

b) uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;

c) funding related commitment to associate companies; and

d) other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the 
opinion of management.

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to 
avoid excessive details.

1.22. Statement of cash flows:

Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. 
Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i) changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;

ii) non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses; and

iii) all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are 
not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

1.23. Earnings per share:

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share 
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all 
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

1.24. Key source of estimation:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the Company 
makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the 
reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures  relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the 
financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets, expected credit loss 
on loan books, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if 
any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are known.

1.25. Changes in Accounting Standard and recent accounting pronouncements (New Accounting Standards 
issued but not effective):

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no 
such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)



96 97

Statutory Reports Standalone FinancialsPilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019-20 Consolidated Financials

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)

Note 2 Cash & Cash Equivalents
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Cash on hand                     0.25                     0.06 
Balances with banks
- In current accounts                 358.74                   33.96 
Total                 358.99                   34.02 

Note 3 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Earmarked Balances with Bank
Unpaid Dividend Account  42.04  45.60 
Balance with banks held as Margin Money  -    -   
Term Deposit of upto Twelve Months Maturity  -    -   
Total  42.04  45.60 

Note 4 Receivables
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Trade Receivables
Receivables considered good - Unsecured  83.97  51.56 
Total  83.97  51.56 

Note 5 Loans 
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
(A) At amortised cost
Loans repayable on demand
- to Related parties  86.00  108.14 
- to Others  141,050.00  -   
Total (A)  141,136.00  108.14 
(B) At amortised cost
Unsecured  141,136.00  108.14 
Total (B)  141,136.00  108.14 
(C) 
(I) Loans in India
At amortised cost
(i) Public sector - -
(ii) Others -Corporate Bodies  141,136.00  108.14 
Total (C) (I)  141,136.00  108.14 
(II)Loans outside India
At amortised cost - -
Total (C) (II) - -
Total C(I) and C(II)  141,136.00  108.14 
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)

Note 6 Investments
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Face 
Value 

(`)

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Nos./Unit Amount Nos./Unit Amount

(A) At fair value through profit or loss
Investment in mutual funds
Aditya Birla Sunlife-Liquid Fund-Growth 100 -   -   384,885  1,150.83 
ABSL Overnight Fund 1000 21,405 230.80    -      -   
(B) At fair value through other 
comprehensive income
Investment in Equity instruments
Quoted
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retal Limited    10 2,188,866   3,346.78    1,569,219  3,457.77 
Aditya Birla Capital Limited *    10   33,601,721 14,163.13  33,351,721    32,417.93 
Birla Tyres Limited    10   27,338,750 820.16    -      -   
Grasim Industries Limited 2   24,714,527   117,665.86  24,274,527  208,263.30 
Hindalco Industries Limited 1   29,857,969 28,574.08  29,857,969    61,358.13 
Vodafone Idea Limited (Formerly: Idea Cellular 
Limited) 

   10 109,028,530   3,379.88    8,168,500  1,490.75 

Jayshree Tea & Industries Limited 5    2,844 0.88  2,844     1.85 
Kesoram Industries Limited    10   27,338,750   5,016.66  27,338,750    19,902.61 
Kesoram Textile Mills Limited 2 2,415,750    48.32    2,415,750  48.32 
Mangalam Cement Limited    10 1,120,000   1,680.00    1,120,000  2,998.24 
Tanfac Industries Limited    10    498,000 394.17   498,000  1,082.90 
Ultra Tech Cement Limited **    10 3,884,321   126,040.39    2,287,823    91,475.16 
Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited -   -     434,000     806.16 
Zuari Global Limited -   -     434,000     469.59 
Unquoted
Birla Building Limited    10 15,000 1.52     15,000     1.52 
Birla Consultants Limited    10 12,000 1.20     12,000     1.20 
Essel Minings & Industries Limited    10  1 1.00    -      -   
Indo Thai Synthetics Co. Limited Baht10    207,900    11.42   207,900  11.42 
Indo Phil Textile Mills Inc. Manila Peso10    211,248 2.03   211,248     2.03 
The Eastern Economist Limited 100  400 0.40 400     0.40 
The Industry House Limited 100    2,812 1.89  2,812     1.89 
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)

Note 6 Investments
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Face 
Value 

(`)

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Nos./Unit Amount Nos./Unit Amount

(C) Investments - Others (At cost)
Subsidiaries (#)
- PIC Properties Limited    10 50,002 5.00     50,002     5.00 
- PIC Realcon Limited    10 50,000 5.00     50,000     5.00 
Associates (#)
- Century Textiles & Industries Limited    10   36,978,570 41,589.36  36,978,570    41,589.36 
(D) Total – Gross (A+B+C)   342,979.93  466,541.36 
(i) Investments outside India    13.45  13.45 
(ii) Investments in India   342,966.48  466,527.91 
Total (E)   342,979.93  466,541.36 
(F) Total (D) to tally with (E) -      -   
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (G )    -      -   
(H) Total– Net = (D)-(G)   342,979.93  466,541.36 

(#) For the investment in subsidiary entities and associate, the company has opted for the exemption provided in 
para D15(b)(ii) of Ind AS 101 and accordingly the same has been measured at previous GAAP carrying amount i.e. 
at cost at the transition date.      

(#)As per para 10 of Ind AS 27, the Company has opted to value the investments in subsidiary entities and associate 
at cost.      

The following shares, although are in physical possession of the company, have not been indicated above since 
the value thereof has been written off  in earlier years :

QUOTED (Fully paid)
Equity Instruments
Jiyajeerao Cotton Mills Limited (In liquidation)  10  150 
Kalyan Sundaram Cement Industries Limited (In liquidation)  10  50,000 
Umi Special Steels Limited (In liquidation)  10  100,000 
UNQUOTED (Fully paid)
In Subsidiary Companies
Atlas Iron and Alloys Limited (In liquidation)  10  72,000 

* Pursuant to Regulation 167 (1) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requrements) Regulation, 2018 the 
2,50,000 shares are subject to lock in till 13th Nov, 2022.      

** 10,00,000 equity shares are deposited with broker in accordance with SEBI guidelines .   
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)

Note 7 Other Financial Assets
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Interest accrued but not due on loans and advances  3,370.15  -   
Total  3,370.15  -   

Note 8 Current Tax Assets (Net)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Advance Payment of Income Tax (net of Provision for Income Tax)  438.86  -   
Total  438.86  -   

Note 9 Deferred tax assets (net) 
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
The major components of the Deferred Tax Liabilities / Assets 
based on the tax effects of timing differences are as follows:
Deferred tax assets
Equity Investment measured at Fair Value through OCI  -    647.27 

 -    647.27 
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between WDV of block of assets as per Income Tax 
and WDV of Fixed Assets as per books

 -    1.62 

Investment measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss  -    5.49 
 -   7.11

Total  -    640.16 

Note 10 Investment property
 (` In Lakhs) 

 As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount/deemed cost  453.30  453.30 
Additions  -    -   
Disposals  -    -   
Addition/other adjustments  -    -   
Closing gross carrying amount  453.30  453.30 
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation  259.43  213.48 
Depreciation charged during the year  33.28  45.95 
Deductions  -    -   
Other adjustments  -    -   
Addition/other adjustments  -    -   
Closing accumulated depreciation  292.71 259.43 
Net carrying amount  160.59  193.87 
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Note 10.1 The amounts recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in relation to the investment properties :
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Rental income derived From investment properties 255.05 134.38
Service charges derived From investment properties 93.04 37.71
Direct operating expenses (  including repairs and maintenance ) 
generating rental income 

186.27 123.28

Depreciation 33.28 45.95
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect 
expenses

 128.54 2.86

Note 11  Property, Plant & Equipment
 (` In Lakhs) 

 Furnitures & 
Fixtures 

 Office 
Equipments 

 Vehicles  TOTAL 

Cost or valuation
As at 1st April 2019      1.93 1.69 -      3.62 
Addition/ (Disposal)    59.19 1.24    7.33 67.76 
As at 31.03.2020    61.12 2.93    7.33 71.38 
Depreciation
As at 1st April 2019      1.93 0.79 -      2.72 
Charge for the year      3.78 0.83    1.27    5.88 
As at 31.03.2020      5.71 1.62    1.27    8.60 
Net Block 
As at 31st March 2019         -   0.90 -      0.90 
As at 31st March 2020    55.41 1.31    6.06 62.78 

Note 12 Other non financial assets
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
(a) Security deposits  17.46  17.46 
(b) Other advances

Advance to parties  15.00  29.97 
Other advances  9.66  9.75 

Total  42.12  57.18 



102 103

Statutory Reports Standalone FinancialsPilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019-20 Consolidated Financials

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)

Note 13 Payables
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -    -   

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 132.57  15.66 

 132.57  15.66 
Other payables  -    -   
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -    -   

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 -    -   

 -    -   
Total  132.57  15.66 

Note 14 Borrowings (other than debt securities)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
At amortised cost
Unsecured - term loans
From other parties  42,000.00  24,500.00 
Total (A)  42,000.00  24,500.00 
At amortised cost  -    -   
Borrowings in India  42,000.00  24,500.00 
Borrowings outside India  -    -   
Total (B)  42,000.00  24,500.00 

Total (B) to tally with (A)

Note:

Details of terms of redemption/repayment and security provided in respect of debt securities and 
borrowings:

(` In Lakhs)

Term loan from financial entities 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 Terms of redemption/repayment

Term loan from financial entity 1 10,000.00   10,000.00 Repayable in 60 months from June 18, 2018 
with option of repayment at the end of every 12 
months

Term loan from financial entity 2 14,500.00   14,500.00 Repayable in one bullet payment at the end of 
12 months from October 1, 2019

Term loan from financial entity 3 17,500.00     -   Repayable in one bullet payment at the end of 
12 months from April 1, 2019
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Note 15 Other financial liabilities
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Interest accrued

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  1,051.60  -   
Unclaimed dividends on equity shares  42.04  45.60 
Others 
Liabilities for expenses
Amount Due to employee  3.15  4.85 
Other miscellaneous payables  18.33  3.33 
Security deposit  0.26  0.26 
Total  1,115.38  54.04 

Note 16  Current tax liabilities (net)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Income Tax Provision (net of Advance Income Tax)  -    1,255.51 

Note 17 Provisions
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Provision for employee benefits (Gratuity)  6.13  26.09 
Provision for employee benefits (Leave)  5.36  15.25 
Others
Contingent provision against standard assets  564.54  27.48 
Provision towards demand for municipal tax  116.70  116.70 
Total  692.73  185.52 

Note 18 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
The major components of the deferred tax liabilities / assets 
based on the tax effects of timing differences are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Equity Investment measured at Fair Value through OCI  8,585.21  -   
Investment measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss  0.20  -   

 8,585.41  -   
Deferred tax assets
Difference between WDV of block of assets as per Income Tax 
and WDV of Fixed Assets as per books

 0.25  -   

 0.25  -   
Total  8,585.16  -   
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Note 19 Other non financial liabilities
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Statutory dues payable  170.47  45.47 
Total  170.47  45.47 

Note 20 Equity share capital
(i) Share capital authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up
Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

No. of Shares (` In Lakhs) No. of Shares (` In Lakhs)
Authorised:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  9,000,000  900.00  9,000,000  900.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares:
Equity Shares of ` 10 each  7,908,750  790.88  7,908,750  790.88 

There is no change in the number of shares in current year and previous years.

(ii) Terms/rights attached to equity shares    
 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder 

of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in 
Indian Rupees.

 During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the amount of per share dividend recognized as 
distributions to shareholders was Rs. 25/- ( Rs. 25/-) per share. The Board of Directors at its 
meeting held on  30th July, 2020, have proposed a final dividend of  Rs. 25/- per equity share for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2020. The proposal is subject to the approval of the Shareholders 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Total cash out flow would be Rs.1977.19 Lakhs 
(including TDS)  and the same will be accounted for in the financial year 2020-21 in terms of Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS)  notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together 
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.    

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution 
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

 No. of Shares  % holding  No. of Shares  % holding 
 Aditya Marketing & Manufacturing Pvt. Limited  2,744,194  34.70  2,744,194  34.70 
 Padmavati Investment Limited  1,406,986  17.79  1,406,986  17.79 
 The Punjab Produce & Trading Co. Pvt. Limited  1,385,223  17.52  1,385,223  17.52 
 Gwalior Webbing Co. Pvt. Limited  454,168  5.74  454,168  5.74 

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders, the above shareholding represents 
legal ownership of shares.
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Note 21 Other equity
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Other reserves
(i)  Statutory reserves
Balance as at the beginning of the year  19,543.42  17,208.35 
Addition during the year  25,915.00  2,335.07 
Less: Transferred during the year  -    -   

 45,458.42  19,543.42 
Others 
(ii)  General reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year  19,713.33  19,713.33 
Addition during the year  -    -   
Less: Transferred during the year  -    -   

 19,713.33  19,713.33 
(iii) Reserves representing unrealised gains/losses
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income  372,507.92  458,839.49 
Add / (Less) during the year (7,160.70)  (75,705.71)
Less: Realised gain/(loss) on equity shares at FVTOCI transferred 
to retained earnings

(125,309.62)  (10,625.86)

 240,037.60  372,507.92 
(iv) Retained earnings
Surplus at the beginning of the year  29,061.04  22,105.16 
Profit for the year  8,108.72  3,339.47 
Remeasurement of net defined benefit through OCI net of tax (1.73)  (0.77)
Realised gain/(loss) on equity shares at FVTOCI transferred from 
equity instruments through other comprehensive income

 125,309.62  10,625.86 

Current tax on realised gain/(loss) on equity shares at 
FVTOCI transferred from equity instruments through other 
comprehensive income

(4,200.15)  (2,290.00)

Dividend paid on equity shares (1,977.19)  (1,977.19)
Tax on dividend (406.42)  (406.42)
Transfer to statutory reserve (25,915.00)  (2,335.07)

 129,978.89  29,061.04 
Total  435,188.24  440,825.71 

Notes: Nature and purpose of reserve 
(i) Statutory reserve (Reserve u/s. 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the “RBI Act, 1934”))
 Reserve is created as per the terms of section 45-IC(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a statutory 

reserve.
(ii) General reserve  
 Amounts set aside from retained profits as a reserve to be utilised for permissible specified purpose as per 

prevaling  law for the time being. 
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(iii) FVTOCI equity investments  
 The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investments in equity securities (other than 

investment in subsidiaries and associate) in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated 
within the FVTOCI equity investments reserve within equity.

(iv) Retained earnings  
 Surplus in the statement of profit and loss is the accumulated available profit of the Company carried forward 

from earlier years. These reserves are free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

Note 22  Interest income
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Interest on loans  9,830.32  10.50 
Interest on deposits with banks  19.36  5.85 
Total  9,849.68  16.35 

Note 23 Dividend income
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

- On investments

   Equity share instruments  4,974.10  4,429.36 
Total  4,974.10  4,429.36 

Note 24 Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss
On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit 
or loss
On Mutual Fund  101.41  233.76 
Others  -    -   
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes  101.41  233.76 
Fair Value changes:
Realised  100.63  216.90 
Unrealised  0.78  16.86 
Total  101.41  233.76 
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Note 25 Others
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Rent income  255.05  134.38 
Service charges  93.04  37.71 
Total  348.09  172.09 

Note 26 Other income
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Miscellaneous receipts and income  0.01  0.78 
Total  0.01  0.78 

Note 27 Finance cost
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities)  4,307.26  1,886.25 
Total  4,307.26  1,886.25 

Note 28 Employee benefit expense 
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Salaries  and wages  116.96  105.85 
Contribution to provident and other funds
Provident Fund and pension fund  11.21  11.45 
Gratuity  2.80  3.03 
Staff welfare expenses  7.56  14.85 
Total  138.53  135.18 

Note 29 Depreciation and amortization expense 
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Depreciation and amortization expense
On property, plant and equipment  5.89  0.25 
On investment property  33.28  45.95 
Total  39.17  46.20 
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Note 30 Other expenses
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Rent, taxes and energy costs  49.03  28.96 
Repairs and maintenance  138.19  95.97 
Director’s fees, allowances and expenses  10.22  8.00 
Payments to the auditor
As auditor  3.15  3.15 
For Quarterly Review  1.95  1.95 
For Other services  1.50  1.44 
For reimbursement of out of pocket expenses  1.41  1.34 
Corporate social responsibility expenses  10.00  7.00 
Provision against Standard Assets of NBFCs ( as per RBI 
Regulation)

 537.06  -   

Miscellaneous expenses  168.92  38.22 
Total  921.43  186.03 
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Note 31 Tax expenses
The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are:

 (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars For the Year ended  

31st March, 2020
For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Current tax  1,438.29  (322.00)
MAT credit entitlement written off  69.08  -   
Deferred tax  (7.16)  (418.79)
Income Tax related to earlier years  257.97  -   
Total tax charge  1,758.18  (740.79)
Current tax  1,765.34  (322.00)
Deferred tax  (7.16)  (418.79)

Reconciliation of the total tax charge  
The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits 
had been charged at India at corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting 
profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

 (` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Accounting profit before tax  9,866.90  2,598.68 
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 29.12%
Tax on Accounting Profit  2,483.50  756.74 
Tax effect of:
Exempted income  (1,251.98)  (1,288.78)
Ind AS transition period adjustment  -    71.04 
Tax on expense not tax deductible 102.00  25.78 
Adjustment on account of change on tax rate  (6.94)  113.22 
MAT credit entitlement written off  69.08  -   
Tax effect on various other items 369.68  -   
Tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss  1,765.34  (322.00)
Effective tax rate  17.89  (12.39)

 (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars For the Year ended  

31st March, 2020
For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Deferred tax
Deferred tax asset/ liability (net)
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:
At the start of the year DTA / (DTL) (net)  640.16  (426.23)
Credit / (charge) for equity instruments through OCI  (9,232.48)  647.93 
Credit / (charge) for remeasurement of the defined benefit  -    (0.33)
Credit / (charge) to the statement of profit and loss  7.16  418.79 
At the end of year DTA / (DTL) (net)  (8,585.16)  640.16 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Note 32 Other comprehensive income
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  (1.73)  (1.09)
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income:  2,071.78  (76,352.98)

 2,070.05  (76,354.07)

Note 33 Earnings per share
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

(A) Basic earnings per share
Computation of profit
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders (basic) 8108.72 3339.47
Computation of weighted average number of shares Nos. Nos.
Weighted average number of equity shares of ` 10 each used for 
calculation of basic earnings per share

7908750 7908750

Basic earnings per share of face value of ` 10 each (in `)  102.53  42.22 
(B) Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (diluted) 8108.72 3339.47
Computation of weighted average number of shares Nos. Nos.
Weighted average number of equity shares as above 7908750 7908750
Diluted earnings per share of face value of  ` 10 each (in `)  102.53  42.22 

Note 34 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2019

(A) Contingent liabilities 
Income Tax  363.68 120.39
(i) Assessing officer has demanded income tax of ` 363.68 lakhs 
(Net of refund of  ̀  208.28 lakhs) against the certain disallowances 
etc. (P.Y.  ̀  120.39 Lakhs) for the A.Y. 2011-12,  2013-14, 2014-15, 
2017-18 and 2019-20. The Company has filed an appeal before 
the DCIT, Appellate Tribunal, Kolkata. Matter is still under sub-
judice.
(B) Commitments 
(i) Uncalled liability on partly paid shares held as investments 0.03 0.03

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Note 35
Provision has been made against demand for municipal taxes (including interest and penalty) for earlier years, 
though, the representation made by the company to the municipal authorities for reconsideration of the annual 
valuation is still under consideration of the concerned authorities.

Note 36 Corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) expenses :
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act), a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs 
to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate 
social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are healthcare including preventive healthcare, 
providing safe drinking water, sanitation facility, promoting education, old age home maintenance, environmental 
sustainability and promotion and development of traditional art and handicrafts. A CSR committee has been 
formed by the company as per the Act.   
The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are specified 
in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.   
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is ` 1.90 Lakhs. (PY ` 14.07 Lakhs) 
Amount spent during the year:  ` 10.00  Lakhs (PY ` 7.00 Lakhs) 

 (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
The amounts expended are as follows: 
(i) Construction / acquisition of any assets  -    -   
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above  10.00  7.00 

Note 37 Lease Disclosures

(a)  As lessee   

During the period ended March 31, 2020 the expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss includes:

(i) Rental Expenses recorded for Short-term lease  ̀  27.22 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March, 2020 (Previous Year: 
`  1.47 Lakhs) 

(b) Operating lease commitments – as lessor   

The Company has let out portions of office premises along with furniture and fixtures and other amenities on 
operating lease. It has recognised lease rental income amounting to ̀  255.05 Lakhs and ̀  134.38 Lakhs for the year 
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 respectively in the statement of profit and loss. 

Note 38 Segment reporting 

Operating segment are components of the Company whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is engaged primarily on the business of “Investments” only, taking into account the risks and returns, 
the organization structure and the internal reporting systems. All the operations of the Company are in India. All 
non-current assets of the Company are located in India. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments 
as per Ind AS 108 – “Operating segments”. 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Note 39 Related Party Disclosures

(a) Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.   
List of related parties and relationships:   

Sr. No. Nature of relationship
1 Subsidiary Companies PIC Properties Limited

PIC Realcon Limited
Atlas Iron & Alloys Limited (In Liquidation)

2 Key Management Personnel Shri R P Pansari (CEO)
Shri N K Baheti CFO (upto 30.08.2019 )
Shri J K Singhania (CFO) (w.e.f. 02.09.2019)
Shri R S Kashyap (Company Secretary)

3 Other related parties
Associate Company Century Textiles & Industries Limited

Transactions with related parties are as follows:
(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries
For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

1 Loans & Advances Given         -         610.51 
2 Loans & Advances Received  22.14       727.40 
3 Interest Received         -           10.50 

(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions Key Managerial Personnel
For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

1 Remuneration (including bonus and retirement benefits)  164.56  127.47 

(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions Other Related Parties
For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

1 Dividend Received  2,773.39  2,402.83 
2 Investment  -    25,731.85 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions Outstanding as on
For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

1 Loans & Advances  86.00  108.14 

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis. None of the balances is secured.
The remuneration of key management personnel are determined by the nomination and remuneration committee 
having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.
(b) Disclosures as per Regulation 53(f) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015).

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies in which directors are interested as under:
(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Name As at  
31st March, 2020

Maximum Balance 
outstanding during 

the year ended  
31 March, 2020

 -   -

(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Name As at  
31st March, 2019

Maximum Balance 
outstanding during 

the year ended  
31 March, 2019

 -   -

Note 40

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”) which came into force 
from October 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to micro, small and medium enterprises. 
There have been no reported cases of delays in payments to micro and small enterprises or of interest payments 
due to delays in such payments.  
The disclosure as required by section 22 of MSMED Act has been given below:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Principal amount payable to suppliers as at year-end  -    -   
Interest due thereon as at year end  -    -   
Interest amount for delayed payments to suppliers pursuant to 
provisions of MSMED Act actually paid during the year, irrespective of 
the year to which the interest relates

 -    -   

Amount of delayed payment actually made to suppliers during the year  -    -   
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED 
Act, 2006

 -    -   

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year  -    -   
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as 
a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006.

 -    -   

 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Note 41

No effect has been given in the accounts in respect of the following equity shares received by way of fully paid 
bonus shares on shares not belonging to the company and the shares of other companies apportionable to 
the holding of these shares received pursuant to scheme of arrangement, same are being held in trust by the 
company. 

Sr. No. Name of the company No. of  
equity shares

Face value per share 
(`)

(a) Grasim Industries Ltd. 5755 2/-
(b) Hindustan Motors Ltd. 440 10/-
(c) Century Textiles & Industries Ltd 220 10/-
(d) Tungabhadra Industries Ltd. 4 10/-
(e) Hindustan Everest Tools Ltd. 60 10/-
(f) Aditya Birla Capital Ltd. 8057 10/-
(g) Ultra-Tech Cement Ltd. (Including 27 nos received on 

demerger of cement business of Century Textiles & 
Industries Limited)

684 10-

Note 42

The Board of Directors recommended dividend of ` 25.00 per equity share of face value of ` 10 each, which is 
subject to approval by shareholders of the Company. 

Note 43

Following table represents the recognised financial assets that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting 
arrangements and other similar arrangements but not offset, as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. The column 
‘net amount’ shows the impact of the Company’s balance sheet if all the set-off rights were exercised. 

(` In Lakhs)

Effect of offsetting on the balance sheet Related amount not offset
Gross 

amounts
Gross 

amounts off 
set in balance 

sheet 

Net amount 
presented 
in balance 

sheet

Amount subject 
to master netting 

arrangement

Financial 
instrument 
collateral

Net 
Amount

31 March, 2020
Loans and Advances        86.00             -         86.00           -           -   86.00 

31 March, 2019
Loans and Advances      108.14             -      108.14           -           -   108.14 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Note 44

Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” - Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 1st April, 
2019

Cash flows Changes in 
fair values

Others 31st March, 
2020

Debt securities   -     -     -     -     -   
Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

        24,500         17,500   -     -           42,000 

Subordinated debt   -     -     -     -     -   

Particulars 1st April, 
2018

Cash flows Changes in 
fair values

Others 31st March, 
2019

Debt securities   -     -     -     -     -   
Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

  -           24,500   -     -           24,500 

Subordinated debt   -     -     -     -     -   

Note 45

A.  The Company has applied to the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”)  for its conversion from Non-Banking Financial 
Company to Core Investment Company. However RBI has required to submit the application as per new 
guidelines and the Company is under process of submission. 

B.  Disclosures in terms of RBI Master Direction for Non-Banking Financial Company-Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and Master Direction 
- Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 have been given under Annexure-1 to these 
financial statements. 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Note 46 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be 
recovered or settled.   

(` In Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents   358.99    -     358.99 34.02    -   34.02 
Bank balance other than above 42.04    -   42.04 45.60    -   45.60 
Trade receivable 83.97    -   83.97 51.56    -   51.56 
Loans 141,136.00    -   141,136.00   108.14    -     108.14 
Investments   230.80 342,749.13 342,979.93    1,150.83 465,390.53 466,541.36 
Other financial assets    3,370.15    3,370.15    -   
Non-financial assets
Income tax assets   438.86   438.86    -      -   
Deferred tax assets    -      -     640.16   640.16 
Investment property   160.59   160.59   193.87   193.87 
Property, plant and equipment 62.78 62.78   0.90   0.90 
Other non-financial assets 24.66 17.46 42.12 39.72 17.46 57.18 
Total assets 145,685.47 342,989.96 488,675.43    1,429.87 466,242.92 467,672.79 
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of 
micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

   -      -      -      -      -      -   

(i) Total outstanding dues 
of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

  132.57   132.57 15.66 15.66 

Debt securities    -      -      -      -      -      -   
Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

32,000.00 10,000.00 42,000.00 14,500.00 10,000.00 24,500.00 

Other financial liabilities    1,115.12   0.26    1,115.38 53.78   0.26 54.04 
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities    -      -      -      1,255.51    -      1,255.51 
Provisions 0.58   692.15   692.73 34.50   151.02   185.52 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)    8,585.16    8,585.16    -      -      -   
Other non-financial liabilities   170.47   170.47 45.47 45.47 
Total liabilities 33,418.16 19,278.15 52,696.31 15,904.92 10,151.28 26,056.20 
Net 112,267.31 323,711.81 435,979.12 -14,475.05 456,091.64 441,616.59 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Note 47 Employee benefit plan :

Disclosure in respect of employee benefits under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefit are as under:
(a)  Defined contribution plan    
 The Company’s contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plans. The Company’s 

contribution to provident fund aggregating ` 10.38 lakhs (31 March 2019: ` 10.69 lakhs) has been recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss under the head employee benefits expense.

(b)  Defined benefit plan:    
 Gratuity    
 Financial assets not measured at fair value    
 The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the “gratuity plan”) covering eligible employees. The gratuity 

plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years 
of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of 
service and salary at retirement age/ resignation date. 

 The defined benefit plans expose the Company to risks such as actuarial risk, liquidity risk, legislative risk.

 These are discussed as follows:

 Actuarial risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following 
reasons: 

 Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result 
into an increase in obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption 
than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the 
death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative 
values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate 
assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on 
whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date. 

 Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 
significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the Company, there can be strain 
on the cash flows. 

 Legislative risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, thus 
requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such 
amendment is effective. 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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 The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 is as under (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2019

i. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined 
benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning 
of the year

 26.08  21.96 

Current service cost  1.03  1.45 
Past service cost  -    -   
Interest cost  1.77  1.58 
Acquisition adjustment -  -   
Benefit paid (24.49)  -   
Change in demographic assumptions (0.02)  -   
Change in financial assumptions  0.24  0.14 
Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)  1.51  0.95 
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of 
the year

 6.13  26.08 

ii. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the 
fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Transfer in / (out) plan assets  -    -   
Expenses deducted from the fund  -    -   
Interest income  -    -   
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in 
interest income 

 -    -   

Assets distributed on settlements  -    -   
Contributions by the Company  24.49  -   
Assets acquired in an amalgamation in the nature of 
purchase 

 -    -   

Exchange differences on foreign plans  -    -   
Benefits paid (24.49)  -   
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -

iii. Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit 
obligation and fair value of plan assets 
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of 
the year 

 6.13  26.08 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  -    -   
Unrecognised past service cost  -    -   
Net asset / (liability) recognized in the balance sheet as at 
the end of the year

 (6.13)  (26.08)

iv. Composition of plan assets
Total  -    -   

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Particulars As at  
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2019

v. Expense recognised during the Year
Current service cost  1.03  1.45 
Past service cost  -    -   
Interest cost  1.77  1.58 
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss  2.80  3.03 
vi. Other comprehensive income
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:
Change in demographic assumptions (0.02)  -   
Due to change in financial assumptions  0.24  0.14 
Due to experience adjustments  1.51  0.95 
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in 
interest income 

 -    -   

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income 

 1.73  1.09 

vii. Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum) 6.40% 6.80%
Rate of return on plan assets (p.a.)  -    -   
Annual increase in salary cost 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality Rate (% of IALM 12-14) (31 03 2019: % of IALM 
06-08)

100% 100%

viii. Sensitivity analysis    

 Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, 
expected salary increase and withdrawal rates. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on 
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all 
other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below: 

Particulars As at  
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2019

Defined benefit obligation (Base) 6.13 26.09

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount rate (- / + 1%)  6.80 5.56 26.49 25.75
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity 10.97% (9.26%) 1.53% (1.30%)
Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 5.53 6.82 25.73 26.5
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) (9.67%) 11.27% (1.36%) 1.58%
Attrition Rate (-/+50%) 6.06 6.18 26.02 26.15
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) (1.06%) 0.91% (0.26%) 0.23%
Mortality Rate (-/+10%) 5.98 6.27 25.98 26.19
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) (2.42%) 2.41% (0.37%) 0.37%

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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ix.  Asset liability matching strategies    

 The Company account for the liabilities based on the actuarial valuation report and paid from its own resources 
whenever liabilities is crystallized. The projected liability statements is obtained from the actuarial valuer.

x.  Effect of plan on the Company’s future cash flows    
 a)  Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation    
 The average outstanding term of the obligations (years) as at valuation date is 11 years.
 Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):

Cash Flow (`)
1 Year 0.43
2 to 5 Years 3.18
6 to 10 Years 0.64
More than 10 Years 9.34

Note 48

Contribution to political parties during the year 2019-20 is Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. Nil)

Note 49

There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as at March 
31, 2020

Note 50 Events after the reporting period:

There has been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in financial statements.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Note 51 Financial instrument and fair value measurement :

A.   Accounting classifications and fair values 
The carrying amount and fair value of financial instruments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy 
presented below: 

(` In Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2020 Carrying amount Fair Value Total
Amortised 

Cost
 At fair 
value 

through 
profit or 

loss

Fair Value 
Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Others 
(At Cost)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at 
fair value
Investments                 -   230.88       301,149.77              -    301,361.11        -    19.46  301,380.57 
Financial assets not 
measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents         358.99                   -                        -                -                   -          -          -                   -   
Bank balance other than cash 
and cash equivalents

          42.04                   -                        -                -                   -          -          -                   -   

Trade Receivables           83.97                   -                        -                -                   -          -          -                   -   
Loans  141,136.00                   -                        -                -                   -          -          -                   -   
Investments in subsidiaries 
and associates

                -                     -                        -   41,599.36                 -          -          -                   -   

Other Financial Assets      3,370.15                   -                        -                -                   -          -          -                   -   
Financial liabilities not 
measured at fair value
Trade payables         132.57                   -                        -                -                   -          -          -                   -   
Debt securities                 -                     -                        -                -                   -          -          -                   -   
Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

   42,000.00                   -                        -                -                   -          -          -                   -   

Other financial liabilities      1,115.38                   -                        -                -                   -          -          -                   -   

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)

(` In Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2019 Carrying amount Fair Value Total
Amortised 

Cost
 At fair 
value 

through 
profit or 

loss

Fair Value 
Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Others 
(At Cost)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at 
fair value
Investments  -    1,150.83  423,791.17  -    424,923.54  -    18.46  424,942.00 
Financial assets not 
measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents  34.02  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Bank balance other than cash 
and cash equivalents

 45.60  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Trade receivables  51.56  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Loans  108.14  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Investments in subsidiaries 
and associates

 -    -    -   41,599.36  -    -    -    -   

Financial liabilities not 
measured at fair value
Trade payables  15.66  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Debt securities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

 24,500.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other financial liabilities  54.04  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

1)  The Company has not disclosed the fair values for cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, Trade Receivables, 
Loans,  term deposits, trade payables and other financial liabilities as these are short term in nature and their 
carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

2)  The carrying amount of the investments in Subsidiaries and Associates are valued at Cost.
 Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement is as follows: 

(` In Lakhs)

As at  
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2019

i) Investments
Balance at the beginning of the year  18.46  18.46 
Gain included in OCI  -    -   
Net change in fair value (unrealised)  -    -   
Addition during the year  1.00  -   
Impairment in value of investments  -    -   
Amount derecognised / repaid during the year  -    -   
Amount written off  -    -   
Balance at the end of the year  19.46  18.46 
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B.  Measurement of fair values

 i)  Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

  The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities which are at amortised cost are considered to be 
the same as their fair values as there is no material differences in the carrying values presented.

 ii)  Financial instruments - fair value

  The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (A) above have been classified into three 
categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest 
priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and 
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

  The categories used are as follows:

  Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices;

  Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active market is determined using 
valuation technique which maximizes the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on 
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value on instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in level 2; and

  Level 3: If one or more of significant input is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in level 3.

 iii)  Transfers between levels I and II

  There has been no transfer in between level I and level II.

 iv)  Valuation techniques

  Investment in equity instruments

  The majority equity instruments held by the Company are actively traded on stock exchanges with readily 
available active prices on a regular basis. Such instruments are classified as level 1.

  Investments in mutual Funds are valued as per the NAV prevailing at the end of the financial years and 
such investments are classified as level 1.

  Equity investments in unquoted instruments are fair valued using the valuation technique and accordingly 
classified as level 3.

C.  Capital

 The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is 
meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the NBFC’s Sector regulator and supervisor, RBI. The adequacy 
of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI.

 The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period. 
Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company’s capital management.

C.1  Capital management

 The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies 
with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in 
order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic 
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue 
capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous 
years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

C.2  Regulatory capital  

As at  
31st March, 2020*

As at  
31st March, 2019

CRAR 72.52 (30.94)
CRAR – Tier 1 capital (%) 72.52 (30.94)
CRAR – Tier II capital (%) 72.52 -
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital - -
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -

 * CRAR for 2019-2020 has been calculated on the basis of RBI Circular No. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC). 
CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020.

Note 52 Financial risk management objectives and policies:

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade payables. The main purpose of these 
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to support its operations. The Company’s financial 
assets include Investments, Loan, Trade Receivables and Cash and Cash equivalents that derive directly from its 
operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s board of directors has an overall 
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board of 
directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports to the board of directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies 
and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company’s risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s 
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation 
to the risks faced by the Company.

1)  Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations and 
arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans.

 The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

 Trade Receivables
 The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 

However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, 
including the default risk associated with the industry.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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 The Company’s exposure to credit risk for loans and advances by type of counterparty is as follows:
(` In Lakhs)

Carrying Amount
As at  

31st March, 2020
As at  

31st March, 2019
Trade Receivables 83.97 51.56
Loans 1,41,136.00 108.14

 An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on 
that date to identify expected losses on account of time value of money and credit risk. For the purposes of 
this analysis, the trade receivables are categorised into groups based on days past due.

 Investments
 The major investments of the Company is in the group companies which includes investment in subsidiaries 

companies and an associate. 
 The company has also made investments in the units of mutual funds on the basis of risk and returns of the 

respective scheme.
 Cash and cash equivalent and Bank deposits
 Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and bank deposits is limited as the Company generally invests in term 

deposits with banks.
2)  Liquidity risk
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its 

financial liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds 
to meet its liabilities when due.

 The Company is monitoring its liquidity risk by estimating the future inflows and outflows during the start of 
the year and planned accordingly the funding requirement. The Company manages its liquidity by term loans, 
inter-corporate deposit and investment in mutual funds.

 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on 
contractual undiscounted payments along with its carrying value as at the balance sheet date.  

(` In Lakhs)  

Upto 12 months More than 12 months Total

As at 31 March 2020
Debt securities
Borrowings 32000.00 10000.00 42000.00
Trade payable 132.57 - 132.57
As at 31 March 2019
Debt securities 
Borrowings 14500.00 10000.00 24500.00
Trade payable 15.66 - 15.66

3)  Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market prices.
 Market risk includes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective of market risk management is 

to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Note 53 Revenue from contracts with customers
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation 
to profit and loss account

(` In Lakhs)

For the Year Ended 
31 March, 2020

For the Year Ended 
31 March, 2019

Type of income
Interest on Inter-Corporate Deposit 9830.32 10.50
Rental Income 255.05 134.38
Service Charges 93.04 37.71
Total revenue from contracts with customers 10178.41 182.59
Geographical markets
India 10178.41 182.59
Outside India - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 10178.41 182.59
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time - -
Services transferred over time 10178.41 182.59
Total revenue from contracts with customers 10178.41 182.59

Note 54
Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary.

Note 55 Impact on COVID 19

The World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because of coronavirus (COVID 
– 19) and classified its outbreak as a pandemic in March 2020. The Company  has actively implemented business 
continuity plans including the option of working from home facility. In assessing the impact of the pandemic on the 
Company’s operations and performance, the Company has considered internal and external information up to the 
date of the approval of the financial statements and based on current indicators of future economic conditions, 
the Management is of the view that it will not be severely impacted. The impact of the global health pandemic 
may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company 
will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
For Vidyarthi & Sons  Rajashree Birla D K Mantri
Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020

Note 56
The above financial statements have been reviewed by the audit committee and subsequently approved  
by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th July, 2020.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)

Annexure-I

The disclosures as required by the RBI Master Directions have been prepared after giving effect of below mentioned 
adjustments to the amounts reported in the financial statements: 

(i) The amount of allowances for expected credit losses, if any, on loan assets were added to the loan asset 
balances and the amount of provisions on standard, non-performing and stressed loan assets were 
recomputed based on the Companies provisioning policy as approved by the Board of Directors read together 
with the RBI Master Directions; 

(ii) The deferred tax relating to the adjustments listed in item listed above; 

1) Exposure to Real Estate Sector (` In Lakhs)

Category         2019-20 2018-19
a)   Direct exposure
(i)   Residential Mortgages -

Lending secured by mortgages on residential property that 
is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented; 
(Individual housing loans up to ` 15 lakh may be shown 
separately)

Nil Nil

(ii)  Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates 
(office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial 
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted 
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space,  
hotels,  land  acquisition,  development  and  construction,  
etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) 
limits;

Nil Nil

(iii) Investments  in  Mortgage  Backed  Securities  (MBS)  and  
other securitized exposures -

a.   Residential Nil Nil
b.   Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil

b)   Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National 
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).

Nil Nil
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2)    Asset Liability Management:   
 Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities  

As at March 31, 2020 (` In Lakhs)
Particulars 1 day to 

30/31 days  
(one month)

Over one 
month to 2 

months

Over 2 
months to 
3 months

Over 3 
months to 
6 months

Over 6 
months to 

1 year

Over 1 
year to 3 

years

Over 3 
year to 5 

years

Over 5 
years

As at  
March 31, 

2020
Liabilities:
Borrowings  17,500.00  -    -    -    14,500.00  -    10,000.00  -    42,000.00 
Assets:                            
Advances  14,650.00  6,450.00  11,900.00  6,100.00 102,036.00  -    -    -   141,136.00 
Investments  -    -    170.00  60.80  -    -    -   342,749.13 342,979.93 

3)    Liabilities side:
 Loans  and  advances  availed  by  the  NBFCs  inclusive  of  interest  accrued  thereon  but  not paid

 (` In Lakhs)
Sl. 
No.

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Amount 

Outstanding
Amount 
Overdue

Amount 
Outstanding

Amount 
Overdue

(a)     Debentures:
Secured - - - -
Unsecured (other than falling within the 
meaning of public deposits)

- - - -

(b) Deferred credits - - - -
(c) Term loans  42,000.00 24,500.00 -
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowings  -   -
(e) Commercial paper (net of unexpired 

discount charges)
 -   - - -

(f) Other loans (cash credit) - - - -

4)    Assets side:

(` In Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding
(a)   Secured  -    -   
(b)   Unsecured  141,136.00  108.14 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)



130 131

Statutory Reports Standalone FinancialsPilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2019-20 Consolidated Financials

5)    Break-up of leased assets and stock on hire and hypothecation loans counting towards AFC activities 

 (` In Lakhs)
Sl. 
No.

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a)    Financial lease Nil Nil
(b)    Operating lease Nil Nil

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(a)    Assets on hire Nil Nil
(b)    Repossessed assets Nil Nil

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a)    Loans where assets have been repossessed Nil Nil
(b)    Loans other than (a) above Nil Nil

6)   Break-up of Investments:

 (` In Lakhs)
Sl. 
No.

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding

Current Investments
1 Quoted
i Shares:
a. Equity  -    -   
b. Preference  -    -   
ii. Debentures and bonds  -    -   
iii. Units of mutual funds  230.80  1,150.83 
iv. Government securities  -    -   
v. Others (please specify)  -    -   
2 Unquoted
i Shares:  -    -   
a. Equity  -    -   
b. Preference  -    -   
ii. Debentures and bonds  -    -   
iii. Units of mutual funds  -    -   
iv. Government securities  -    -   
v. Others (please specify)  -    -   

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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 (` In Lakhs)
Sl. 
No.

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding

Long term investments
1 Quoted
i Shares:
a. Equity  342,719.67  465,362.07 
b. Preference  -    -   
ii. Debentures and bonds  -    -   
iii. Units of mutual funds  -    -   
iv. Government securities  -    -   
v. Others (please specify)  -    -   
2 Unquoted  -    -   
i Shares:
a. Equity  29.46  28.46 
b. Preference  -    -   

ii. Debentures and bonds  -    -   

iii. Units of mutual funds  -    -   

iv. Government securities  -    -   

v. Others (please specify)  -    -   

7)    Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above: (` in Lakhs)

Sl.
No

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

1 Related Parties
(a)  Subsidiaries  -    10.00  10.00            -   10.00 10.00 
(b)  Companies in the same group  -   342,738.73  342,738.73            -   372,629.62 372,629.62 
(c)   Other related parties  -                    -    -              -                      -                      -   

2 Other than related parties  -            231.20  231.20            -   93,901.74 93,901.74 
Total  -   342,979.93 342,979.93            -   466,541.36 466,541.36 

8)  Investor  group-wise  classification  of  all  investments  (current  and  non-current)  in  shares  and securities 
(both quoted and unquoted):                                                                                                 (` in Lakhs)

Sl.
No

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Market value 

/ break up or fair 
value or NAV

Book value 
(net of provisions)

Market value 
/ break up or fair 

value or NAV

Book value  
(net of provisions)

1 Related Parties
(a)  Subsidiaries  412.38  10.00  217.50  10.00 
(b)  Companies in the same group  410,642.93  342,738.73  677,477.27  372,629.62 
(c)   Other related parties  -    -    -    -   

2 Other than related parties  231.20  231.20 93,901.74  93,901.74 
Total  411,286.51  342,979.93 771,596.51  466,541.36 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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9)    Other information

 (` In Lakhs)
Sl. 
No.

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a)  Related parties  -    -   
(b)  Other than related parties  -    -   

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a)  Related parties  -    -   
(b)  Other than related parties  -    -   

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt  -    -   

10)  Investments:

(` In Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding
1. Value of investments
(i) Gross value of investments
(a) In India  342,966.48  466,527.91 
(b) Outside India  13.45  13.45 
(ii) Provisions for depreciation
(a) In India  -    -   
(b) Outside India  -    -   
(iii) Net value of investments
(a) In India  342,966.48  466,527.91 
(b) Outside India  13.45  13.45 
2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on 
investments
(i) Opening balance  -    -   
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year  -    -   
(iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the 
year

 -    -   

(iv) Closing balance  -    -   

11)   Derivatives:      

 1)     Forward rate agreement / Interest rate swap: The Company has not traded in Forward rate agreement/ 
Interest rate derivative during the financial year ended March 31, 2020. (Previous year: Nil) 

 2)      Exchange traded interest rate (IR) derivatives: The Company has not traded in Exchange traded interest 
rate (IR) derivative during the financial year ended March 31, 2020. (Previous year: Nil) 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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12)   Securitization: No securitization deal (including assignment deal) has carried out during the financial year 
ended March 31, 2020. (Previous year: Nil)     

13)   Asset liability management maturity pattern: Refer note no. 2 of Annexure-I for details of Asset liability 
management maturity pattern. 

14)   Exposures:      

 I)    Exposures to Real Estate Sector: Refer note no. 1 of Annexure-I for details of exposures to Real Estate 
Sector

 II)    Exposures to Capital Markets: None

 III)   Details of financing of parent company products: None

 IV)   The particulars of unsecured advances net off provision are given below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Loan  1,41,136.00 108.14

15)  Miscellaneous

 I)     Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators: No registration has been obtained from 
other financial sector regulators.

 II)    Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators: No penalties have been imposed by RBI or other 
regulators during the year. (Previous Year: NIL)

 III)   Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:

Instrument 2019-20
INDIA RATINGS CARE ICRA

Non-Convertible Debentures - - -
CRPS - - -
Commercial Paper - - -

Instrument 2018-19
INDIA RATINGS CARE ICRA

Non-Convertible Debentures - - -
CRPS - - -
Commercial Paper - - -

 IV)   Postponements of revenue recognition: Current year: Nil (Previous year: Nil) 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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16)  Provisions and Contingencies:

 I)    Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Provisions for depreciation on investment Nil Nil
Provision towards non-performing assets Nil Nil
Provision made towards Income tax
(shown below profit before tax)
Current tax(*)  1,438.29  (322.00)
MAT credit entitlement written off  69.08  -   
Deferred tax  (7.16)  (418.79)
Short provision relating to earlier years  257.97  -   
Other provision and contingencies  -    -   
Provision for standard assets  537.06  -   

(*) The figures does not include Income Tax Provision of ` 4200.15 Lakhs (P.Y. ` 2290.00 Lakhs)  shown in Other 
Equity (Equity Instruments through OCI) refer note no. 21 

17)  Concentration of Advances and NPAs:       

 I)    Concentration of Advances:   (` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020* As at March 31, 2019
Total Inter corporate deposit to twenty largest borrowers  144,420.15 -
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total 
advances of the company

 100.00 -

*including interest accrued  

 II)   Concentration of NPAs:  (` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts - -

18)  Disclosure of customer complaints:

S. 
No.

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

(i) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil
(ii) No. of complaints received during the year 4 4
(iii) No. of complaints redressed during the year 4 4
(iv) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year Nil Nil

       

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)
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To the Members of 
Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pilani Investment and Industries 
Corporation Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the 
Group”) which includes the Group’s net share of profit  in its associate which comprise the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on 
the consideration of reports the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at March 31, 2020 and their  consolidated profit, 
their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and their  consolidated changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by other auditor in terms of their report referred to 
in the paragraph 1 of Other Matter Section below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter

As explained in note 54  of the consolidated financial statements, the Company’s/Group  Associate has considered 
the appointed date as the date of transfer of control as per the circular issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
and consequently recognised the effect of demerger on appointed date as per the scheme of demerger approved 
by National Company Law Tribunal. Accordingly, comparative previous period figures have been restated. Our 
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key 
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

 Independent Auditor’s Report 
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Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 
Valuation of Investments 
As per provisions of Indian Accounting Standards the 
Company’s Investments excluding investments in Subsidiaries 
and Associates are measured at fair value at each reporting 
date and this policy of measuring investments at fair value have 
significant impact on the Company’s financial results.  
The valuation is performed by the Company using a fair value 
hierarchy as applicable below:
•	 Level 1: valuations based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in 

active markets.
•	 Level 2: valuations based on other than quoted prices 

included within level 1 that are observable either directly or 
indirectly.

•	 Level 3 : valuations based on unobservable inputs for the 
asset. 

The valuation of investments is inherently subjective – most 
predominantly for the level 2 and level 3 investments since 
these are valued using inputs other than quoted prices in an 
active market.
Key inputs used in the valuation of individual level 2 investments 
are market price of quoted investments, illiquidity discount 
etc. In addition, the Company determines whether objective 
evidence of impairment exists for individual investments.

We understood and tested the key controls 
around the valuation processes including the 
independent price verification and valuation 
governance controls. We found these key 
controls were designed, implemented and 
operated effectively, and therefore determined 
that we could place reliance on these key 
controls for the purposes of our audit.
Further, we assessed the valuation of all 
individual investments to determine whether 
the valuations performed by the Company 
were within a predefined tolerable differences 
threshold.
As part of these audit procedures, we assessed 
the accuracy of key inputs used in the valuation 
including observable and non-observable 
inputs.
We also evaluated the Company’s assessment 
whether objective evidence of impairment 
exists for individual investments.
Based on these procedures, we have not noted 
any material differences outside the predefined 
tolerable differences threshold.

For Key Audit Matters identified by Component Auditors Refer “Annexure – 1” attached herewith.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report, for example, Corporate Overview, Key Highlights, Director’s Report, 
Report on Corporate Governance, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
etc., but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries audited by the other auditors, to the extent 
it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far 
as it relates to the subsidiaries is traced from their financial statements audited by the other auditors.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 

 Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)
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position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows 
and consolidated changes in equity of the Group including its associate in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associate and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities and of its associate  
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective 
entities or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are also responsible 
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the management.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
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our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the 
Group and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included 
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other 
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters 

1. The consolidated financial statements also include the group share in net profit of ̀  12092.16 Lakhs and total 
comprehensive income of Rs (2478.35) Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020 as considered in consolidated 
financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. 
These financial statements/financial information have been audited by other auditor whose report have 
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far 
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate is based solely on the report 
of the other auditor. 

 Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor.

2. We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of 2 subsidiaries whose financial statements/
financial information reflect total assets of ` 2376.06 Lakhs as at March 31, 2020, total revenues of ` 82.95 
Lakhs, total net profits after tax of ` 66.97 Lakhs, total comprehensive income of ` (203.91) Lakhs and cash 
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flow (net) of Rs 51.76 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. These financial statements / financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us 
by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements / financial information. In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial 
statements / financial information are not material to the Group.  

 Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the 
other auditors on the separate financial information of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters 
section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and the reports of the other auditors.

 c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

 e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on March 31, 
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent, none of the directors of the Parent is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based 
on the auditors’ reports of the Parent. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent.

 g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

 h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

  i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate. 

 Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)
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  ii) Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts.

  iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent.

For Vidyarthi & Sons 
    Chartered Accountants

                                                                                                              Firm Reg. No.000112C

 Amit S. Vidyarthi
                                           Partner
 Membership No. F-078296
Gwalior, July 30, 2020 UDIN:20078296AAAACF1268
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(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year 
ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pilani investment 
and Industries Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Parent”), as of that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Parent’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Parent’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Parent’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

Annexure “A” To The Independent Auditor’s Report
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company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Parent, has, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting established by the company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vidyarthi & Sons 
    Chartered Accountants

                                                                                                              Firm Reg. No.000112C

 Amit S. Vidyarthi
                                           Partner
 Membership No. F-078296
Gwalior, July 30, 2020 UDIN:20078296AAAACF1268

Annexure “A” To The Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)
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Annexure “1” To The Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters in case of Associate Company – 
Century Textiles and Industries Limited 

 Auditor’s Response 

Recognition and Measurement of Deferred Tax
The Group has recognized Minimum Alternate Tax 
(MAT) credit receivable of Rs. 361.55 Crores as at 
March 31, 2020. The Group also has recognized 
deferred tax assets of Rs. 178.14 Crores on 
unabsorbed depreciation and indexation benefit on 
land.
Further, pursuant to the Taxation Laws (Amendment) 
Act, 2019 (new tax regime), the Company has 
remeasured its deferred tax balances expected to 
reverse after the likely transition to new tax regime, 
at the rate specified in the new tax regime and has 
recognized a net gain of Rs. 137 Crores.
The recognition and measurement of MAT credit 
receivable and deferred tax balances; is a key audit 
matter as the recoverability of such credits within 
the allowed time frame in the manner prescribed 
under tax regulations and estimation of year of 
transition to the new tax regime involves significant 
estimate of the financial projections, availability 
of sufficient taxable income in the future and tax 
positions adopted by the Company.

Our procedures included, amongst others, the following:
•	 Considered Group’s accounting policies with respect 

to recognition and measurement of tax balances in 
accordance with Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”

•	 Performed test of controls over recognition and 
measurement of tax balances through inspection of 
evidence of performance of these controls

•	 Performed the test of details including the following key 
procedures

	  Involved tax specialists who evaluated the 
Company’s tax positions basis the tax law and also 
by comparing it with prior years and past precedents

	  Discussed the future business plans and financial 
projections as approved by the management

	  Assessed the management’s long-term financial 
projections and the key assumptions used in 
the projections by comparing it to the approved 
business plan, projections used for estimation of 
likely year of transition to the new tax regime.

•	 Assessed the disclosures in accordance with the 
requirement of Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”
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(` In Lakhs)
Particulars Note No.  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 

ASSETS :
Financial assets
Cash & cash equivalents 2  422.02  45.27 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3  42.04  85.60 
Trade receivables 4  83.97  52.04 
Loans   141,050.00  -   
Investments 5  418,601.91  536,293.51 
Other financial assets 6  3,372.01  1.10 

 563,571.95  536,477.52 
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 7  437.69  1.52 
Deferred tax assets (net) 8  -    440.47 
Investment property 9  423.63  457.43 
Property, plant & equipment 10  62.78  0.90 
Other non financial assets 11  62.31  77.33 

 986.41  977.65 
TOTAL ASSETS  564,558.36  537,455.17 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 12
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises  
    and small enterprises

 133.11  16.20 

Borrowings(other than debt securities) 13  42,000.00  24,500.00 
Other financial liabilities 14  1,716.15  654.39 

  43,849.26  25,170.59 
Non-financial liabilities :
Current tax liabilities (net) 15  -    1,255.51 
Provisions 16  692.73  185.52 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17  8,751.19  -   
Other non financial liabilities 18  170.61  45.56 

  9,614.53  1,486.59 
Equity  
Equity share capital 19  790.88  790.88 
Other equity 20  510,303.69  510,007.11 

 511,094.57  510,797.99 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  AND EQUITY  564,558.36  537,455.17 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies 1
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 2 to 57
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
For Vidyarthi & Sons  Rajashree Birla D K Mantri
Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year  ended 31st March, 2020

(` In Lakhs)
Particulars Note

 No.
 For the year ended 

on 31.03.2020 
 For the year ended on 

31.03.2019 
Revenue from operations
Interest income 21  9,850.34  7.48 
Dividend income 22  2,274.49  2,097.74 
Net gain on fair value changes 23  100.28  233.52 
Others 24  354.47  178.47 
Total revenue from operations  12,579.58  2,517.21 
Other income 25  0.01  0.78 
Total income  12,579.59  2,517.99 
Expenses
Finance costs 26  4,307.26  1,889.92 
Employee benefit expense 27  138.65  135.30 
Depreciation and amortization expense 28  39.70  46.73 
Other expenses 29  931.98  194.24 
Total expenses  5,417.59  2,266.19 
Profit before exceptional items and tax  7,162.00  251.80 
Exceptional items    -    - 
Profit before tax  7,162.00  251.80 
Tax expenses 30
1)Current tax  1,440.09  (322.00)
2)MAT credit entitlement  69.08  -   
3)Deferred tax  (7.51)  (418.82)
4)Income tax for earlier year  257.97  -   
    1,759.63  (740.82)
Profit for the year   5,402.37  992.62 
Share of profit in an associate company  12,092.16  200,730.22 
Profit for the year  17,494.53  201,722.84 
Other comprehensive income 31
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (959.77)  (76,975.96)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss

 9,127.37  (602.95)

Subtotal (A) (10,087.14) (76,373.01) 
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  66.22 (56.28) 
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (23.18)    - 
Subtotal (B)  43.04 (56.28) 
Other comprehensive income (10,044.10) (76,429.29) 
Total comprehensive income for the year (comprising profit (loss) 
and other Comprehensive Income for the year)

 7,450.43  125,293.55 

Earnings per equity share 32
1) Basic (Rs)  221.20  2,550.63 
2) Diluted (Rs)  221.20  2,550.63 

Summary of significant accounting policies 1
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 2 to 57
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
For Vidyarthi & Sons  Rajashree Birla D K Mantri
Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended  
31st March, 2020

Year Ended  
31st March, 2019

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before Tax  7,162.00  251.80 
Adjustements for:
Depreciation  39.70  46.73 
Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes  2.53  (16.62)
Finance cost  4,307.26  1,889.92 
Operating profit before working capital changes  11,511.49  2,171.83 
Changes in working capital:    - 
Trade receivables  (31.93)  (27.49)
Loans and other advances  (144,405.89)  (43.13)
Trade and other payables  1,810.93  551.70 

 (131,115.40)  2,652.91 
Direct tax paid  (7,658.61)  (956.87)
Net Cash Flow From/(Used in) Operating Activities  (138,774.01) 3,625.78 
B. Cash flow from investment activities
Bank deposits other than cash and cash equivalents  43.56  (2.89)
Sale/(Purchase) of investments (Net)  128,369.39  (21,426.68)
Purchase of property, plant and equipments  (67.76)  (0.69)
Net cash flow from/(used in) investment  activities  128,345.19  (21,430.26)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Borrowings (net)  17,500.00  24,020.82 
Payment of dividend  (1,980.75)  (1,974.30)
Payment of dividend tax  (406.42)  (406.42)
Finance cost  (4,307.26)  (1,889.92)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing  activities  10,805.57  19,750.18 
Net increased/(decreased) in cash and cash equivalents 
(A+B+C)

 376.75  15.96 

Opening cash and cash equivalents  45.27  29.31 
Closing cash and cash equivalents  422.02  45.27 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020 (Contd.)

Notes:    
1.  Components of cash and cash equivalents:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Cash on hand  0.40  0.15 
Balances with banks
 - In current accounts  421.62  45.12 
Total  422.02  45.27 

   
2.  The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “indirect method” as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on 

statement of cash flows specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
3.  Since the Company is an investment company, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as 

part of “Cash flow from investing activities” and interest earned of Rs. 9850.34 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 7.48 
Lakhs) and dividend earned of Rs. 2274.49 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 2097.74 lakhs) have been considered as 
part of “Cash flow from operating activities”.    

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
For Vidyarthi & Sons  Rajashree Birla D K Mantri
Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31st March, 2020

A Equity share capital  (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars No. of Equity 

Shares of ` 10 
each

Balance at the 
beginning of the 
reporting year

Changes in 
equity share 

capital during 
the year

Balance at 
the end of the 
reporting year

Issued, paid-up and subscribed
As on 31.03.2019  7,908,750  790.88  -    790.88 
As on 31.03.2020  7,908,750  790.88  -    790.88 

B   Other equity  (` In Lakhs) 
Reserve and Surplus Equity Instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Share in Cash 
Flow Reserve 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income of 
Associates

 Share in Equity 
Instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income of 
Associates

Total
Statutory 
Reserve

Capital 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 01.04.2018  17,208.35  55,161.00  19,713.61  31,385.12  460,083.49  -    3,948.00  587,499.57 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    201,722.84  (75,349.21)  (56.28)  (1,023.04)  125,294.31 
Add/(less): Remeasurement of net defined benefit through 
OCI net of tax  

 -    -    -    36.31  -    -    -    36.31 

Add/(less): Other adjustment relating to OCI  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Add: Realised gain/(loss) on equity shares FVTOCI transferred 
from equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 

 -    -    -    10,625.86  (10,625.86)  -    -    -   

Less: Current tax on realised gain/(loss) on equity shares 
FVTOCI transferred from Equity Instruments through Other 
Comprehensive Income 

 -    -    -    (2,290.00)  -    -    -    (2,290.00)

Dividend paid during the Year  -    -    -    (1,977.19)  -    -    -    (1,977.19)
Tax on dividend   -    -    -    (900.37)  -    -    -    (900.37)
Transfer to statutory reserve from Retained Earnings  2,335.07  -    -    (2,335.07)  -    -    -    -   
Adjustment related to Associates on account of their demerger   -    -    -   (178,391.52)  -    -    -    (178,391.52)
Add/(less) Goodwill adjstment  for acquisition  -    (19,264.00)  -    -    -    -    -    (19,264.00)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 31.03.2019  19,543.42  35,897.00  19,713.61  57,875.98  374,108.42  (56.28)  2,924.96  510,007.11 
Total comprehensive income for the year net of tax  -    -    -    17,494.53  (7,431.58)  43.04  (2,521.39)  7,584.60 
Add/(less): Remeasurement of net defined benefit through 
OCI net of tax  

 -    -    -    (134.17)  -    -    -    (134.17)

Add: Realised gain/(loss) on equity shares FVTOCI transferred 
from equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 

 -    -    -    125,309.62  (125,309.62)  -    -    -   

Less: Current tax on realised gain/(loss) on equity shares 
FVTOCI transferred from Equity Instruments through Other 
Comprehensive Income 

 -    -    -    (4,200.15)  -    -    -    (4,200.15)

Dividend paid during the Year  -    -    -    (1,977.19)  -    -    -    (1,977.19)
Tax on dividend   -    -    -    (976.51)  -    -    -    (976.51)
 Transfer to statutory reserve from Retained Earnings  25,915.00  -    -    (25,915.00)  -    -    -    -   
 Balance at the end of the reporting period 31.03.2020  45,458.42  35,897.00  19,713.61  167,477.11  241,367.22  (13.24)  403.57  510,303.69 

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
 Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited
For Vidyarthi & Sons  Rajashree Birla D K Mantri
Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020
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Significant Accounting Policies:

1. Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated financial statements of Pilani Investment and Industries Corporation Limited (the “Company”) 
and its subsidiaries and associates (together the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in 
exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the Companies Act, 
2013. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) are also applied.

1.1. Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in 
its entirety, which are described as follows:

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group 
can access at reporting date.

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

1.2. Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the 
Division III to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) applicable for Non-Banking Finance Companies 
(“NBFC”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 
“Statement of Cash Flows”.

The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as 
prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements 
along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakhs rounded off to two decimal places 
as permitted by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two 
decimal places.

1.3. Basis of consolidation:

(i) The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the parent Group and its 
subsidiaries. For this purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Parent Group is treated as 
subsidiary. The Parent Company together with its subsidiaries constitute the Group. Control is achieved when the 
Company, directly or indirectly:

• has power over the investee;

• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

(ii) The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(iii) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the parent 
Group and to the non-controlling interests (NCI) and have been shown separately in the financial statements. Total 
comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Parent Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(iv) Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting 
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose 
of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent Company.

(v) All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, unrealised profits/ losses and cash flows relating 
to transactions between the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

(vi) The consolidated financial statements of the Group combine financial statements of the Parent Company and 
its subsidiaries line by-line by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

(vii) Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries 
attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Parent Company.

1.4. Investments in associates:

An Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over 
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements 
using equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in associate is initially recognised 
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted there after to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income of the associate. Distributions received from an associate reduce the carrying 
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that 
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only 
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the 
associate.

The carrying amount of investment in associates is reduced to recognize impairment, if any, when there is objective 
evidence of impairment.

1.5. Goodwill:

Goodwill on consolidation as on the date of transition represents the excess of cost of acquisition at each point of 
time of making the investment in the subsidiary over the Group’s share in the net worth of a subsidiary. For this 
purpose, the Group’s share of net worth is determined on the basis of the latest financial statements, prior to the 
acquisition, after making necessary adjustments for material events between the date of such financial statements 
and the date of respective acquisition. Capital reserve on consolidation represents excess of the Group’s share in 
the net-worth of a subsidiary over the cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the investment in the 
subsidiary. Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortised, however, it is tested for impairment annually. In the 
event of cessation of operations of a subsidiary, the unimpaired goodwill is written off fully.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units (or 
groups of cash generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently 
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is 
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying of each asset in the 
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for 
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the 
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

1.6. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable as reduced for estimated customer credits and other 
similar allowances.

i) Interest and Dividend Income

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and for all financial instruments except for those 
classified as held for trading or those measured or designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is 
measured using the effective interest method (EIR).

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are 
incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums 
or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at initial recognition.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non credit impaired financial 
assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For 
credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the 
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs).

For financial assets originated or purchased credit-impaired (POCI) the EIR reflects the ECLs in determining the 
future cash flows expected to be received from the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date and 
no significant uncertainty as to collectability exists.

ii) Net Gain or Fair Value Changes

Any differences between the fair values of the financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss, 
held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain/loss in the statement of profit 
and loss. In cases there is a net gain in aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains or fair value changes” under 
revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed “Expenses”, in the statement of profit and 
loss.

iii) Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is 
included in rental income in the statement of profit and loss, unless the increase is in line with expected general 
inflation, in which case lease income is recognised based on contractual terms.

iv) Other Operational Revenue

Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is 
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

1.7. Properties, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits 
availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Cost includes all direct cost 
related to the acquisition of PPE and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the 
Group’s accounting policy.

Land and buildings held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.
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PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital work in progress”.

Depreciation is recognised using reducing balance method so as to write off the cost of the assets(other than 
freehold land) less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, 
or in case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. 
Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of consumption of the 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed 
at each financial year end with the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value is accounted 
on prospective basis.

Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use. 
Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying 
amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful life on the same 
basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that the Group shall obtain ownership 
of the assets at the end of the lease term, such assets are depreciated based on the useful life prescribed under 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on the useful life adopted by the Group for similar assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

1.8. Investment Property

Investment properties are properties (including those under construction) held to earn rentals and / or capital 
appreciation are classified as investment property and are measured and reported at cost including transaction 
costs.

Depreciation is recognised using reducing balance method so as to write off the cost of the investment property 
less their residual values over their useful lives specified in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case 
of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined.

Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of 
the future benefits embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also 
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life / residual value is 
accounted on prospective basis. Freehold land and properties under construction are not depreciated.

As investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn 
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition 
of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.

1.9. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated 
at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. 
Direct expenses and administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to 
acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets 
under development”.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life. The method of amortisation 
and useful life are reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)
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An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are recognised in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised.

1.10. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets other than Goodwill

As at the end of each accounting year, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication 
exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the 
impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for impairment each year.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is determined:

i) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

ii) in the case of a cash generating unit (the smallest identifiable Group of assets that generates independent cash 
flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates 
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such 
deficit is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount 
of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For this purpose, the impairment loss 
recognised in respect of a cash generating unit is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to such cash generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets of the cash 
generating unit on a pro-rata basis.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit), except 
for allocated goodwill, is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss 
is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss (other than 
impairment loss allocated to goodwill) is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.11. Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term 
employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service. Liabilities 
recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits 
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

ii) Post-employment benefits:

a) Defined contribution plans: The Group’s superannuation scheme, state governed provident fund scheme, 
employee state insurance scheme and employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution 
paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Defined benefit plans: The obligation in respect of defined benefit plans, which cover Gratuity are provided 
for on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of each financial year using project unit credit method. The 
Group’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of the year. Actuarial 
losses/gains are recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge 
or credit recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement 
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

i) Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gain and losses on curtailments and 
settlements);

ii) Net interest expense or income; and

iii) Re-measurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in Statement of Profit and Loss in the line 
item ‘Employee Benefits Expense’.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate, which is determined by 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

The retirement benefit obligation, recognized in the Balance Sheet, represents the Company’s liability based on 
actuarial valuation.

iii) Long term employee benefits:

The obligation recognised in respect of long term benefits such as long term compensated absences is measured 
at present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be made by the Group and is recognised in a similar 
manner as in the case of defined benefit plans vide (ii) (b) above.

iv) Termination benefits:

Termination benefits such as compensation under employee separation schemes are recognised as expense when 
the Group’s offer of the termination benefit is accepted or when the Group recognises the related restructuring 
costs whichever is earlier.

1.12. Leases

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification 
of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including 
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. 

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered 
by an option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered 
by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing 
whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to 
terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group 
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises 
the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for 
a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Group as a lessee

The Group accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components 
of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component based on the relative 
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 

The Group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at 
the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the 
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
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commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of 
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying 
asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The 
right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of 
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on 
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever 
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss.  

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, 
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses incremental 
borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Group, on a lease-by-lease basis, may adopt 
either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as 
a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, 
exercise price of a purchase option where the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of 
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. 
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount 
to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The 
Group recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the 
right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the 
lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss. 

Group as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. 
The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line basis over 
the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern 
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Group is an 
intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease 
classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference 
to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described 
above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

Transition

Ind AS 116 replaces the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. This lease standard eliminates the classification 
of leases as either finance leases or operating leases. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-
balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises right-of-use asset representing its right 
to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The standard 
also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor 
accounting requirements in Ind AS 17. 

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019.  

On transition, the Group will be using the practical expedient provided in the standard and therefore, will not 
reassess whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of initial application. 

With effect from April 1, 2019, the Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-
term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of 
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low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

1.13. Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there is a 
current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis 
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1) Financial Assets

a) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) if these financial 
assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are 
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise 
on specified dates to sole payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling 
financial assets.

c) Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCI

The Group assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the asset and the Group’s business model for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, its contractual terms should give rise to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI).

For an asset to be classified and measured at FVTOCI, the asset is held within a business model whose objective 
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and the contractual terms of 
instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. The Group has more than one business model for managing its financial instruments 
which reflect how the Group manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The Group’s business 
models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or 
both.

The Group considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. However, 
this assessment is not performed on the basis of scenarios that the Group does not reasonably expect to occur, 
such as so-called ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios. The Group takes into account all relevant evidence 
available such as:

• how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are 
evaluated and reported to the entity’skey management personnel;
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• the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business 
model) and, in particular ,the way in which those risks are managed; and

• how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of 
the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

The Group reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have 
changed since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period the Group has not identified a 
change in its business models.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in 
OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

In contrast, for an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain/loss previously 
recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment.

d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair 
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

e) De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily de-recognised when:

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

• The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and

• either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations 
that the Group has retained.

2) Financial liabilities

a) Financial liabilities, including derivatives, which are designated for measurement at FVTPL are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Financial guarantee contracts are subsequently measured at the amount of impairment 
loss allowance or the amount recognised at inception net of cumulative amortisation, whichever is higher.

All other financial liabilities including loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest 
Rate (EIR) method.

b) A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation expires or is discharged or cancelled.

1.14. Write Off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial 
asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Group determines that the borrower does 
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the 
write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Group may apply enforcement activities to financial 
assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Group’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains.
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1.15. Impairment

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on the following financial instruments that are not measured at 
FVTPL:

• Loans and advances to customers;

• Debt investment securities;

• Trade and other receivable;

• Lease receivables;

• Irrevocable loan commitments issued; and

• Financial guarantee contracts issued.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 
assets. Evidence of credit impairment includes observable data about the following events:

• significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

• a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

• the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, 
having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

• the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

• the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event—instead, the combined effect of several events may 
have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Group assesses whether debt instruments that are 
financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if 
corporate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Group considers factors such as bond yields, credit ratings and 
the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in the 
borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the concession the risk of not 
receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. 

For financial assets where concessions are contemplated but not granted the asset is deemed credit impaired 
when there is observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of default. The definition 
of default (see below) includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stop if amounts are overdue for 90 days 
or more.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group monitors all financial assets and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to the impairment 
requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk the Group will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather 
than 12-month ECL.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, 
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based 
on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the 
remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognised. In making this 
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, 
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including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort, 
based on the Group’s historical experience and expert credit assessment.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change, in 
absolute terms, in the Probability of Default will be more significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial 
PD than compared to a financial instrument with a higher PD.

As a back-stop when loan asset not being a corporate loans becomes 30 days past due, the Group considers that 
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment model, i.e. the loss 
allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL in respect of all retail assets. In respect of the corporate loan assets, 
shifting to Stage 2 has been rebutted using historical evidence from own portfolio to a threshold of 60 days past 
due, which is reviewed annually.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets

POCI financial assets are treated differently because the asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition. For these 
assets, the Group recognises all changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition as a loss allowance with any 
changes recognised in profit or loss. A favourable change for such assets creates an impairment gain.

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in measuring the 
amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as 
default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the 
identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default:

• the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Group; or

• the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types of assets.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Group takes into account both qualitative 
and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in corporate 
lending a qualitative indicator used is the admittance of bankruptcy petition by National Company Law Tribunal, 
which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on 
another obligation of the same counter party are key inputs in this analysis. The Group uses a variety of sources 
of information to assess default which are either developed internally or obtained from external sources. The 
definition of default is applied consistently to all financial instruments unless information becomes available that 
demonstrates that another default definition is more appropriate for a particular financial instrument. With the 
exception of POCI financial assets (which are considered separately below), ECLs are required to be measured 
through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

• 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are 
possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (referred to as Stage 1); or

• full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial 
instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial 
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition (and consequently to credit impaired financial 
assets). For all other financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are measured as the present 
value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Group under the contract and the cash flows that the 
Group expects to receive arising from the weighting of multiple future economic scenarios, discounted at the 
asset’s EIR.
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• for financial guarantee contracts, the ECLis the difference between the expected payments to reimburse 
the holder of the guaranteed debt instrument less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the 
holder, the debtor or any other party.

The Group measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar 
economic risk characteristics.

1.16. Modification and derecognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial 
asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A 
modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. 
In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan may constitute a modification 
even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows 
depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises 
when covenants are breached).

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk 
of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to 
pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and the 
borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an 
extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest 
repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to 
covenants.

When a financial asset is modified the Group assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In 
accordance with the Group’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially 
different terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms 
the Group considers the following:

• Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI,

• Change in currency or change of counter party,

• The extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants.

If these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then;

a) In the case where the financial asset is derecognised the loss allowance for ECL is re-measured at the date of 
derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date.

The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial asset with the new 
terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance measured 
based on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated-credit 
impaired. This applies only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognised at a significant discount to 
its revised paramount because there remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. 
The Group monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, 
such as if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.

b) When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in 
derecognition, the Group determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition by comparing:

• the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual terms; 
with

• the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.
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For financial assets modified, where modification did not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the 
Group’s ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Group’s previous experience of similar 
forbearance action, as well as various behavioural indicators, including the borrower’s payment performance 
against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected at 
initial recognition the loss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The loss 
allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence 
of the borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following modification leading to a reversal of the previous 
significant increase in credit risk.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Group calculates the modification gain/loss comparing 
the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Group 
measures ECL for the modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are 
included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows expire (including 
expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the financial asset and substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Group neither transfers 
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, 
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group 
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/ loss that had been recognised in OCI 
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss, with the exception of equity investment designated as 
measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not subsequently re-classified 
to profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase 
part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the 
part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of 
the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount 
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer 
recognised and any cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or 
loss. A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI is allocated between the part that continues to be 
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This 
does not apply for equity investments designated as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative gain/loss previously 
recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

1.17. Presentation of allowance for ECL in the Balance Sheet 

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

• for financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

• for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in Balance Sheet as the carrying 
amount is at fair value.

1.18. Cash and bank balances:

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and 
other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to 
more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.
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1.19. Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect 
of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the 
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings, that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of cost of 
such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily 
requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

1.20. Accounting and reporting of information for Operating Segments:

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the 
chief operating decision making body in the Group to make decisions for performance assessment and resource 
allocation. The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of 
the performance assessment and resource allocation to the segments. Segment accounting policies are in line with 
the accounting policies of the Group.

1.21. Foreign currencies:

i) The functional currency and presentation currency of the Group is Indian Rupee. Functional currency of the Group 
and foreign operations has been determined based on the primary economic environment in which the Group and 
its foreign operations operate considering the currency in which funds are generated, spent and retained.

ii) Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency are recorded on initial recognition using 
the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are 
reported at the prevailing closing spot rate. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in 
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at each 
Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in 
which they arise.

iii) Financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currency is different than Indian Rupees are 
translated into Indian Rupees as follows:

A. assets and liabilities for each Balance Sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that 
Balance Sheet;

B. income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates; and

C. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity 
as foreign currency translation reserve for subsequent reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of such foreign 
operations.

1.22. Taxation:

Current Tax:

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
except to the extent it relates to an item which is recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable/ receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using applicable tax 
rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. 

Pursuant to the enactment of the Taxation Law (Amendment) Act, 2019, which is effective from 1st April, 2019, 
domestic companies have an irreversal option to pay income tax at a concessional rate of 22% (with certain 
conditions) plus applicable surcharge and cess (‘New Tax Regime’).
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The Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, 
as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised 
Provision for Income Tax for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 and remeasured its Deferred Tax Liabilities 
based on the rates prescribed in the aforesaid section. The impact of this change has been recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and. Loss for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
Group’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified 
using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that is probable 
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The 
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be 
recovered.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head “capital gains” 
are recognised and carried forward to the extent of available taxable temporary differences or where there is 
convincing other evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax 
assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets in respect of unutilised tax credits which mainly relate to minimum 
alternate tax are recognised to the extent it is probable of such unutilised tax credits will get realised.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 
assets and liabilities.

Transaction or event which is recognised outsideprofit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or in equity, 
is recorded along with the tax as applicable.

1.23. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

Provisions are recognised only when:

i) a Group entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; 
and

iii) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of 
time value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. 
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only when it is 
virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation; and

ii) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Provisions, contingent liabilities 
and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected 
to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a 
provision.
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1.24. Commitment:

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:

a) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;

b) uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;

c) funding related commitment to associate companies; and

d) other non-cancellable commitments, if any, tothe extent they are considered material and relevant in the 
opinion of management.

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to 
avoid excessive details.

1.25. Non-current assets held for sale:

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be 
recovered principally through a sale (rather than through continuing use) when the asset (or disposal group) is 
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale 
of such asset (or disposal group) and the sale is highly probable and is expected to qualify for recognition as a 
completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell.

1.26. Statement of cash flows:

Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. 
Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i)  changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;

ii)  non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses; and

iii)  all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which 
are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

1.27. Earnings per share:

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all 
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

1.28. Key source of estimation:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the Group 
makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the 
reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures  relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the 
financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets, expected credit loss 
on loan books, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if 
any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are known.
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1.29. Changes in Accounting Standard and recent accounting pronouncements (New Accounting Standards 
issued but not effective):

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no 
such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

Note 2 Cash & Cash Equivalents
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Cash on hand  0.40  0.15 
Balances with banks
- In current accounts  421.62  45.12 
Total  422.02  45.27 

Note 3 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Earmarked Balances with Bank
Unpaid Dividend Account  42.04  45.60 
Term Deposit of upto Twelve Months Maturity  -    40.00 
Total  42.04  85.60 

Note 4 Receivables
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Trade receivables
 Receivables considered good - Unsecured  83.97  52.04 
Total  83.97  52.04 
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Note 5 Investments
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
Face Value 

(Rs.)
Nos./Unit Amount Nos./Unit Amount

(A) At fair value through profit or loss
Investment in mutual funds
Aditya Birla Sunlife-Liquid Fund-Growth 100 - - 384,885  1,150.83 
Adiyta Birla Sun Life Dividend Yield Plus- Dividend 10 18,811  1.87 18,811 2.63 
Aditya Birla Sun Life Midcap Fund - Plan – Dividend 10 33,473  6.64 33,473 10.78 
Aditya Birla Sunlife Short term Opportunity Fund-Growth 10 16,672  5.53 16,672 5.15 
Aditya Birla Sunlife Medium Term Plan-Growth 10 50,783 11.86 50,783 11.57 
Aditya Birla Sunlife Medium Term Plan-Growth 10 58,746 13.72 58,746 13.39 
Aditya Birla Sunlife Low Duration Fund-Growth 10  8,412 40.68  - -
Aditya Birla Sunlife-Overnight Fund 1000 21,405 230.80  - -
(B) At fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in Equity instruments
Quoted
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Limited 10 2,188,866 3,346.78 1,569,219  3,457.77 
Aditya Birla Capital Limited * 10  33,601,721  14,163.13 33,351,721  32,417.93 
Birla Tyres Limited 10  27,338,750 820.16  - -
Grasim Industries Limited  2  24,714,527  117,665.86 24,274,527 208,263.30 
Hindalco Industries Limited  1  29,857,969  28,574.08 29,857,969  61,358.13 
Vodafone Idea Limited (Formerly: Idea Cellular Limited) 10 109,028,530 3,379.88 8,168,500  1,490.75 
Jayshree Tea & Industries Limited  5  2,844  0.88 2,844 1.85 
Kesoram Industries Limited# 10  27,338,750 5,016.66 27,338,750  19,902.61 
Kesoram Textile Mills Limited  2 2,415,750 48.32 2,415,750 48.32 
Mangalam Cement Limited 10 1,120,000 1,680.00 1,120,000  2,998.24 
Tanfac Industries Limited 10  498,000 394.17 498,000  1,082.90 
Ultra Tech Cement Limited ** 10 3,884,321  126,040.39 2,287,823  91,475.16 
Zuari Global Limited 10 - - 434,000  469.59 
Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited 10 - - 434,000  806.16 
Cimmco Limited 10 70,780  7.36 70,780 23.36 
Hindustan Everest Tools Limited 10 52,175 34.96 52,175 20.19 
KDDL Limited 10 35,000 41.05 35,000  154.07 
Orient Cement Limited  1  425,260 190.09 425,260  335.95 
Orient Paper & Industries Limited  1  425,260 835.21 425,260  148.84 
Orient Electric Limited  1  425,260 61.66 425,260  648.31 
Sutlej Textiles & Industries Limited  1 1,714,630 336.06 171,463 68.67 
SIL Investment Limited 10  114,309 91.39 114,309  503.19 
Zenith Birla Limited 10  3,432  0.07 3,432 0.07 
Mangalore Refinery Petrochemicals Ltd. 10 200  0.05 200 0.15 
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 (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

Face Value 
(Rs.)

Nos./Unit Amount Nos./Unit Amount

Unquoted
Birla Building Limited 10 15,000  1.52 15,000 1.52 
Birla Consultants Limited 10 12,000  1.20 12,000 1.20 
Essel Minings & Industries Limited 10 1  1.00 
Indo Thai Synthetics Co. Limited  Baht10  207,900 11.42 207,900 11.42 
Indo Phil Textile Mills Inc. Manila  Peso10  211,248  2.03 211,248 2.03 
The Eastern Economist Limited  100 400  0.40 400 0.40 
The Industry House Limited  100  2,812  1.89 2,812 1.89 
The Hindustan Times Limited 10  192,000  2.18 192,000 2.18 
Gmmco Limited 10 68,249 342.10 68,249  342.10 
(C) Investments -Others (At cost)
Associates (#) -
- Century Textiles & Industries Limited 10  36,978,570  115,193.86 36,978,570 109,055.91 
(D) Investments Carried at Amortized Cost
Debt Instruments
Investment in Tax Free Bonds
Housing and Urban Development Corporation Ltd. 1,000 500  5.00 500 5.00 
(E) Total – Gross (A+B+C+D)  418,601.91 536,293.51 
(i) Investments outside India 13.45 13.45 
(ii) Investments in India  418,588.46 536,280.06 
Total (F)  418,601.91 536,293.51 
(G) Total (E) to tally with (F) - -
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (H) -  -
(I) Total– Net = (E)-(H)  418,601.91 536,293.51 

(#) For the investment in subsidiary entities and associate, the company has opted for the exemption provided in 
para D15(b)(ii) of Ind AS 101 and accordingly the same has been measured at previous GAAP carrying amount i.e. 
at cost at the transition date.      
(#) As per para 10 of Ind AS 27, the Company has opted to value the investments in subsidiary entities and associate 
at cost. 
The following shares, although are in physical possession of the company, have not been indicated above since 
the value thereof has been written off  in earlier years :

QUOTED (Fully paid)
Equity Instruments
Jiyajeerao Cotton Mills Limited (In liquidation)  10  150 
Kalyan Sundaram Cement Industries Limited (In liquidation)  10  50,000 
Umi Special Steels Limited (In liquidation)  10  100,000 
UNQUOTED (Fully paid)
In Subsidiary Companies
Atlas Iron and Alloys Limited (In liquidation)  10  72,000 

* Pursuant to Regulation 167 (1) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2018 the 
2,50,000 shares are subject to lock in till 13th Nov, 2022.      
** 10,00,000 equity shares are deposited with broker in accordance with SEBI guidelines . 
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Note 6 Other Financial Assets
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Dividend Receivable  1.86 -
Interest accrued on deposit with bank  -    1.10 
Interest accrued but not due on loans and advances  3,370.15 -
Total  3,372.01  1.10 

Note 7 Current Tax Assets (Net)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Advance payment of income tax (net of provisio for Income Tax)  437.69  1.52 
Total  437.69  1.52 

Note 8 Deferred tax assets 
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
The major components of the deferred tax liabilities / (assets) 
based on the tax effects of timing differences are as follows:
Deferred tax assets
MAT credit entitlements  -    2.05 
Equity investment measured at fair value through OCI  -    647.27 
Transition date adjustment  -    (200.40)

 -    448.92 
Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    1.62 
Difference between WDV of block of assets as per Income Tax 
and WDV of fixed assets as per books
Investment measured at fair value through profit or loss  -    6.83 

 -    8.45 
Total  -    440.47 

Note 9 Investment property
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount/deemed cost  717.91  717.91 
Additions  -    -   
Disposals  -    -   
Addition/other adjustments  -    -   
Closing gross carrying amount  717.91  717.91 
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation  260.48  214.01 
Depreciation charged during the year  33.80  46.47 
Deductions  -    -   
Other adjustments  -    -   
Addition/other adjustments  -    -   
Closing accumulated depreciation  294.28  260.48 
Net carrying amount  423.63  457.43 
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Note 9.1 The amounts recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in relation to the investment properties :
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Rental income derived from investment properties  261.43  140.76 
Service charges derived from investment properties  93.04  37.71 
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) 
generating rental income 

 186.51  123.53 

Depreciation  33.80  46.47 
Profit arising From investment properties before indirect 
expenses

 134.16  8.47 

Note 10  Property, Plant & Equipment
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  Furnitures & 
Fixtures 

 Office 
Equipments 

 Vehicles  TOTAL 

Cost or valuation
As at 1st April 2019  1.93  1.69  -    3.62 
Addition/ (Disposal)  59.19  1.24  7.33  67.76 
As at 31st March 2020  61.12  2.93  7.33  71.38 
Depreciation
As at 1st April 2019      1.93 0.79 -      2.72 
Charge for the year      3.78 0.83    1.27    5.88 
As at 31st March 2020      5.71 1.62    1.27    8.60 
Net Block 
As at 31st March 2019         -   0.90 -      0.90 
As at 31st March 2020    55.41 1.31    6.06 62.78 

Note 11 Other non financial assets
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Security deposits  17.46  17.46 
Advance to parties  15.00  29.97 
Other advances  9.66  9.75 
Prepaid expenses  0.21  0.17 
Balances with Government Dept  0.08  0.08 
Deposit with Delhi Municipal Corporation against appeal  
(property tax demand)

 19.90  19.90 

Total  62.31  77.33 
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Note 12 Payables
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -    -   

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

133.11 16.20

Total 133.11 16.20

Note 13 Borrowings (other than debt securities)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
At amortised cost
Unsecured - term loans
From other parties  42,000.00  24,500.00 
Total (A)  42,000.00  24,500.00 
At amortised cost  -    -   
Borrowings in India  42,000.00  24,500.00 
Borrowings outside India  -    -   
Total (B)  42,000.00  24,500.00 

Total (B) to tally with (A)

Note:

Details of terms of redemption/repayment and security provided in respect of debt securities and 
borrowings:
Term loan from financial entities As at 

31.03.2020
As at 

31.03.2019
Terms of redemption/repayment

Term loan from financial entity 1 10,000.00   10,000.00 Repayable in 60 months from June 18, 2018 
with option of repayment at the end of every 12 
months

Term loan from financial entity 2 14,500.00   14,500.00 Repayable in one bullet payment at the end of 
12 months from October 1, 2019

Term loan from financial entity 2 17,500.00     -   Repayable in one bullet payment at the end of 
12 months from April 1, 2019
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Note 14 Other financial liabilities
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Interest accrued
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  1,051.60  -   
Unpaid dividends  42.04  45.60 
Liabilities for expenses  0.77  0.33 
Amount due to employee  3.15  4.85 
Other miscellaneous payable  18.33  3.35 
Security deposit 600.26 600.26
Total 1,716.15 654.39

Note 15  Current tax liabilities 
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Income Tax Provision (net of Advance Income Tax)  -    1,255.51 
Total  -    1,255.51 

Note 16 Provisions
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Provision for employee benefits (Gratuity)  6.13  26.09 
Provision for employee benefits (Leave)  5.36  15.25 
Contingent provision against standard assets  564.54  27.48 
Provision towards demand for municipal tax  116.70  116.70 
Total  692.73  185.52 

Note 17 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
The major components of the deferred tax liabilities / (assets)
based on the tax effects of timing differences are as follows:
Deferred tax assets 
MAT credit entitlement  1.44  -   
Difference between WDV of block of assets as per Income Tax 
and WDV of Fixed Assets as per books

 0.25  -   

 1.69  -   
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Difference between WDV of block of assets as per Income Tax 
and WDV of Fixed Assets as per books

 0.20  -   

Investment measured at fair value through profit or loss  0.98  -   
Equity investment measured at fair value through OCI  8,751.70  -   

 8,752.88  -   
Total  8,751.19  -   
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Note 18 Other non financial liabilities
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Statutory dues payable  170.61  45.56 
Total  170.61  45.56 

Note 19 Equity share capital
(i)  Share capital authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up (` In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

No. of Shares (` In Lakhs) No. of Shares (` In Lakhs)
Authorised:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  9,000,000  900.00  9,000,000  900.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares:
Equity Shares of ` 10 each  7,908,750 790.88  7,908,750 790.88

There is no change in the number of shares in current year and previous years.

(ii) Terms/rights attached to equity shares    
 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder 

of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in 
Indian Rupees. 

 During the year ended 31st March, 2020, the amount of per share dividend recognized as 
distributions to shareholders was ` 25/- (` 25/-) per share. The Board of Directors at its meeting 
held on 30th July, 2020, have proposed a final dividend of ` 25/- per equity share for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2020. The proposal is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Total cash out flow would be ` 1977.19 Lakhs (including 
TDS)  and the same will be accounted for in the financial year 2020-21 in terms of Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with 
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.   

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution 
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
 No. of Shares  % holding  No. of Shares  % holding 

 Aditya Marketing & Manufacturing Pvt. Limited  2,744,194  34.70  2,744,194  34.70 
 Padmavati Investment Limited  1,406,986  17.79  1,406,986  17.79 
 The Punjab Produce & Trading Co. Pvt. Limited  1,385,223  17.52  1,385,223  17.52 
 Gwalior Webbing Co. Pvt. Limited  454,168  5.74  454,168  5.74 

As per the records of the company, including its register of shareholders, the above shareholding 
represents legal ownership of shares. 
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Note 20 Other equity
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Other reserves

(i)  Statutory reserves

Balance as at the beginning of the year  19,543.42  17,208.35 
Addition during the year  25,915.00  2,335.07 

 45,458.42  19,543.42 

Others 
(ii)  General reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year  19,713.61  19,713.61 
Addition during the year  -    -   

 19,713.61  19,713.61 
(iii) Reserves representing unrealised gains/losses 
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income  374,108.42  460,083.49 
Add / (less) during the year  (7,431.58)  (75,996.48)
Less: Realised gain/(loss) on equity shares at FVTOCI transferred 
to retained earnings

 (125,309.62)  (10,625.86)

Less: Deferred tax  -    647.27 
 241,367.22  374,108.42 

Share in equity instruments through other comprehensive 
income of an associates
Balance as at the beginning of the year  2,924.96  3,948.00 
Add/(less) during the year  (2,521.39)  (1,023.04)

 403.57  2,924.96 
Share in cash flow reserve through other comprehensive 
income of associates
Balance as at the beginning of the year  (56.28)  -   
Add/(less) during the Year  43.04  (56.28)

 (13.24)  (56.28)
Capital reserve  

Balance as at the beginning of the year  35,897.00  55,161.00 
Add/(less) during the Year  -    -   
Add/(Less) Goodwill adjustment for acquisition  -    (19,264.00)

 35,897.00  35,897.00 
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Note 20 Other equity (Contd.)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
(iv) Retained earnings
Surplus at the beginning of the year  57,875.98  31,385.12 
Add : Profit for the year  17,494.53  201,722.84 
Add/(Less): Other adjustment relating to OCI  -    -   
Add/(less): Remeasurement of net defined benefit through OCI 
net of tax 

 (134.17)  36.31 

Add: Realised gain/(loss) on equity shares at FVTOCI transferred 
from equity instruments through other comprehensive income

 125,309.62  10,625.86 

Less: Current tax on realised gain/(loss) on equity shares at 
FVTOCI transferred from equity instruments through other 
comprehensive Income

 (4,200.15)  (2,290.00)

Less: Proposed dividend on equity shares  (1,977.19)  (1,977.19)
Less: Tax on dividend  (976.51)  (900.37)
Less: Transfer to statutory reserve  (25,915.00)  (2,335.07)
Less: Adjustment related to Associates on account of their 
demerger 

 -    (178,391.52)

Less: Transfer to general reserve  -    -   
 167,477.11  57,875.98 

Total  510,303.69  510,007.11 

Notes: Nature and purpose of reserve 
(i) Statutory reserve (Reserve u/s. 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the “RBI Act, 1934”))
 Reserve is created as per the terms of section 45-IC(1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a statutory 

reserve.
(ii) General reserve  
 Amounts set aside from retained profits as a reserve to be utilised for permissible specified purpose as per 

prevaling  law for the time being. 
(iii) FVTOCI equity investments  
 The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investments in equity securities (other than 

investment in subsidiaries and associate) in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated 
within the FVTOCI equity investments reserve within equity.

(iv) Retained earnings  
 Surplus in the statement of profit and loss is the accumulated available profit of the Company carried forward 

from earlier years. These reserves are free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.
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Note 21  Interest income
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

On Financial Assets 
measured at 

Amortised Cost

On Financial Assets 
measured at 

Amortised Cost
Interest on loans  9,830.32  -   
Interest income from investments  0.41  0.41 
Interest on deposits with banks  19.48  7.07 
Other interest Income  0.13  -   
Total  9,850.34  7.48 

Note 22 Dividend income
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

On investments - equity share investments  2,274.49  2,097.74 
Total  2,274.49  2,097.74 

Note 23 Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss
(i) On financial instruments designated at fair value through 
profit or loss on mutual fund

 100.28  233.52

(ii) Others  -    -   
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes  100.28  233.52 
Fair value changes:
Realised  102.81  216.90 
Unrealised  (2.53 )  16.62 
Total  100.28  233.52 
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Note 24 Others
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Rent income  261.43  140.76 
Service charges  93.04  37.71 
Total  354.47  178.47 

Note 25 Other income
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Miscellaneous receipts & income  0.01  0.78 
Total  0.01  0.78 

Note 26 Finance cost
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

On financial 
liabilities measured 
at amortised cost

On financial liabilities 
measured at 

amortised cost
Interest on borrowings  4,307.26  1,889.92 
Total  4,307.26  1,889.92 

Note 27 Employee benefit expense 
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Salaries  and wages  117.08  105.97 
Contribution to provident and other funds
Provident Fund and pension fund  11.21  11.45 
Gratuity  2.81  3.03 
Staff welfare expenses  7.55  14.85 
Total  138.65  135.30 

Note 28 Depreciation and amortization expense 
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31.03.2020  As at 31.03.2019 
Depreciation and amortization expense
On property, plant and equipment  5.89  0.25 
On investment property  33.81  46.48 
Total  39.70  46.73 
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Note 29 Other expenses
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Rent, taxes and energy costs  49.09  29.90 
Repairs and maintenance  138.19  95.97 
Director’s fees, allowances and expenses  10.22  8.00 
Insurance  0.18  0.25 
Payments to the auditors  
As auditor  4.09  4.03 
For quarterly review  1.95  1.95 
For fees for other services (inclusive for issuing various 
certificates)

 1.95  1.50 

For Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses  1.41  1.34 
Corporate social responsibility expenses  10.00  7.00 
Provision against Standard Assets of NBFCs ( as per RBI 
Regulation)

 537.06  -   

Miscellaneous expenses  177.84  44.30 
Total  931.98  194.24 

Note 30 Tax expenses
The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are:

 (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars For the Year ended  

31st March, 2020
For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Current tax  1,440.09  (322.00)
MAT credit entitlement written off  69.08  -   
Deferred tax  (7.51)  (418.82)
Income Tax related to earlier years  257.97  -   
Total tax charge  1,759.63  (740.82)
Current tax  1,767.14  (322.00)
Deferred tax  (7.51)  (418.82)

Note 30.1 Reconciliation of the total tax charge  

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits 
had been charged at India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit 
multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 is as follows:
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 (` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Accounting profit before tax  7,162.00  251.80 
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 29.12%
Tax on Accounting Profit  1,802.65  73.32 
Tax effect of:
Exempted income  (572.28)  (1,288.78)
Ind AS transition period adjustment  -    71.04 
Tax on expense not tax deductible 104.95  25.78 
Adjustment on account of change on tax rate  (6.94)  113.22 
MAT credit entitlements written off  69.08  -   
Tax effect on various other items 369.68 683.42
Tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss  1,767.14  (322.00)
Effective tax rate (%)  24.67  (127.88)

Note 30.2 Deferred tax

 (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars For the Year ended  

31st March, 2020
For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Deferred tax asset/ liability (net)
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:
At the start of the year DTA / (DTL) (net)  440.47  (581.32)
Credit / (charge) for equity instruments through OCI  (9,198.47)  603.29 
Credit / (charge) for remeasurement of the defined benefit  -    (0.32)
Credit / (charge) to the statement of profit and loss  6.81  418.82 
At the end of year DTA / (DTL) (net)  (8,751.19)  440.47 

Note 31 Other comprehensive income
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year ended  
31st March, 2020

For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  (205.36)  400.06 
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income;  1,766.98  (76,352.98)
Share of other comprehensive income in associates and joint 
ventures, to the extent not to be classified into profit or loss

 (2,521.39)  (1,023.04)

Others  -    -   
Total  (959.77)  (76,975.96)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Share of other comprehensive income in associates and joint 
ventures, to the extent to be classified into profit or loss

 66.22  (56.28)

Others  -    -   
Total  66.22  (56.28)
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Note 32 Earnings per share
The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31st March, 2020 and 31st March 2019 are :
  (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars For the Year ended  

31st March, 2020
For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

(A) Basic earnings per share
Computation of profit
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders (basic)  17,494.53  201,722.84 
Computation of weighted average number of shares Nos. Nos.
Weighted average number of equity shares of ` 10 each used for 
calculation of basic earnings per share

 7,908,750  7,908,750 

Basic earnings per share of face value of ` 10 each (in `)  221.20  2,550.63 
(B) Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (diluted)  17,494.53  201,722.84 
Computation of weighted average number of shares Nos. Nos.
Weighted average number of equity shares as above  7,908,750  7,908,750 
Diluted earnings per share of face value of ` 10 each (in `)  221.20  2,550.63 

Note 33 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
 (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2019

(A) Contingent liabilities 
Income tax 120.39
(i) Assessing officer has demanded income tax of  ` 363.68 lakhs 
net of refund of ` 208.28 lakhs against the certain disallowances 
etc. (P.Y. ` 120.39 Lakhs) for the A.Y. 2011-12, 2013-14, 2014-15, 
2017-18 and 2019-20. The Company has filed an appeal before 
the DCIT, Appellate Tribunal, Kolkata.  Matter is still under sub-
judice.

363.68 120.39

Others
(i) A demand of ̀  437.77 Lakhs was raised by New Delhi Municipal 
Council towards property tax with retrospective effect from 
Financial Year 2000-01 to 2016-17 in a Subsidiary. The Subsidiary 
Company has not recognized it as a liability in the account for 
Financial Year 2016-17, being contingent in nature. The Subsidiary 
Company has filed an Appeal on 02.03.2017 against the same 
at the Court of District Judge, Patiala House, New Delhi and is 
optimistic of its favourable outcome.

437.77 437.77

(B) Commitments
(i) Uncalled liability on partly paid shares held as investments 0.03 0.03
(C) Company’s share in outstanding capital and other 
commitment & contingent liabilities of associates :
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 (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars As at 

31st March, 2020
As at  

31st March, 2019
I) Outstanding capital and other commitment  10,757.11  26,747.58 
II) Contingent liabilities- continuing operation
a.  i) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts
Rates, taxes & duties demanded by various authorities  634.06  711.20 
Others  251.30  229.45 
ii) Claims not acknowledged as debts jointly with other members 
of “Business Consortium of Companies” in which the company 
had an interest (proportionate).

 795.96  768.81 

b. For income tax matters  2,046.86  2,026.66 
c. Liability on account of jute packaging obligation upto 30 June 
1997 under the jute packaging materials (compulsory use in 
Packing Commodities) Act, 1987 

Amount not determinable

d. Amount demanded by provident fund authorities which is 
sub-judice Amount not determinable

Note 34
Provision has been made against demand for municipal taxes (including interest and penalty) for earlier years, 
though, the representation made by the company to the municipal authorities for reconsideration of the annual 
valuation is still under consideration of the concerned authorities.

Note 35 Corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) expenses :
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs 
to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate 
social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are healthcare including preventive healthcare, 
providing safe drinking water, sanitation facility, promoting education, old age home maintenance, environmental 
sustainability and promotion and development of traditional art and handicrafts. A CSR committee has been 
formed by the company as per the Act.  
The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are specified 
in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013   
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is ` 1.90 Lakhs. (PY ` 14.07 Lakhs) 
Amount spent during the year:  ` 10.00  Lakhs (PY ` 7.00 Lakhs) 

 (` In Lakhs) 
Particulars For the Year ended  

31st March, 2020
For the Year ended  
31st March, 2019 

The amounts spend are as follows: 
(i) Construction / acquisition of any assets  -    -   
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above  10.00  7.00 
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Note 36 Lease Disclosures

(a)  As lessee   

During the period ended 31st March, 2020 the expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss includes:

(i) Rental Expenses recorded for Short-term lease  ₹  27.22 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (Previous 
Year: ₹  1.47 Lakhs) 

(b) Operating lease commitments – as lessor   

The Company has let out portions of office premises along with furniture and fixtures and other amenities on 
operating lease. It has recognised lease rental income amounting to ₹ 261.47  Lakhs and ₹ 140.76 Lakhs for the 
year ended 31st March 2020 and 2019 respectively in the statement of profit and loss.

Note 37 Segment reporting :

Operating segment are components of the Company whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is engaged primarily on the business of “Investments” only, taking into account the risks and returns, 
the organization structure and the internal reporting systems. All the operations of the Company are in India. All 
non-current assets of the Company are located in India. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments 
as per Ind AS 108 – “Operating segments”.

Note 38 Related Party Disclosures

(a) Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.   
List of related parties and relationships:   

Sr. No. Nature of relationship
1 Key management personnel Shri R P Pansari (CEO)

Shri N K Baheti CFO (upto 30.08.2019 )
Shri J K Singhania (CFO) (w.e.f. 02.09.2019)
Shri R S Kashyap (Company Secretary)

2 Other related parties
Associate company Century Textiles & Industries Limited

Transactions with related parties are as follows:
(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions Key managerial personnel
For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

1 Remuneration (including bonus and retirement benefits)  164.56  127.47 
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(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Nature of Transactions Other related parties
For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

1 Investment  -    25,731.85 

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis. None of the balances is secured.

The remuneration of key management personnel are determined by the nomination and remuneration committee 
having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

(b) Disclosures as per Regulation 53(f) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015).

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies in which directors are interested as under:

(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Name As at  
31st March, 2020

Maximum Balance 
outstanding during 

the year ended  
31 March, 2020

 -   -

(` In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Name As at  
31st March, 2019

Maximum Balance 
outstanding during 

the year ended  
31 March, 2019

 -   -
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Note 39

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”) which came into force 
from October 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to micro, small and medium enterprises. 
There have been no reported cases of delays in payments to micro and small enterprises or of interest payments 
due to delays in such payments.  

The disclosure as required by section 22 of MSMED Act has been given below:                                          (` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Principal amount payable to suppliers as at year-end  -    -   
Interest due thereon as at year end  -    -   
Interest amount for delayed payments to suppliers pursuant to 
provisions of MSMED Act actually paid during the year, irrespective of 
the year to which the interest relates

 -    -   

Amount of delayed payment actually made to suppliers during the year  -    -   
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED 
Act, 2006

 -    -   

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year  -    -   
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as 
a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006.

 -    -   

 

Note 40

No effect has been given in the accounts in respect of the following Equity Shares received by way of fully paid 
Bonus Shares on shares not belonging to the Company and the shares of other companies apportionable to the 
holding of these shares received pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, same are being held in trust by the Company.

Sr. No. Name of the company No. of equity shares Face value per share 
(`)

(a) Grasim Industries Ltd. 5755 2/-
(b) Hindustan Motors Ltd. 440 10/-
(c) Century Textiles & Industries Ltd 220 10/-
(d) Tungabhadra Industries Ltd. 4 10/-
(e) Hindustan Everest Tools Ltd. 60 10/-
(f) Aditya Birla Capital Ltd. 8057 10/-
(g) Ultra-Tech Cement Ltd. (Including 27 nos received on 

demerger of cement business of Century Textiles & 
Industries Limited)

684 10-
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Note 41 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be 
recovered or settled.   

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  422.02  -    422.02  45.27  -    45.27 
Bank balance other than above  42.04  -    42.04  85.60  -    85.60 
Trade receivabale  83.97  -    83.97  52.04  -    52.04 
Loans 141,050.00  -   141,050.00  -    -    -   
Investments  311.10 418,290.81 418,601.91  1,194.35 535,099.16 536,293.51 
Other financial assets  3,372.01    -  3,372.01  1.10    -  1.10 
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net)  437.69    -  437.69  1.52    -  1.52 
Deferred tax assets (net)    -  -    -      -  440.47  440.47 
Investment property    -  423.63  423.63    -  457.43  457.43 
Property, plant and equipment    -  62.78  62.78    -  0.90  0.90 
Other non-financial assets  44.77  17.54  62.31  59.79  17.54  77.33 
Total Assets 145,763.60 418,794.76 564,558.36  1,439.67 536,015.50 537,455.17 
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of 
micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(ii) Total outstanding dues of  
creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 133.11    -  133.11  16.20    -  16.20 

Debt securities  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

 32,000.00  10,000.00  42,000.00  14,500.00  10,000.00  24,500.00 

Other financial liabilities  1,115.89  600.26  1,716.15  54.13  600.26  654.39 
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)  -    -    -    1,255.51  -    1,255.51 
Provisions  0.58  692.15  692.73  34.50  151.02  185.52 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)    -  8,751.19  8,751.19  -    -    -   
Other non-financial Liabilities  170.61    -  170.61  45.56    -  45.56 
Total liabilities  33,420.19  20,043.60  53,463.79  15,905.90  10,751.28  26,657.18 
Net 112,343.41 398,751.16 511,094.57 (14,466.23) 525,264.22 510,797.99 
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Note 42 Employee benefit plan :

Disclosure in respect of employee benefits under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefit are as under:

(a) Defined contribution plan    

The Company’s contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plans. The Company’s 
contribution to provident fund aggregating Rs.10.38 lakhs (31 March 2019: Rs. 10.69 lakhs) has been recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss under the head employee benefits expense. 

(b) Defined benefit plan:    

Gratuity    

Financial assets not measured at fair value    

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the “gratuity plan”) covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan is 
governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service 
is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary 
at retirement age/ resignation date.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to risks such as actuarial risk, liquidity risk, legislative risk. 

These are discussed as follows:

Actuarial risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following 
reasons: 

Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into 
an increase in obligation at a rate that is higher than expected. 

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than 
the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, 
the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed 
salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption 
than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits 
are vested as at the resignation date. 

Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant 
level of benefits. If some of such employees resign / retire from the Company, there can be strain on the cash 
flows. 

Legislative risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due 
to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, thus 
requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such 
amendment is effective.
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The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 is as under

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2019

i. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined 
benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of 
the year

                     26.08                      21.96 

Current service cost                        1.03                        1.45 

Past service cost                             -                               -   

Interest cost                        1.77                        1.58 

Acquisition adjustment                             -   

Benefit paid (24.49)                             -   

Change in demographic assumptions (0.02)                             -   

Change in financial assumptions                        0.24                        0.14 

Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)                        1.51                        0.95 

Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the 
year

                       6.13                      26.08 

ii. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair 
value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Transfer in / (out) plan assets                             -                               -   

Expenses deducted from the fund                             -                               -   

Interest income                             -                               -   

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest 
income 

                            -                               -   

Assets distributed on settlements                             -                               -   

Contributions by the Company                      24.49                             -   

Assets acquired in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase                             -                               -   

Exchange differences on foreign plans                             -                               -   

Benefits paid (24.49)                             -   

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year                             -                               -   
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2019

iii. Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit 
obligation and fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the 
year 

                       6.13                      26.08 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year                             -                               -   

Unrecognised past service cost                             -                               -   

Net asset / (liability) recognized in the balance sheet as at the 
end of the year

                      (6.13)                    (26.08)

iv. Composition of plan assets

Total                             -                               -   

v. Expense recognised during the Year

Current service cost                        1.03                        1.45 

Past service cost                             -                               -   

Interest cost                        1.77                        1.58 

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss                        2.80                        3.03 

vi. Other comprehensive income

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:

Change in demographic assumptions (0.02)                             -   

Due to change in financial assumptions                        0.24                        0.14 

Due to experience adjustments                        1.51                        0.95 

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest 
income 

                            -                               -   

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income 

                       1.73                        1.09 

vii. Principal actuarial assumptions

Discount rate (per annum) 6.40% 6.80%

Rate of return on plan assets (p.a.)                             -                               -   

Annual increase in salary cost 5.00% 5.00%

Mortality Rate (% of IALM 12-14) (31 03 2019: % of IALM 06-08) 100% 100%

viii. Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are 
discount rate, expected salary increase and withdrawal rates. The sensitivity analysis below 
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at 
the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of 
sensitivity analysis is given below:
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As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2019

Defined benefit obligation (Base) 6.13 26.09

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2020

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount rate (- / + 1%) 6.80 5.56 26.49 25.75

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity 10.97% -9.26% 1.53% -1.30%

Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 5.53 6.82 25.73 26.5

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -9.67% 11.27% -1.36% 1.58%

Attrition Rate (-/+50%) 6.06 6.18 26.02 26.15

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -1.06% 0.91% -0.26% 0.23%

Mortality Rate (-/+10%) 5.98 6.27 25.98 26.19

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -2.42% 2.41% -0.37% 0.37%

ix. Asset liability matching strategies

The Company account for the liabilities based on the actuarial valuation report and paid from its own resources 
whenever liabilities is crystallized. The projected liability statements is obtained from the actuarial valuer.

x. Effect of plan on the Company’s future cash flows

a) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

The average outstanding term of the obligations (years) as at valuation date is 11 years.

Cash Flow (`)

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):

1 Year 0.43

2 to 5 Years 3.18

6 to 10 Years 0.64

More than 10 Years 9.34

Note 43

Contribution to political parties during the year 2019-20 is Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. Nil). 

Note 44

There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as at March 
31, 2020.

Note 45 Events after the reporting period

There has been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in financial statements. 
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Note 46

Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” - Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 1st April, 
2019

Cash flows Changes in 
fair values

Others 31st March, 
2020

Debt securities  -    -    -    -    -   
Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

 24,500  17,500  -    -    42,000 

Subordinated debt  -    -    -    -    -   

Note 47 Financial instrument and fair value measurement :

A.   Accounting classifications and fair values 
The carrying amount and fair value of financial instruments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy 
presented below:                                                                                                                                                    (` In Lakhs)
As at 31 March, 2020 Carrying amount Fair Value

Amortised 
Cost

 At fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Fair Value 
Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Others 
(At Cost)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at 
amortised cost
Investments            5.00 -                               -                -                        -   -   -             -   
Financial assets measured at 
fair value
Investments                      -   311.10     303,091.95                      -   303,039.51 - 363.74 303,403.05 
Financial assets not 
measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 422.02     -                               -                        -                        -   -   -       -   
Bank balance other than cash 
and cash equivalents

       42.04 -                               -                        -                        -   -   -   -   

Trade Receivables 83.97 -                               -   -                        -   -   -         -   
Loans 141,050.00 -                               -   -                        -   -   -              -   
Investments in Associates                      -   -                               -   115,193.86                      -   -   -                  -   
Dividend Receivable     1.86 -                               -   -                        -   -   -               -   
Interest Accrued but not due 
on Loans and Advances

3,370.15 -                               -   -                        -   -   -                -   

Financial liabilities not 
measured at fair value
Trade payables 133.11    -                               -   -                        -   -   -                   -   
Debt securities                      -   -                               -   -                        -          -    -               -   
Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

42,000.00 -                               -   -                        -    -        -            -   

Other financial liabilities 1,716.15 -                               -   -                        -     -     -        -   
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As at 31 March, 2019 Carrying amount Fair Value
Amortised 

Cost
 At fair value 

through 
profit or loss

Fair Value 
Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Others 
(At Cost)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at 
amortised cost
Investments 5.00        -       -        -        -      -      -        -   
Investments      -     1,194.35   426,038.25      -      426,869.86 -  362.74   427,232.60 
Financial assets not 
measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents       45.27        -       -        -        -      -      -        -   
Bank balance other than cash 
and cash equivalents

      85.60        -       -        -        -      -      -        -   

Trade Receivables       52.04        -       -        -        -      -      -        -   
Investments in Associates      -          -       -   109,055.91      -      -      -        -   
Term Deposits of more than 
12 months Maturity 

1.10        -       -        -        -      -      -        -   

Financial liabilities not 
measured at fair value
Trade payables       16.20        -       -        -        -      -      -        -   
Debt securities      -          -       -        -        -      -      -        -   
Borrowings (other than debt 
securities)

24,500.00                        -                               -                        -                        -                      
-   

                   
-   

                     -   

Other financial liabilities 654.39                        -                               -                        -                        -   -               -                        -   
1)  The Company has not disclosed the fair values for cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables, loans,  term deposits, trade 

payables and other financial liabilities as these are short term in nature and their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair 
value.

2)  The carrying amount of the investments in Associates are valued at Cost.

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:
(` In Lakhs)

As at  
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2019

i) Investment
Balance at the beginning of the year 362.74        362.74 
Gain included in OCI                         -                            -   
Net change in fair value (unrealised)                            -                             -   
Addition during the year   1.00                       -   
Impairment in value of investments                           -                         -   
Amount derecognised / repaid during the year                         -                               -   
Amount written off                             -                             -   
Balance at the end of the year                 363.74           362.74 
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Note 48

B.  Measurement of fair values

 i)  Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

  The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities which are at amortised cost are considered to be 
the same as their fair values as there is no material differences in the carrying values presented.

 ii)  Financial instruments - fair value

  The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (A) above have been classified into three 
categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest 
priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and 
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

  The categories used are as follows:
  Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices;
  Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active market is determined using 

valuation technique which maximizes the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on 
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value on instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in level 2; and

  Level 3: If one or more of significant input is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in level 3.

 iii)  Transfers between levels I and II
  There has been no transfer in between level I and level II.

 iv)  Valuation techniques

  Investment in equity instruments
  The majority equity instruments held by the Company are actively traded on stock exchanges with readily 

available active prices on a regular basis. Such instruments are classified as level 1.

  Investments in mutual Funds are valued as per the NAV prevailing at the end of the financial years and 
such investments are classified as level 1.

  Equity investments in unquoted instruments are fair valued using the valuation technique and accordingly 
classified as level 3.

C.  Capital

 The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is 
meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the NBFC’s Sector regulator and supervisor, RBI. The adequacy 
of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI.

 The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period. 
Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company’s capital management.

C.1  Capital management

 The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies 
with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in 
order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.
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 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic 
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue 
capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous 
years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

C.2  Regulatory capital  

As at  
31st March, 2020 *

As at  
31st March, 2019

CRAR 72.52 (30.94)
CRAR – Tier 1 capital (%) 72.52 (30.94)
CRAR – Tier II capital (%) 72.52 -
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital - -
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -

 * CRAR for 2019-20 has been calculated on the basis of RBI Circular No. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC). CC.PD.
No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020. Hence not comparable with previous period.

Note 49 Financial risk management objectives and policies:

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade payables. The main purpose of these 
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to support its operations. The Company’s financial 
assets include Investments, Loan, Trade Receivables and Cash and Cash equivalents that derive directly from its 
operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s board of directors has an overall 
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board of 
directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports to the board of directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies 
and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company’s risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s 
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation 
to the risks faced by the Company.

The Company’s risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s 
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation 
to the risks faced by the Company.

1)  Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer fails to meet its contractual obligations and 
arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans.

 The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

 Trade Receivables
 The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 

However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, 
including the default risk associated with the industry.
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 The Company’s exposure to credit risk for loans and advances by type of counterparty is as follows:

(` In Lakhs)

Carrying Amount
As at  

31st March, 2020
As at  

31st March, 2019
Trade Receivables            83.97 52.04
Loans    1,41,050.00 -

 An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on 
that date to identify expected losses on account of time value of money and credit risk. For the purposes of 
this analysis, the trade receivables are categorised into groups based on days past due.

 Investments
 The major investments of the Company is in the group companies, which includes investment in subsidiaries 

companies and an associate. 
 The company has also made investments in the units of mutual funds on the basis of risk and returns of the 

respective scheme
 Cash and cash equivalent and Bank deposits
 Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and bank deposits is limited as the Company generally invests in term 

deposits with banks.
2)  Liquidity risk
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its 

financial liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds 
to meet its liabilities when due.

 The Company is monitoring its liquidity risk by estimating the future inflows and outflows during the start of 
the year and planned accordingly the funding requirement. The Company manages its liquidity by term loans, 
inter-corporate deposit and investment in mutual funds.

 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on 
contractual undiscounted payments along with its carrying value as at the balance sheet date.     (` In Lakhs)

Upto 12 months More than 12 months Total

As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings 32000.00 10000.00 42000.00
Trade payable 133.11 - 133.11
Other Financial Liabilities 1716.15 - 1716.15
As at 31 March 2019
Borrowings 14500.00 10000.00 24500.00
Trade payable 16.20 - 16.20
Other Financial Liabilities 654.39 - 654.39

3)  Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market prices.
 Market risk includes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective of market risk management is 

to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
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Note 50 Revenue from contracts with customers
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to 
profit and loss account                                                                                                                                  (` In Lakhs)

For the Year Ended 
31 March, 2020

For the Year Ended 
31 March, 2019

Type of income
Interest on Inter-Corporate Deposit 9830.32 -
Rental Income    261.43 140.76
Service Charges      93.04   37.71
Total revenue from contracts with customers 10184.79 178.47
Geographical markets
India 10184.79 178.47
Outside India - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 10184.79 178.47
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time - -
Services transferred over time 10184.79 178.47
Total revenue from contracts with customers 10184.79 178.47

Note 51

The list of subsidiaries and associate included in the consolidated financial statement are as under:

Name of Subsidiary/ Associate As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019
Proportion of 

Ownership 
Interest (%)

Proportion of 
Voting Power 

held (%)

Proportion of 
Ownership 
Interest (%)

Proportion of 
Voting Power 

held (%)
Subsidiaries
PIC Realcon Limited             100.00             100.00             100.00             100.00 
PIC Properties Limited             100.00             100.00             100.00             100.00 
Associates
Century Textiles and Industries 
Limited

              33.11               33.11               33.11               33.11 
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Note 52

Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated 
Financial Statements to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 as on 31st March 2020

Name of the entity in the 
Group

Net assets, i.e., total assets 
minus Total Liabilities

Share of profit or loss Share in other
comprehensive income

Share in total 
comprehensive income

As % of
consolidated

net assets

Amount As % of
consolidated
profit or loss

Amount As % of
consolidated 

other 
comprehensive 

income

Amount As % of
consolidated 

total 
comprehensive 

income

Amount

Parent:
Pilani Investments & 
Industries Corporation 
Limited

77.15 394,379.76 30.50 5,335.39   71.32 (7,162.43) (24.52) (1,827.04)

Subsidiaries:
  Indian
  PIC Properties Limited

(0.04) (221.05) (0.03) (4.66)         -        -     (0.06) (4.66)

Subsidiaries:
  Indian
  PIC Realcon Limited

 0.34 1,742.00  0.41 71.64     2.70 (270.88)   (2.67) (199.24)

Non-controlling Interests in 
all subsidiaries

     -    -      -    -         -    -        -    - 

Associates (Investment as 
per the equity method):
  Indian
  Century Textiles & 
Industries Limited

22.54 115,193.86 69.12 12,092.16   25.99 (2,610.79)  127.26 9,481.37 

Total 100.00 511,094.57 100.00 17,494.53 100.00 (10,044.10) 100.00 7,450.43 

Note 53

The Company has applied to the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”)  for its conversion from Non-Banking Financial 
Company to Core Investment Company. However RBI has required to submit the application as per new guidelines 
and the Company is under process of submission.
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Note 54

As per clarification, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Circular No. 09/2019 dated August 21, 2019 (MCA 
Circular) and due to duly approved Scheme of demerger by NCLT on July 3, 2019, the Company’s Associate - M/s 
Century Textiles and Industries Limited has restated its figures for financial year 2018-19 to recognize the effect of 
demerger. Accordingly, the Company has restated its Consolidated figures for financial year 2018-19.

The impact of above restatement on previous period figures is as follows :  (` In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Share of Profit in Associate -

Increase (Decrease) 178,593.22

Share in OCI - Increase (Decrease) (0.32)

EPS - Increase 2,258.17

Note 55

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified whenever necessary.

Note 56 Impact on COVID 19

The World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because of coronavirus (COVID 
– 19) and classified its outbreak as a pandemic in March 2020. The Company  has actively implemented business 
continuity plans including the option of working from home facility. In assessing the impact of the pandemic on the 
Company’s operations and performance, the Company has considered internal and external information up to the 
date of the approval of the financial statements and based on current indicators of future economic conditions, 
the Management is of the view that it will not be severely impacted. The impact of the global health pandemic 
may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company 
will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Note 57

The above consolidated financial statements have been reviewed by the audit committee and subsequently 
approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th July, 2020.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Chartered Accountants  Chairperson Director
Firm Registration No.: 000112C  (DIN: 00022995) (DIN: 00075664)
 Place: Mumbai Place: Kolkata
 R. P. Pansari  
 Chief Executive Officer
Amit S. Vidyarthi Place: Kolkata  
Partner J K Singhania R. S. Kashyap
Membership No. F-078296 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Gwalior Place:  Kolkata Place:  Kolkata 
Dated: 30th July, 2020 Dated: 30th July, 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)





Pilani Investment and Industries Corpora�on Limited
CIN: L24131WB1948PLC095302

Registered Office: Birla Building, 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata- 700001
Phone: (033) 4082 3700 / 2220 0600


